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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS B &=

Changes
2020 L))
HK$’'m %
AT BTk
Loss for the year Attributable to RAREE ANELERN
Owners of the Company fE518 (1,452.6) (317.6) 357.3%
Net Assets FAE 5,718.2 7,384.0 (22.6%)
Total Assets BERE 11,572.0 11,238.9 3.0%
Equity Attributable to Owners of the KRR TR AFEAGARA
Company 5,231.3 6,559.8 (20.3%)
Pledged Bank Deposits, Cash and ERIRERITIFE AR
Bank Balances e RIRITAH 141.2 793.5 (82.2%)
Changes
Key Performance and Liquidity FEZEXRER HK$ HK$ %
Indicators B AR RIS AE B BT BoOtk
Basic Loss Per Share BIREAREE
(Note 1) (HtaE1) (0.6302) (0.1378) 357.3%
Net Assets Per Share (Note 1) SREEFEMNZT) 2.27 2.85 (20.4%)
P/E Ratio (Note 1) mEE(HE1) (0.79x) (6.60x) (88.0%)
Return on Capital Employed (Note 2) & ARBISRK (f/:22) (27.77%) (4.84%) 473.8%
Return on Total Assets (Note 3) BEERIWRE(ME3) (12.55%) (2.83%) 343.5%
Gearing Ratio (Note 4) BELEHZ4) 96.27% 48.37% 99.0%
Adjusted Gearing Ratio (Note 5) KRB E LR (M 5E5) 93.57% 36.27% 158.0%
Current Ratio (Note 6) mENLL X (HTt6) 1.75x 5.21x (66.4%)
Interest Coverage (Note 7) FEEREAZ7) (2.51x) (0.48x) 422.9%

Notes:

1.

Based on 2,304,849,611 shares issued and fully paid as at 31
December 2021 (2020: 2,304,849,611 shares) and the market
closing price as at 31 December 2021 of HK$0.50 (2020:
HK$0.91) per share. Net assets per share is calculated as net
assets attributable to owners of the Company over number of
shares issued and fully paid.

2. Calculated as loss for the year attributable to owners of the
Company over equity attributable to owners of the Company.

3. Calculated as loss for the year attributable to owners of the
Company over total assets.

4. Calculated as borrowings and convertible bonds issued by the
Company over equity attributable to owners of the Company.

5. Calculated as net borrowings (borrowings and convertible
bonds issued by the Company net of pledged bank deposits
and cash and bank balances) over equity attributable to
owners of the Company.

6. Calculated as current assets over current liabilities.

7. Calculated as loss for the year attributable to owners of the

Company before finance costs and taxation over finance
costs.
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CORPORATE INFORMATION T2%&

Board of Directors

The composition of the board (“Board”) of directors
(“Directors”) of Silver Grant International Holdings Group
Limited (“Company”, together with its subsidiaries, the
“Group”) during the year ended 31 December 2021 (“Year
2021”) and as at the date of this annual report is set out
below:

Executive Directors

Chu Hing Tsung (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
(redesignated from a non-executive Director to an
executive Director and appointed as Chief Executive
Officer with effect from 1 August 2021)

Luo Zhihai

Tang Lunfei (appointed with effect from 11 January 2021)

Wang Ping (appointed with effect from 1 August 2021)

Huang Jiajue (Chief Executive Officer)

(resigned with effect from 1 August 2021)
Ma Yilin (resigned with effect from 11 January 2021)

Non-executive Director

Chen Zhiwei

Independent non-executive Directors

Liang Qing

Zhang Lu

Hung Muk Ming

Audit Committee

Hung Muk Ming (Committee Chairman)

Liang Qing

Zhang Lu

Remuneration Committee

Zhang Lu (Committee Chairman)

Liang Qing

Luo Zhihai (appointed with effect from 1 August 2021)
Huang Jiajue (resigned with effect from 1 August 2021)

Nomination Committee

Chu Hing Tsung (Committee Chairman)
Zhang Lu
Hung Muk Ming
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CORPORATE INFORMATION T2%&

Company Secretary

Ng Hoi Leung, Leo

Company Lawyers

LCH Lawyers LLP

Auditor

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants

Registered Public Interest Entity Auditor

Principal Bankers

Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited
Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited

Share Registrar and Transfer Office
Tricor Secretaries Limited

Level 54, Hopewell Centre,

183 Queen’s Road East,

Hong Kong
(Tel: 29801333 Fax: 28108185)

Registered Office
Suite 4901, 49th Floor,
Office Tower, Convention Plaza,

1 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong
(Tel: 28023606 Fax: 28029506)

Company Website
http://www.silvergrant.com.hk
Stock Code

171
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT £E#H%&E

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group has recorded a loss attributable to owners of the
Company of approximately HK$1,452,609,000 for Year 2021,
as compared with that of approximately HK$317,641,000 for
the year ended 31 December 2020 (“Year 2020”). Basic loss
per share of the Company (“Share”) was 63.02 HK cents for
Year 2021 (Year 2020: 13.78 HK cents).

In 2021, with the adoption of proactive fiscal and monetary
policies by countries around the world and the continuous
increase in the global Coronavirus Disease-2019 (“COVID-19”)
vaccination rate, the world’s major economies had started
their road to economic recovery. In particular, China’s GDP
for 2021 which had increased by 8.1% year-on-year and
exceeded RMB110 trillion, achieved a ranking of second
in the world. The performance of industrial production and
exports in China was particularly outstanding during the year
under review. However, under the continuing impact of a
series of real estate market regulation policies issued by the
Chinese central government, a number of large and medium-
sized real estate developers in China experienced credit
crises in the second half of 2021, which had an adverse
impact on the capital markets of mainland China and Hong
Kong.

During the year under review, as the international supply
and consumption of crude oil recovered in tandem with the
economic recovery, the price of Brent crude oil remained
in a reasonable range of US$60 to US$80 per barrel.
The recovery of oil prices had driven up the value of the
inventory of oil refinery and petrochemical companies and
thus their performance. Nevertheless, as a result of a tax
self-review conducted as required by the relevant Chinese
tax authority in relation to the basis of calculation of sales
tax, FEBAR(EM ALERAF (Zhong Hai You Qi (Tai
Zhou) Petrochemical Company Limited*) (“Zhong Hai You
Qi"”), a joint venture of the Company principally engaged in
the business of production and trading of petroleum and
petrochemical products, incurred additional sales tax and
related tax surcharge and late fees for prior years, leading
to a significant increase in the loss incurred by Zhong Hai
You Qi for Year 2021 from that for Year 2020, which had a
material adverse impact on the Group’s financial performance
for Year 2021.

* English name is translated for identification purpose only

Annual Report 2021

B

AEBEB20021FEARBEE ARIEE
1 #91,452,609,000/8 JT & 1 & £2020%F
128318 1 & E([2020%F E |) 8 $ 15 4
317,641,000/ 7T ° 2021F & Bl AN A 7 i
([ B n 1) & K 5 18 £63.0278 1l (20204
fE 1 13.78%1l) -

20214 » BEEWM A EEY R T HEEH
BB R S BB - A I & BR2019%7 AU B ik
AEMX(HEML ) EEEEROTEIR
B MREREELBEBER T EBEE
2B LER  BEBRALESEBERLIER
8.1%W R ARBI0BET  REHLERE
HREZ -REBEFEN FEMHITEEE
FMEOFEMNRREINGZER - AW - EHEH
PR H A 8 — R B E IS IR ECR
MBEZET  hEETAPEEHERE
BE2021F T FEEBEE TEERK &
URERREBNEATHIENK T TFE
@,

REBEFERN  ARBERRAEEGEHREE
EREZLERERSRE  HHREFRHER
I EB0FE T EBOE LB MM AEEME - /A
BEASSHEFEEEEL  EMEARBRL
AARINRR - BEW - ARNIZRFE
BB HEAN SR AR EERTEEEE
IRHFEAE - EHR(EMN ALERAF
(FERR] ARAIZAELE  TEHRE
GEENEEAAMAOCERMEBS)EETH
VAR [ MR HNE B T K AR M hnE: R % 4
% BYREHEN2021 EEEENEEER
2020F E K@ L7 - EEAREE2021FER
MIERBREEERTFIFE -

X ETHEHR BT



CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT £E#H%&E

BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

Investments

While 2021 marked the beginning of the 14th Five-Year Plan
of the People’s Republic of China (“PRC”), the prevention
and resolution of material risks, in particular systemic
financial risks, would likely to remain a formidable challenge.
During the year under review, the financial regulatory
authority of the PRC gave repeated warnings about the
rebound risk of non-performing assets and urged for the
speeding up of the disposal of non-performing assets by the
market players and the resolution of the risks faced by the
small-to-medium sized financial institutions. On the other
hand, the Chinese government has fostered the development
of new businesses such as non-performing personal loans,
non-performing trusts and bankruptcy reorganisation,
contributing to the continuous orderly expansion of the non-
performing asset market.

During the year under review, the Group acquired non-
performing asset portfolios consisting of mainly non-
performing loans from certain commercial banks and an
asset management company. As at 31 December 2021,
the total principal and accrued interest of the investments
held in these non-performing asset portfolios amounted
to approximately RMB1,220 million in aggregate. During
the year under review, the Group’s investment team made
vigorous moves to expedite the judicial disposal procedures
and asset marketing for realising partial disposal gains from
the non-performing assets held by the Group. COVID-19
related travel restrictions and quarantine requirements had
made due diligence challenging, which slowed down the
merger and acquisition activities in the financial markets and
thus the business activities of the investments segment of
the Group. Global outbreaks of the pandemic during the year
under review had also driven down the prices of financial
assets, including those of the non-performing assets held
by the Group. As a result, the Group recorded a decrease
of approximately 47.55% in the profit from its investments
segment for Year 2021 as compared with that for Year 2020.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT £E#H%&E

BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)
Investments (Continued)

Notwithstanding that the real estate industry in China is
facing a new round of reshuffle, a number of high-quality
property projects are yet to be discovered by investors.
In light of the “Greater Bay Area” initiative of the PRC
government which is to spur deeper regional economic and
financial integration in Hong Kong, Macau and the Pearl
River Delta Region, the Group has become confident in
the property market in the Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macau
Greater Bay Area (“Greater Bay Area”). The Group considers
the prospects of the urban redevelopment projects in the
Greater Bay Area to be particularly promising, taking into
consideration the prime locations of the underlying urban
land of these projects in the region. As at the date of this
annual report, the Group is in the course of setting up an
investment fund which will invest in urban redevelopment
projects in the Greater Bay Area. Upon completion of the
establishment of this fund, the Group will prepare for the
launch of other fund products, aiming at gaining a foothold
in the urban redevelopment project investments in the
Greater Bay Area and creating investment returns for the
shareholders of the Company (“Shareholders”). In addition,
the Group has completed the acquisition of the entire equity
interest of a corporation licensed to carry out type 4 (advising
on securities) and type 9 (asset management) regulated
activities under the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Cap.
571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) during the year under
review. This licensed corporation will engage in the fund
management business of the Group in Hong Kong and
manage funds established by the Group investing in pre-
IPO investments, equity securities and urban redevelopment
projects.

The Group has made investments in certain enterprises in
the PRC which are classified by the Group as financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss. As at 31 December 2021,
NT Trust Scheme (as defined below) was the most significant
financial asset investment of the Group, the carrying value
of which represented approximately 4.0% of the total assets
of the Group. Further details of the NT Trust Scheme are set
out below:
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT £E#H%&E

BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)
Investments (Continued)

The Group has invested RMB505,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$617,359,000) in aggregate into a trust
(“NT Trust Scheme”) managed by BIR{Z5EABR A A (National
Trust Co., Ltd.”), which holds a portfolio of limited liability
partnerships investing in property development investments
in Zhuozhou and Shenyang in the PRC. As at 31 December
2021, the carrying value of the NT Trust Scheme as
measured at fair value through profit or loss, amounted to
approximately HK$460,235,000 (2020: HK$556,027,000)
and accounted for approximately 4.0% (31 December
2020: 4.9%) of the total assets of the Group. Out of the
loss of approximately HK$102,689,000 (2020: HK$667,000)
recorded by the Group in the change in fair value of financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss for Year 2021, loss
of approximately HK$110,618,000 (2020: HK$19,146,000)
was attributable to the fair value change of the NT Trust
Scheme as at 31 December 2021. The Group did not receive
any distribution from the NT Trust Scheme during Year 2021
(2020: Nil). Based on the current investment strategy of the
Group, its interest in the NT Trust Scheme is held for trading
purpose and classified as a current asset in its consolidated
statement of financial position.

* English name is translated for identification purpose only
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT £E#H%&E

BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)
Investments (Continued)

The objective of the Group in relation to its investments in
financial assets is to capture returns from the appreciation
in the values of its investments and to receive income
therefrom. The Board believes that the performance of the
financial asset investments of the Group is dependent on
the financial and operating performance of the investee
companies and market sentiment, which are affected by
factors such as interest rate movements, national policies
and performances of other economies globally. Among
its previously invested projects, the Group is currently
seeking exit opportunities after assessing the financial and
operational performance of these investments against the
Group’s expectation, which will allow the Group to recover
its capital and invest in projects with higher returns in the
next few years. The Group will continue to adopt a prudent
investment approach and closely monitor the performance of
the investments in its portfolio. To prepare for any potential
economic downturn and market volatilities that may arise
from further outbreaks of the pandemic, the Group will adjust
the mix in its investment portfolio by increasing its short-term
investments to improve the liquidity of the Group. In addition,
the Group will seek to explore other investment opportunities
of high growth potential for portfolio diversification, such as
urban redevelopment projects in the Greater Bay Area in
China and green investments.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT £E#H%&E

BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)
Property Leasing

The rental income from the Group’s property leasing
business decreased from approximately HK$89,128,000
in Year 2020 to approximately HK$87,376,000 in Year
2021. Revenue from the Group’s property leasing business
segment was mainly derived from East Gate Plaza, an
investment property of the Group in Beijing, China, which is
comprised of a residential section and a commercial section.
Due to the ongoing COVID-19 pandemic, the average rental
rate per square metre of East Gate Plaza declined in Year
2021 notwithstanding that its occupancy rate had maintained
at approximately 80% from Year 2020 to Year 2021,
resulting in a slight decrease in the revenue generated from
this segment for Year 2021. The Group has kept on making
timely adjustment to its property leasing business strategy by
actively recruiting new tenants for vacant areas and retaining
its existing tenants, in order to boost the occupancy rate
of the property. In light of the large-scale outbreaks of the
pandemic that took place in China in the first quarter of
2022, the chance for the rental market in Beijing to improve
is expected to be slight. As such, in addition to relying
mainly on its internal marketing staff, the Group will also step
up its marketing efforts by engaging more property agents in
securing tenants for its vacant units.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT £E#H%&E

PROSPECTS AND OUTLOOK

As 2021 drew to a close, the spread of the highly
contagious Omicron variant of COVID-19 has brought new
uncertainties to the global economic recovery. The rising
inflation and expectation of tighter U.S. monetary policy
further cast a cloud over the recovery outlook. In China,
under the continuous impact of the pandemic, the pace
of recovery varied across different domestic sectors, and
the consumption of the residents has not returned to its
pre-pandemic level. On the other hand, the pandemic
has accelerated the digital transformation of China’s
economy, with rapid increase in the growth rate of mobile
applications and investments in related fields. The proposed
“carbon neutrality” and “emission peak” strategic goals of
the Chinese government have also greatly advanced the
domestic green transformation, providing a good momentum
to the development of the green industry in the country.

At this epic time of crises and opportunities, the Group
will fully mobilise its own resources to explore investment
opportunities in high-growth areas such as technological
innovation, green development and urban redevelopment,
and at the same time improve the operating strategies of its
property leasing business in order to increase the occupancy
rate of its properties.

The Company’s joint venture, Zhong Hai You Qi, will carry
out certain technological modification projects in its existing
factories in a stable manner, optimise its product structure
and improve its product quality for the purposes of further
cost reduction and efficiency enhancement. It will also
seek support from its shareholders to develop its high-end
lubricating oil products and chemical products.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

The Group did not have any material acquisition or disposal
during Year 2021.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT £E#H%&E

FINANCIAL REVIEW

The loss attributable to the owners of the Company

increased by approximately 357.3% from approximately
HK$317,641,000 for Year 2020 to approximately
HK$1,452,609,000 for Year 2021 and the basic loss per
share attributable to ordinary equity holders of the Company
increased from 13.78 HK cents for Year 2020 to 63.02 HK
cents for Year 2021, mainly due to the following:

(i)

)

(i)

the increase in the loss from the fair value of the
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss of
the Group from approximately HK$667,000 for Year
2020 to approximately HK$102,689,000 for Year 2021,
mainly attributable to the decrease in the fair value of
the financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
held by the Group as at 31 December 2021, as a result
of the gloomy economic outlook at the end of Year
2021 in light of the global outbreak of the Omicron
variant of COVID-19 and the ongoing economic conflict
between the United States and the PRC;

the increase in the finance costs incurred by the Group
from approximately HK$216,675,000 for Year 2020 to
approximately HK$410,008,000 for Year 2021,
as a result of the issuance by the Company of the

mainly

7.5% senior secured guaranteed note in the aggregate
principal amount of US$19,800,000 (“Senior Note”) in
December 2020 and the increase in the Group’s other
borrowings during Year 2021 as compared with those
during Year 2020;

the decline in the financial performance of 12 & B
EABMR AT (Cinda Jianrun Property Company Limited*)
(“Cinda Jianrun”), an associate of the Company,
from a share of profit in Year 2020 of approximately
HK$3,325,000 to a share of loss of approximately
HK$43,669,000 in Year 2021,
decrease in the fair value of the financial assets at fair

mainly due to the

value through profit or loss held by Cinda Jianrun as at
31 December 2021; and

* English name is translated for identification purpose only
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT £E#H%&E

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

(iv) the substantial increase in the loss shared by the
Company from its joint venture, Zhong Hai You Qi,
during Year 2021 from approximately HK$404,061,000
for Year 2020 to approximately HK$1,417,546,000 for
Year 2021, mainly attributable to the additional sales
tax and related tax surcharge and late fees for prior
years incurred by Zhong Hai You Qi during Year 2021
following a tax self-review conducted as required by
the relevant tax authority in the PRC.

Revenue

Rental income of the Group for Year 2021 amounted to
approximately HK$87,376,000 (Year 2020: HK$89,128,000),
representing a slight decrease of approximately 1.97%,
which was mainly attributable to the decrease in the average
rental rate per square metre of the rental properties of the
Group during Year 2021.

Other income, gains and losses

The increase in other income, gains and losses from
approximately HK$285,084,000 for Year 2020 to
approximately HK$348,441,000 for Year 2021 was mainly
due to (i) the increase in the interest income generated
through advances by the Group during Year 2021; and (ii)
the increase in the gains on disposal of financial assets and
investments by the Group during Year 2021.

Change in fair value of financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

The increase in the loss in the fair value of the financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss held by the
Group from approximately HK$667,000 for Year 2020 to
approximately HK$102,689,000 Year 2021 was mainly
attributable to the increase in the amount of fair value loss
for certain financial assets and non-performing assets held
by the Group as at 31 December 2021 due to the dim
economic outlook at the end of Year 2021.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT £E#H%&E

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Finance costs

The increase in finance costs of the Group from
approximately HK$216,675,000 for Year 2020 to
approximately HK$410,008,000 for Year 2021 was mainly
resulted from the issuance by the Company of the Senior
Note in the aggregate principal amount of US$19,800,000
in December 2020 and the increase in the Group’s other
borrowings during Year 2021 as compared with those during
Year 2020.

Share of profits or losses of associates

The share of profits or losses of associates mainly
represented the Company’s share of the loss for Year
2021 from its associate, Cinda Jianrun, of approximately
HK$43,669,000, which had turned from its share of the
profit of Cinda Jianrun for Year 2020 of approximately
HK$3,325,000, mainly due to the decrease in the fair value
of the financial assets at fair value through profit or loss held
by Cinda Jianrun as at 31 December 2021.

Share of profits or losses of joint ventures

The share of profits or losses of joint ventures represented
the Company’s share of the loss from its joint venture,
Zhong Hai You Qi, for Year 2021 of approximately
HK$1,417,546,000, which had substantially increased
from that of approximately HK$404,061,000 for Year 2020,
mainly attributable to the additional sales tax and related tax
surcharge and late fees for prior years incurred by Zhong
Hai You Qi during Year 2021 following a tax self-review
conducted as required by the relevant tax authority in the
PRC.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT £E#H%&E

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Loan receivables

P CIRE (&)

L E N

2021 2020

20215 20204

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FET

Carrying amounts under non-current assets  3ERENVEEIE FEREIE - 231,932
Carrying amounts under current assets mEEEETREE 2,239,727 1,207,369
Total R 2,239,727 1,439,301

The increase in the Group’s total loan receivables from
approximately HK$1,439,301,000 as at 31 December 2020
to approximately HK$2,239,727,000 as at 31 December
2021 was mainly attributable to the advance of short term
loans to business partners and certain third parties for better
returns during Year 2021.

Deposits, prepayments and other receivables

The increase in the Group’s deposits, prepayments and other
receivables from approximately HK$420,467,000 as at 31
December 2020 to approximately HK$714,075,000 as at 31
December 2021 was mainly attributable to (i) the increase in
the deposits paid by the Group during Year 2021 to acquire
non-performing assets; and (i) the increase in the accrual
of interest receivables due to more advances having been
made by the Group during Year 2021.

Accrued charges, rental deposits and other payables

The increase in the Group’s accrued charges, rental deposits
and other payables from approximately HK$287,160,000 as
at 31 December 2020 to approximately HK$405,116,000
as at 31 December 2021 was mainly attributable to (i) the
increase in the accrual of interest payables due to the
increase in the Group’s borrowings during Year 2021; and
(i) the increase in receipts in advance due to the disposal of
non-performing assets by the Group during Year 2021.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT £E#H%&E

TREASURY POLICY

The Group adopts a conservative treasury policy under
which the Group keeps its investment costs under control
and manages the returns of its investments efficiently. The
Group has guidelines in place to monitor and control its
investment risk exposure and to manage its capital. The
Group also strives to reduce its exposure to credit risk by
performing ongoing credit assessments and evaluations
of the financial status of its customers. The Board closely
reviews the Group’s liquidity position to ensure the Group
has adequate liquidity to meet its funding requirements at all
times.

Cash Position

EH R

AEERDRTZEBRE - &b - AEE
—EEEHRERA  UTEMEREAEKRED
e AKREERIERS  BEMEEEME
WMZIRERBNMEEREERN - NEBEE
ETHBEEETHRFEETPZBBMN
R BARLHAERZEERR EFa®
NEGSAEB ZRBESAN - ERAKE
EEARBEIEENRDECRNTEEDST

BEMR

2021 2020
20214 20204

HK$’000 HK$’000

FETT FET

Pledged bank deposits HEIRIRITIF K 24,450 23,753
Cash and bank balances RE NRIBTTES 116,755 769,767
Total Pk 141,205 793,520

The decrease in the cash and bank balances of the
Group (excluding pledged bank deposits) to approximately
HK$116,755,000 as at 31 December 2021 from that of
approximately HK$769,767,000 as at 31 December 2020
was mainly due to (i) the capital injection and the advances
made by the Group to a newly formed joint venture of the
Company in Year 2021; and (i) the increase in the deposits
paid by the Group for the acquisition of non-performing
assets during Year 2021. The cash and bank balances
(including pledged bank deposits) of the Group as at 31
December 2021 were mainly denominated in HK$, RMB and
United States dollars (“US$”).
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT £E#H%&E

TREASURY POLICY (Continued)
Cash Position (Continued)

The Group conducted its business almost exclusively in
RMB except that certain transactions were conducted in
HK$ and US$. The conversion of RMB into HK$, US$ or
other foreign currencies has been based on the rates set
by the People’s Bank of China. The value of RMB against
HK$, US$ and other foreign currencies may fluctuate and is
affected by factors, such as changes in the PRC’s political
and economic conditions. The Group has not adopted any
financial instruments for hedging purposes. However, the
Group will constantly assess the foreign exchange risk it
encounters so as to decide on the hedging policy required
against the possible foreign exchange risk that may arise.

Working Capital and Borrowings
As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s total borrowings

amounted to approximately HK$5,036,159,000 in aggregate.
The composition of these borrowings is summarised below:

ERIR(E)
BEMRR (&)

BETRXZUETRETETIN AEERB
REDEBHAAREET - ARELE
TC RS EMINE HIRBREARBITR
ERERN I - ARBHET XX hEM
SNEMBERSRY - XRPEBUS R
RRNECEFRAROZE - KE.IH%FHEE
& @ T RIEL I AE - AR E R
%%ﬁ%ﬁfrﬁﬁ%ﬁ’ﬂﬁl\ﬁ@ﬁﬁ : L‘Aﬁ‘%ﬁfﬁ%tﬂfﬁ
# SN [ g B TE P S RO SRR -

BEEESREER

R2021F12A31H » REBZ(EERBENA
5,036,159,000/8 7 ° %5 & E AR AL a0
™~

2021 2020

20214 20204

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FET

Short term borrowings WMHIEE 541,037 217,848

Long term borrowings RHIEE 3,193,628 1,571,112

Senior note BrERE _ 151,461

Convertible bonds AR ES 1,301,494 1,232,463

Total borrowings fEE4%E 5,036,159 3,172,884
Cash and bank balances (including pledged IR & NiRTTE&H#(BIEDER

bank deposits) H|ITFF 141,205 793,520

Net borrowings BEEFEm 4,894,954 2,379,364
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT £E#H%&E

TREASURY POLICY (Continued)
Working Capital and Borrowings (Continued)

Interests for all borrowings of the Group for Year 2021 were
charged at fixed and floating rates ranging from 5.35% per
annum to 12% per annum (Year 2020: 5.35% per annum to
12% per annum).

Out of the long term and short term borrowings of the
Group which remained outstanding as at 31 December
2021, approximately HK$176,700,000 (31 December 2020:
Nil), approximately HK$3,552,320,000 (31 December 2020:
HK$1,691,363,000) and approximately HK$5,645,000
(31 December 2020: HK$97,597,000) were denominated
in HK$, RMB and US$ respectively, while approximately
HK$1,912,311,000 (31 December 2020: HK$587,886,000)
carried floating interest rates and approximately
HK$1,822,354,000 (31 December 2020: HK$1,201,074,000)
carried fixed interest rates. As at 31 December 2021, the
Group also had outstanding convertible bonds due in July
2022, which were of the aggregate principal amount of
HK$1,150,000,000 with interest payable at 7% per annum.

Silver Grant International Holdings Group Limited
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT £E#H%&E

TREASURY POLICY (Continued)
Working Capital and Borrowings (Continued)

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s cash and bank
balances (including pledged bank deposits) were
approximately HK$141,205,000 (31 December 2020:
HK$793,520,000) in aggregate, out of which approximately
35.8% (31 December 2020: 5.6%), approximately 57.2%
(31 December 2020: 92.5%) and approximately 7.0% (31
December 2020: 1.9%) were denominated in HK$, RMB
and US$ respectively. As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s
total borrowings were approximately HK$5,036,159,000
(31 December 2020: HK$3,172,884,000), which comprised
(1) a loan in the principal amount of approximately
RMB1,600,000,000 (31 December 2020: Nil) repayable by
instalments with the last instalment due in 2026; (2) a loan
in the principal amount of approximately RMB670,000,000
(31 December 2020: RMB670,000,000) due in December
2023; (3) a loan in the principal amount of approximately
RMB97,200,000 (31 December 2020: RMB120,000,000)
due in December 2022; (4) a loan in the principal amount
of approximately RMB110,700,000 (31 December 2020:
RMB123,000,000) due in December 2022; (5) loans in the
aggregate principal amount of approximately RMB28,128,000
(31 December 2020: RMB28,128,000) repayable on
demand; (6) a loan in the principal amount of approximately
RMB145,500,000 (31 December 2020: Nil) due in February
2024; (7) a loan in the principal amount of approximately
RMB290,000,000 (31 December 2020: Nil) due in April 2024;
(8) convertible bonds in the aggregate principal amount of
HK$1,150,000,000 (31 December 2020: HK$1,150,000,000)
due in July 2022; and (9) a loan in the principal amount of
HK$180,000,000 (31 December 2020: Nil) due in December
2022, and the Group’s net current assets were approximately
HK$1,776,269,000 (31 December 2020: HK$3,221,138,000).
In addition, the Group had unutilised loan facilities of
approximately RMB380,000,000 in aggregate as at 31
December 2021 (31 December 2020: Nil). There is generally
no material seasonality of the borrowing requirements of
the Group. Based on the foregoing information, the Board
is confident that the Group has adequate working capital to
meet its daily operations and to finance its future expansion.
Notwithstanding this, the Board will seek to dispose of the
Group’s short and medium term investments to replenish
the Group’s funds in order to further enhance the Group’s
working capital to a stronger level.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT £E#H%&E

TREASURY POLICY (Continued)
Working Capital and Borrowings (Continued)

As at 31 December 2021, the gearing ratio (calculated as
interest-bearing bank and other borrowings and convertible
bonds issued by the Company over equity attributable to
owners of the Company) and the current ratio (calculated
as current assets over current liabilities) of the Group were
96% (31 December 2020: 48%) and 1.8x (31 December
2020: 5.2x) respectively. These ratios are key performance
indicators used by the management of the Group to measure
the Group’s level of leverage to ensure the Group has the
liquidity to meet its financial obligations at all times. The
Group will strive to improve its liquidity by expediting its
collection of outstanding loan receivables and disposal of
financial asset investments (including equity investments and
non-performing loans) which will bring a reasonable return to
the Group.

As at 31 December 2021, notwithstanding that the Group
had net current assets of approximately HK$1,776 million,
the Group’s interest-bearing bank and other borrowings and
convertible bonds in an aggregate amount of approximately
HK$1,843 million are due to be repayable within the next
12 months while its cash and bank balances amounted to
approximately HK$117 million. Notwithstanding the aforesaid,
the consolidated financial statements of the Group for Year
2021 have been prepared on a going concern basis. The
Directors have given careful consideration to the Group’s
future liquidity requirements, operating performance and
available sources of financing in assessing the Group’s ability
to operate as going concern. To manage its working capital
and improve its financial position, the Group has formulated
the following plans and measures:
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()  the Group will continue to implement measures to
speed up the collection of outstanding loan receivables;

(i)  the Group will continue to take measures to expedite
the disposal of financial asset investments, including
equity investments and non-performing assets; and

(iiiy  the Group is actively negotiating with the holders of the
convertible bonds for refinancing its convertible bonds
due in 2022.

Having reviewed the Group’s cash flow projections prepared
by management, which cover a period of not less than
twelve months from 31 December 2021, the Directors are
of the opinion that, taking into account the abovementioned
plans and measures, the Group will have sufficient working
capital to finance its operations and to meet its financial
obligations as and when they fall due. Accordingly, the
Directors are satisfied that it is appropriate to prepare the
consolidated financial statements of the Group on a going
concern basis.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2021, the Group pledged certain
investment properties and leasehold land and buildings
with aggregate carrying values of approximately
HK$2,650,502,000 (31 December 2020: HK$2,542,850,000)
and HK$198,500,000 (31 December 2020: HK$198,800,000)
respectively to secure general banking facilities granted to
the Group and other payable due to an independent third
party. At 31 December 2021, bank deposits of approximately
HK$24,450,000 (31 December 2020: HK$23,753,000) were
pledged to banks to secure banking facilities granted to a
joint venture of the Company.
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CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

The Group’s capital expenditures in 2022 are expected to
be settled by cash through internal resources of the Group.
While the Group’s total capital commitments of approximately
HK$183,374,000 as at 31 December 2021 were made
entirely for the purchase of unlisted equity securities, its total
capital commitments of approximately HK$327,791,000 as at
31 December 2020 were made for the purchase of unlisted
equity securities of approximately HK$178,147,000 and non-
performing assets of approximately HK$149,644,000. Other
than as disclosed, the management of the Group does not
expect there to be any plans for material investments or
capital assets in 2022 with reference to the current situation
as at the date of this annual report.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2021, the Group provided corporate
guarantees of approximately HK$3,841,990,000 (2020:
HK$3,630,618,000) in respect of loans granted to a joint
venture.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

As at 31 December 2021, the shareholders’ funds of the
Group decreased by approximately HK$1,328,410,000 to
approximately HK$5,231,344,000 (31 December 2020:
HK$6,559,754,000), representing a decline of approximately
20%. The decrease was mainly due to the loss attributable
to the owners of the Company in Year 2021, which was
partially offset by the increase in the exchange gains on
foreign exchange translation and the revaluation gain of
leasehold properties in Year 2021.
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HUMAN RESOURCES

The Group had in aggregate 84 employees in Hong Kong
and the PRC as at 31 December 2021 (31 December
2020: 104). The Group’s overall staff costs amounted
to approximately HK$76,641,000 for Year 2021 (Year
2020: HK$66,788,000). The employees of the Group are
remunerated according to their respective job nature, market
conditions, individual performance and qualifications. Other
staff benefits include annual bonus and retirement benefits.
The Directors’ remuneration is determined based on their
qualifications, experience, duties and responsibilities, the
Company’s remuneration policy and the prevailing market
conditions.

The Group encourages sustainable training of its employees
through coaching and further studies. In-house training was
provided to eligible employees during Year 2021, including
training on updates of accounting standards and market
updates.

The Group has not experienced any significant problem
with its employees or disruption to its operations due to
labour discipline nor has it experienced any difficulty in the
recruitment and retention of experienced staff. The Group
has maintained a good relationship with its employees.
Certain senior management and staff have been working for
the Group for many years.
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FINAL DIVIDEND

The Company aims to maximise the interests of its
shareholders and at the same time maintaining a strong
and healthy financial position, so as to prepare the Group
for investment opportunities that may arise from time to
time and its sustainable development in the future. In
deciding whether to propose a dividend and in determining
the dividend amount, the Board will take into account the
Group’s earnings performance, financial position, investment
requirements and future prospects. In addition, the Board
will also take into account any restrictive covenants imposed
by banks and other funding facilities granted to the Group
from time to time and any other factors the Board may deem
appropriate and/or relevant.

The Board has resolved not to recommend the payment of a
final dividend for Year 2021 (Year 2020: Nil).

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of its directors, during
Year 2021 and up to the date of this annual report, the
Company has maintained sufficient public float of not less
than 25% of the Company’s issued shares as required under
the Rules (“Listing Rules”) Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock
Exchange”).

COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”)
as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its own
code of conduct regarding Directors’ securities transactions.
All Directors have confirmed that, following specific enquiry
by the Company, they complied with the required standards
set out in the Model Code throughout Year 2021.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

During Year 2021, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company’s listed securities.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my
appreciation and gratitude to those resigned directors for
their contribution and service to the Group during their
tenure and give my warmest welcome to those newly
appointed directors for joining the Group. Moreover, |
would like to express my appreciation and gratitude to the
Shareholders for their support and all the Group’s employees
for their hard work and dedication in carrying out their duties
and in achieving the Group’s business goals.

On behalf of the Board of
Silver Grant International Holdings Group Limited

Chu Hing Tsung
Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director

Hong Kong, 21 April 2022

Annual Report 2021

BE HEIBELEAQRTAZLTES

R2021F & » RNARISE KB A A&
BE HLEIBEIARREAMLHES

&

FAEREXEFE AEUBHTINEEBHE
BAKBEEH 2 BB ERBBAROHE -
WEHNEDRHRENSTLESMBAEE -
SEsh - NEEBBEUBRNR I FHME
BB T80 1% &Y 38 0 AR 755 LA S BRAN 5% Bl Y
BR  AARKRREZSRARFHARIDH

=z
=)
T

EEEED
REEBREREERRDE

REMR
TR THARR RPN ITEE

E 0 202264 H21H

T —FFR



26

PROFILE OF DIRECTORS EEf/)

Executive Directors
Chu Hing Tsung (alias Zhu Qing Yi) (Chairman)

Mr. Chu, aged 52, was appointed as a non-executive
Director and the chairman of the Board on 29 January
2019. He has been re-designated from a non-executive
Director to an executive Director and appointed as the chief
executive officer and one of the authorised representatives
of the Company under Rule 3.05 of the Listing Rules with
effect from 1 August 2021. Mr. Chu is also the chairman of
the nomination committee of the Company. Mr. Chu is the
chairman and an executive director of Zhuguang Holdings
Group Company Limited (“Zhuguang Holdings”), a company
the shares of which are listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange (Stock code: 1176), which is a substantial
Shareholder (within the meaning of the Listing Rules) whose
interest in the Shares falls to be disclosed to the Company
under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”). Mr. Chu has over
20 years of extensive experience in corporate management
and property development in the PRC.

Luo Zhihai

Mr. Luo, aged 59, was appointed as an executive Director
on 29 January 2019. He is a member of the remuneration
committee of the Company. Prior to joining the Company, Mr.
Luo worked in China Construction Bank, Huajian International
(Macau) Co., Ltd., China Cinda Asset Management Co., Ltd.
(“China Cinda”) (a company the shares of which are listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (Stock codes: 01359
and 04607 (Preference Shares)), which is a substantial
Shareholder (within the meaning of the Listing Rules) whose
interest in the Shares falls to be disclosed to the Company
under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the
SFO) and Guangdong Yuecai Asset Management Co., Ltd..
He has served successively as the head of Xiaohuayuan
Office of Meixian Sub-branch of China Construction Bank,
deputy general manager of the international business
department of Meizhou Branch of China Construction Bank,
general manager of the international business department
of Zhuhai Branch of China Construction Bank, managing
director of Huajian International (Macau) Co., Ltd., the head
of the entity department, the investment banking department,
the marketing department and the business department of
China Cinda Guangzhou Office and deputy managing director
of Guangdong Yuecai Asset Management Co., Ltd.. Mr. Luo
received his Bachelor's Degree in engineering from South
China University of Technology in 1983. He has accumulated
more than 30 years of experiences in banking, investment
banking, real estate investment and non-performing financial
assets, especially with extensive practical experiences in the
assets management industry. Meanwhile, Mr. Luo has a high
reputation in the PRC’s local assets management industry.
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Executive Directors (Continued)
Tang Lunfei

Mr. Tang, aged 43, was appointed as an executive Director
on 11 January 2021. He obtained his Bachelor of Economics
from the Chongging Institute of Technology of the PRC
in June 2000 and his Master of National Economics from
the Sichuan University of the PRC in June 2003. Mr. Tang
has over 16 years of experience in the financial industry.
He joined China Cinda Asset Management Corporation
(currently known as China Cinda Asset Management Co.,
Ltd. (i.e. China Cinda), as the business manager of its
Chengdu office from July 2003 to April 2005. Subsequently,
he worked at the Financial Stability Bureau of The People’s
Bank of China from May 2005 to June 2006, where he was
responsible for resolving the risks associated with securities
companies. Mr. Tang then joined Cinda Securities Company
Limited from June 2006 to June 2012 with his last position
as the business director. From June 2012 to July 2019, he
worked at China Cinda with his last position as the chief
and specialised approver of various departments of the
company. Since July 2019, Mr. Tang has been serving as
the chief risk and compliance officer of China Cinda (HK)
Holdings Company Limited (“Cinda HK”), which is a wholly-
owned subsidiary of China Cinda. Both China Cinda and
Cinda HK are substantial Shareholders (within the meaning
of the Listing Rules) whose interests in the Shares fall to be
disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2
and 3 of Part XV of the SFO. Mr. Tang has been appointed as (i)
an executive director of Zhongchang International Holdings
Group Limited (“Zhongchang”), a company the shares of
which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
(Stock code: 859) with effect from 13 May 2020; and (i) a
non-executive Director of Modern Land (China) Co., Limited,
a company the shares of which are listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange (Stock code: 1107) (“Modern Land”)
with effect from 24 March 2022.
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Executive Directors (Continued)
Wang Ping

Mr. Wang, aged 65, has been appointed as an executive
Director with effect from 1 August 2021. He has been
appointed as the executive president of the Company since
2019 and is responsible for the management of various
departments of the Group, including the risk management
department and the legal department. Mr. Wang previously
worked in JTFABIEEAEZ (Jiangxi Financial University*)
as a deputy professor, a mentor of research students in
master degree, a deputy officer of the finance faculty, and
an officer in the research students faculty, etc. Since the
mid-1990s, Mr. Wang had held various positions, such as
department head, general manager and second tier branch
manager in various departments, including the finance
department and the audit department in the Guangdong
Province Branch of China Construction Bank. Mr. Wang
has edited more than 10 professional academic books and
has published over 20 professional papers. He hosted and
participated in the projects supported by the National Social
Science Fund of China. He had solid experience in finance,
accounting, economic theory, commercial bank operations
and risk management. Mr. Wang is now the executive vice-
chairman of the Guangdong Venture Capital and Private
Equity Association, the vice-chairman of the Guangdong
Association of Management Accountants and the external
tutor of various renowned academic institutions, including
the Sun Yat-sen University, the Jinan University and the
Guangdong University of Finance and Economics.

* English name is translated for identification purpose only
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Non-executive Director
Chen Zhiwei

Mr. Chen, aged 37, was appointed as a non-executive
Director on 29 January 2019. Mr. Chen is the chairman
and an executive director of Zhongchang. Mr. Chen is
the assistant general manager and managing director of
the investment department of Cinda HK, responsible for
managing Cinda HK’s investment and financing businesses.
Cinda HK is a substantial Shareholder (within the meaning
of the Listing Rules), whose interest in the Shares falls to be
disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions
2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO. Mr. Chen graduated from
Tsinghua University with a bachelor’s degree in Economics
in 2004. He then graduated from the National University
of Singapore with a master’'s degree in Science (Estate
Management) in 2009. Mr. Chen was the executive assistant
to the chairman of TIG Group in Singapore between 2007
and 2010, responsible for TIG Group’s private equity
investment business in the Greater China region. Between
2005 and 2007, Mr. Chen was a research scholar at the
National University of Singapore. Mr. Chen has over 10
years of investment and research experience in the finance
industry. From 30 December 2016 to 23 March 2022,
Mr. Chen was a non-executive Director of Modern Land.
Mr. Chen is also a non-executive director of the following
companies, the shares of which are listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange: (i) China Fortune Financial Group
Limited (Stock code: 290); and (i) South Gobi Resources
Limited (Stock code: 1878).
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Zhang Lu

Mr. Zhang, aged 69, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 4 May 2000. He is also the
chairman of the remuneration committee of the Company
and a member of the audit committee and the nomination
committee of the Company. Mr. Zhang graduated from the
Sichuan International Studies University in 1979. He was the
General Manager of CITIC Central Tanshi Money Brokering
Company Limited, which is a joint venture of CITIC Trust
Co., Ltd. engaged in the money brokering business for
financial institutions. From 1987 to 2000, Mr. Zhang was the
executive vice president and treasurer of CITIC Ka Wah Bank
Limited, responsible for both the Treasury and International
Business. From 1974 to 1987, he worked for Bank of China
and CITIC Industrial Bank. Mr. Zhang has engaged in the
banking sector for over 35 years.

Liang Qing

Mr. Liang, aged 68, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 28 February 2014. He is also
a member of the audit committee and the remuneration
committee of the Company. Mr. Liang is also currently an
executive director and an independent non-executive director
of Jiangxi Copper Company Limited (“Jiangxi Copper”) (Stock
code: 358) and Sinotruk (Hong Kong) Limited (“Sinotruk”)
(Stock code: 3808) respectively. The H shares of Jiangxi
Copper and Sinotruk are listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange. Mr. Liang graduated from the Beijing Open
University (formerly known as Beijing Radio and Television
University) in 1985, where he studied Chinese language and
literature. Mr. Liang was a director and the general manager
of China Minmetal H.K. (Holdings) Limited and has now
retired. Mr. Liang has abundant experience in international
trading and investment.
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Independent Non-executive Directors (Continued)

Hung Muk Ming

Mr. Hung, aged 57, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director on 23 December 2004. He is also the
chairman of the audit committee of the Company and a
member of the nomination committee of the Company. Mr.
Hung is a Certified Public Accountant (Practicing) and is a
Fellow CPA of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. He is also a fellow member of the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants, a fellow of the Hong
Kong Institute of Directors and an associate of the Hong
Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries and the Institute of
Chartered Secretaries and Administrators. Mr. Hung received
his bachelor degree in social sciences from the University
of Hong Kong in 1990, and a master degree in corporate
governance from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University
in 2008. Mr. Hung has over 25 years of experience in the
accounting and audit sector. Mr. Hung was an independent
non-executive director of Century Sage Scientific Holdings
Limited, a company the shares of which are listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange (Stock code: 1450),
from 13 June 2014 to 28 September 2021. Mr. Hung is
also an independent non-executive director of the following
companies, the shares of which are listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange: (i) Cinda International Holdings
Limited (Stock code: 111); (i) CA Cultural Technology Group
Limited (formerly known as China Animation Characters
Company Limited) (Stock code: 1566); and (iii) IBO
Technology Company Limited (Stock code: 2708).
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Chen Yongcun

Mr. Chen, aged 57, re-joined the Company on 1 May
2016. Mr. Chen is one of the deputy general managers
of the Company. He is currently the legal representative
and the managing director of East Gate (Beijing) Property
Management Co., Ltd (formerly known as Beijing East Gate
Development Co., Ltd.), which is a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company. Mr. Chen is responsible for the Group’s
property development and investments in the mainland
China. Mr. Chen previously worked at China Construction
Bank and China Cinda. During the period from 25 October
2000 to 27 February 2008, Mr. Chen was an executive
Director. Mr. Chen graduated from the Qing Hua University
with a bachelor degree in engineering and a master
degree in business management. He has over 20 years of
experience in finance and investment.

Tang Junhong

Mr. Tang, aged 67, joined the Group in 2005. He was
appointed as the executive president of the Company in
2019 and he retired on 31 December 2021. Before his
retirement from the Group, Mr. Tang was responsible for the
Group’s petrochemical investment and related work and he
was also the chairman of the board of directors of both Z=
INEZAIBR AR (Tai Zhou Dong Thai Petrochemical
Company Limited*) (“TZ Dong Thai”), an indirect non-wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company, and Zhong Hai You Qi,
a company in which the Company holds 51% of its equity
interest through TZ Dong Thai. Mr. Tang graduated from
the Tianjin Industrial Institute with a major in petrochemical
industries and obtained a Master Degree from #ibz2 i@
Bl KZ (Hubei Jiatong Technology University*). Mr. Tang
also worked as senior management in China Petroleum &
Chemical Corporation, a company the shares of which are
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (Stock
code: 0386), Jiejiang Zhong Fu Petrochemical, Shanghai
Zhong Ming Petrochemical, etc. Mr. Tang has over 40 years
of experience in management and petrochemical industries.

* English name is translated for identification purpose only
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Ng Hoi Leung, Leo

Mr. Ng, aged 48, has been appointed as the chief
financial officer, the company secretary and an authorised
representative of the Company with effect from 17 July
2019. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Ng was the financial
controller of Ping An Securities Group (Holdings) Limited
(Stock code: 0231), and the financial controller and the
company secretary of Zhuguang Holdings (Stock code:
1176), which is a substantial Shareholder (within the meaning
of the Listing Rules) and whose interest in the Shares
falls to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions
of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, both being
companies the shares of which are listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange. He was also the chief financial officer
of a real estate company and a company whose subsidiary
was engaged in the media business in the PRC. Mr. Ng
has over 15 years of accounting and audit experience. He
had worked in PricewaterhouseCoopers, an accounting firm
from February 1997 to April 2010. Mr. Ng holds a Master of
Commerce from the Macquarie University in Australia and
is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and a member of the Certified Practising
Accountants of Australia.
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Weng Jian

Mr. Weng, aged 39, has been appointed as the executive
assistant and the executive president of the Company since
June 2020 and August 2021, respectively. He is responsible
for human resources and administrative management of
the Group. He graduated from Sun Yat-sen University with
a bachelor degree in Law and a master degree in Law. He
previously worked in the Guangdong Provincial Supervisory
Commission and the Office of the Guangdong Provincial
Government, where he was engaged in the management
of anti-corruption, legal policy and comprehensive
administration. After resigning from public office, Mr. Weng
joined Zhuguang Holdings, which is a substantial Shareholder
(within the meaning of the Listing Rules) whose interest in
the Shares falls to be disclosed to the Company under the
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, and
successively served as its general manager of the Group
President Office (Human Resources Centre), general manager
of the Legal Affairs Centre, member of the Investment
Decision Committee, general manager of the Investment
Centre and chairman of the industrial real estate sector. He
is also a member of the Guangdong Youth Federation, a
member of the Guangdong Law Society, a deputy director
of the Legal Committee of Guangdong Three Olds Reform
Association and a practical instructor for postgraduates of
the Jinan University.
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The Group is committed to the long-term sustainability of
its businesses and the communities with which it engages.
The Group pursues this business approach by managing its
business prudently and executing management decisions
with due care and attention.

Stakeholder Engagement

The Group has maintained a continuous dialogue with
its stakeholders that include its customers, employees,
regulators and the public. The Group seeks to balance the
views and interests of these various stakeholders through
constructive conversations with a view to charting a course
for the long-term prosperity of the Group and the communities.

Customers

Customer feedback plays an important role in the operation
of the Group. Various channels, such as telephone hotlines
and customer service front desks, have been established to
maintain interactive communications between the Group and
its customers.

Employees

Hard-working and dedicated employees are the backbone
of a company. The Group treasures its loyal and industrious
staff members. In addition, it has adopted non-discriminatory
hiring and employment practices and it strives to provide a
safe and healthy workplace for its employees.

Government & Public

Tough efforts have been exerted to ensure compliance with
the laws and regulations of the jurisdictions in which the
Group operates. The public at large is also an important
stakeholder of the Group. A stable and prosperous
community is important to the steady growth and long-term
future prospects of the Group.
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Workplace Quality

As at 31 December 2021, the Group employed 84 staff
members (31 December 2020: 104). Total employee costs
for Year 2021, including Directors’ emoluments, amounted to
approximately HK$76,641,000 (Year 2020: HK$66,788,000).

The quality of its employees is crucial for the Group to
maintain a competitive position in the market. With this
in mind, the Group seeks to attract and retain talented
individuals who are committed to achieving goals and
objectives of the Group and provides a work environment
that nurtures values such as fair play, respect and integrity.
The Group values career development of its staff and
provides ongoing training to them according to the needs
of the Group. The Group offers competitive compensation
packages to its employees, who are rewarded according to
their performance. The Group reviews its salary structure,
working conditions, bonuses and incentive systems annually.

The Group’s employees are entitled to benefits such as
medical cover, provident funds and share options scheme.
The Group is committed to providing a healthy and safe
workplace for all its employees and complying with all
applicable health and safety laws and regulations. Health
and safety considerations are incorporated into the design,
operations and maintenance of the premises of the Group.
Employees are provided with appropriate job skills and safety
training and are educated with regard to their responsibilities
for achieving the health and safety objectives of the Group.
The Group also communicates with its employees on
occupational health and safety issues.

Silver Grant International Holdings Group Limited
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Environmental Protection

The Group recognises the importance of maintaining
environmental sustainability in its daily operations and acts
in all material respects in compliance with the laws and
regulations relating to environmental protection and pollution
control. Energy saving measures are enforced in the Group’s
offices and commercial premises for the purpose of reducing
electricity consumption and greenhouse gas emissions.

The Group has also adopted policies to promote recycling
and use of eco-friendly stationery, plus a series of measures
to save paper and energy, including the use of doublesided
printing and energy-efficient office equipment and
appliances, resulting in more efficient use of resources, as
well as reduction of waste.

Operating Practices

The Group is committed to adhering to the highest ethical
standards. All employees are given a code of conduct (“Code”)
to which they are required to adhere. The Code explicitly
prohibits employees from soliciting, accepting or offering
bribes or any form of advantage. The Code also outlines
the Group’s expectations on its staff with regard to conflicts
of interest. All managers are expected to communicate and
instill a culture of good corporate governance to their staff.

ESG Report

The Company engaged external professionals to review the
environmental, social and governance (“ESG”) policies of
the Group for Year 2021 and issue an ESG report for Year
2021 (“2021 ESG Report”) for the Board’s consideration.
The Company will publish the 2021 ESG Report on the
“ESG Reports” section of the website of the Company at
www.silvergrant.com.hk and the website of the Stock
Exchange at www.hkexnews.hk on or before 31 May 2022.
No hardcopy of the 2021 ESG Report will be provided to the
Shareholders unless specific request has been made by the
Shareholders.
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Corporate Governance Practices

The Company is committed to establishing and maintaining
a standard of corporate governance that is consistent with
market practices. The Company complied with all mandatory
provisions set out in the Corporate Governance Code (“CG
Code”) contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules then in
force throughout Year 2021, except for code provisions A.2.1
and E.1.2 of the CG Code.

Code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code stipulates that the
roles of chairman and chief executive officer should be
separate and should not be the same individual. As a result
of the appointment of Mr. Chu Hing Tsung (alias Mr. Zhu
Qing Yi) (“Mr. Chu”) as the chief executive officer of the
Company on 1 August 2021 following the resignation of Mr.
Huang Jiajue, Mr. Chu has assumed the roles of both the
chairman of the Board (“Chairman”) and the chief executive
officer of the Company (“Chief Executive Officer”). The
Board believes that vesting both the roles of chairman and
chief executive officer in the same person has the benefit of
ensuring consistent leadership within the Group and enables
more effective and efficient overall strategic planning for the
Group. The Board considers that the balance of power and
authority for the present arrangement will not be impaired
and this structure will enable the Company to make and
implement decisions efficiently.

Code provision E.1.2 of the CG Code stipulates that the
Chairman should attend the annual general meeting of the
Company. Mr. Chu, the Chairman, did not attend the annual
general meeting of the Company held on 10 June 2021 due
to his prior engagement. The Chairman will endeavor to
attend all future annual general meetings of the Company
unless unexpected or special circumstances preventing him
from doing so.

The Board will continue to monitor and review the Group’s
corporate governance practices to ensure compliance.

The following summarises the Company’s key corporate
governance practices.
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Board of Directors

Board Composition

The Board is responsible for formulating the Group’s long-
term strategies, setting business development goals,
assessing the results of management policies, monitoring
management’s performance and ensuring the existence of
an effective internal control system. The Board is led by the
Chairman. The Chairman, with the support of the company
secretary (“Company Secretary”) of the Company, is
responsible for ensuring that the Directors receive adequate
and complete information in a timely manner and appropriate
briefing on issues arising at the Board meetings and that all
key and appropriate issues are discussed by the Board in a
timely manner.

The management, led by the Chief Executive Officer, focuses
on implementing objectives, policies and strategies approved
and delegated by the Board. The Chief Executive Officer
is in charge of the Group’s day-to-day management and
operations and is also responsible for developing strategic
plans and formulating the organisational structure, control
systems, internal procedures and processes for the Board’s
approval.

The independent non-executive Directors serve the important

function of ensuring and monitoring the basis of an effective
corporate governance framework of the Group.
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Board of Directors (Continued)
Board Composition (Continued)

As at the date of this annual report, the Board comprises
four executive Directors, namely, Mr. Chu Hing Tsung (who
has been redesignated from a non-executive Director to an
executive Director and appointed as the Chief Executive
Officer with effect from 1 August 2021), Mr. Luo Zhihai, Mr.
Tang Lunfei (who has been appointed with effect from 11
January 2021) and Mr. Wang Ping (who has been appointed
with effect from 1 August 2021), one non-executive Director,
namely, Mr. Chen Zhiwei, and three independent non-
executive Directors, namely, Mr. Liang Qing, Mr. Zhang Lu
and Mr. Hung Muk Ming. Mr. Huang Jiajue has resigned as
an executive Director and the Chief Executive Officer with
effect from 1 August 2021.

The biographies of the Directors are set out on pages 26
to 31 of this annual report. The number of the independent
non-executive Directors represents no less than one-third of
the Board members.

Members of the Board possess the appropriate expertise
and skills to discharge their duties.
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Board of Directors (Continued)
Board Composition (Continued)

The Company’s Directors, Mr. Tang Lunfei and Mr. Chen
Zhiwei are also directors and/or senior officers of Cinda HK.
Mr. Chu Hing Tsung, the Chairman and the Chief Executive
Officer, is also a director and a shareholder of Zhuguang
Holdings. Cinda HK and Zhuguang Holdings are substantial
Shareholders (within the meaning of the Listing Rules).
Save for the aforesaid, there is no relationship between the
members of the Board, in terms of financial, business, family
or other material/relevant relationship.

To assist the Board in discharging its duties and to fulfil
the requirements of the CG Code, three standing Board
committees were set up under the Board: the audit
committee, the remuneration committee and the nomination
committee. The Board will set up an ad hoc Board
committee as and when necessary to handle specific issues
and report back to the Board.

The Board considers that each independent non-executive
Director is independent in character and judgment and meets
the specific independence criteria as required by the Listing
Rules. The Company has received from each independent
non-executive Director an annual confirmation confirming his
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

All Directors are regularly updated on governance and
regulatory matters. There are established procedures for
Directors to obtain independent professional advice, at the
expense of the Company, in the furtherance of their duties.

Should a potential conflict of interest involving a substantial
Shareholder (within the meaning of the Listing Rules) or a
Director arise, the matter will be discussed in a physical
Board meeting, as opposed to being dealt with by a written
resolution. Independent non-executive Directors with no
conflict of interest will be present at Board meetings dealing
with such conflict issues.
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Board of Directors (Continued)
Board Composition (Continued)

Independent non-executive Directors are explicitly identified
in all corporate communications containing the names of
the Directors. An updated list of Directors identifying the
independent non-executive Directors and the roles and the
functions of the Directors is maintained on the website of the
Company at www.silvergrant.com.hk and the website of the
Stock Exchange.

Each of the Directors has been appointed for a specific term
of service no longer than three years. Mr. Chu Hing Tsung,
had been appointed as a non-executive Director from 29
January 2019 to 28 January 2022 (both days inclusive) and
he has been redesignated from a non-executive Director
to an executive Director with effect from 1 August 2021,
for a term from 1 August 2021 to 31 July 2024 (both days
inclusive). Each of the non-executive Directors has been
appointed for a specific term of service from 29 January
2019 to 28 January 2022 and re-appointed for a term of
3 years commencing from 29 January 2022 to 28 January
2025. All the Directors are also subject to retirement by
rotation and re-election at the annual general meeting of the
Company in accordance with article 102 of the Company’s
articles of association (“Articles of Association”).

The full Board will meet regularly and at least four times
throughout a year to review the overall strategy of the
Group and to monitor the operations as well as the financial
performance of the Group. Notice of at least 14 days will
be given to all Directors in respect of full Board meetings
and the Directors can include matters for discussion in the
agenda if necessary. Agenda and the accompanying Board
papers in respect of a full Board meeting are sent out in full
to all Directors no less than three days before the meeting.
Minutes of full Board meetings and meetings of board
committees are properly kept. All Directors have access to
relevant and timely information. They also have access to
the advice and services of the Company Secretary, who is
responsible for providing the Directors with Board papers
and related materials. Where queries are raised by the
Directors, prompt and full responses will be given if possible.
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Board of Directors (Continued) BExg9(#)
Board Composition (Continued) EEgARE)
During Year 2021, 13 Board meetings were held and the R2021FE - £AFISAERBESTSH -
attendance of each Director is set out below: MEFHLFEERHINNT -

Number of meeting attended/held
Name of Directors during the term of office Attendance rate
EENE FHAEESERE 2HEBRH R

Executive Directors
BITEE
Chu Hing Tsung (Chairman and Chief

Executive Officer) (redesignated from a non-

executive Director to an executive Director

and appointed as Chief Executive Officer

with effect from 1 August 2021) 9/13 69%
RE M (FFE RATBER)

(FR20218 A1 HHIFMITESZHER

WITEEREFERITHEE)
Luo Zhihai 13/13 100%
mEE
Tang Lunfei

(appointed with effect from 11 January 2021) 3/12 25%
EfRw

(RR2021F1 A1 BEZRT)
Wang Ping

(appointed with effect from 1 August 2021) 5/5 100%
FF

(FR2021468 A1 AEZ )
Ma Yilin

(resigned with effect from 11 January 2021) N/A T~ A N/A i@ A
B

(FA202141 A11HEHE)
Huang Jiajue

(resigned with effect from 1 August 2021) 6/7 86%

(R2021FE8 A1 HEHE)

Non-executive Director

HHITEE

Chen Zhiwei 4/13 31%
BRERE

Independent non-executive Directors

BUFHITESE

Liang Qing 6/13 46%
Zhang Lu 7/13 54%
oR I

Hung Muk Ming 7/183 54%
R EA

Note: Attendances of the Directors appointed and resigned during . R0 EEEZILEBTESE 2 HERTYR
Year 2021 were made by reference to the numbers of such HEFAHERTERREUHESD -
meetings held during their respective tenures.
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Board of Directors (Continued)
Board Composition (Continued)

According to the Articles of Association, the Board has the
power to appoint any person as a Director either to fill a
casual vacancy or as an addition to the Board. The Director
so appointed shall hold office until the next general meeting (in
the case of filling a casual vacancy) or until the next annual
general meeting (in the case of new addition to the Board)
following his appointment and shall then be eligible for re-
election. In other cases, all Directors, including the Chairman
and the Chief Executive Officer, shall retire by rotation at
least once every three years at annual general meetings and
be eligible for re-election.

Board Diversity Policy

The Board has adopted the Board diversity policy. The policy
sets out the approach to achieve and maintain diversity
on the Board in order to enhance the effectiveness of the
Board.

The Company considered that diversity of Board members
can be achieved through consideration of a number of
aspects, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, ethnicity, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service. All Board
appointments will be based on meritocracy, and candidates
will be considered against objective criteria, having due
regard to the benefits of diversity on the Board.

The Board has developed measurable objectives to
implement the Board diversity policy whereby selection of
candidates will be based on a range of diversity perspectives
as set out above, and the ultimate decision will be based on
merit and contribution that the selected candidate will bring
to the Board.
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Board of Directors (Continued)

Board Diversity Policy (Continued)

An analysis of the Board diversity of the Company as at 31
December 2021 based on a range of diversity perspectives

is set out below:

Number of
Directors

EXHA
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ESEZTLBEE)
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Executive
Directors

HITES

Designation
331

Age group
FEeAa R

1-5

Directorship

Directorship

with the with other public
Company companies
(number of (number of
years) companies)
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Board of Directors (Continued)
Nomination Policy

The nomination policy of the Company was approved
and adopted by a resolution of the Board passed on 28
December 2018. It sets out the criteria and procedures to
be adopted when considering candidates to be appointed or
re-appointed as Directors.

Recruitment for the Board is the key role of the nomination
committee of the Company. Nevertheless, the ultimate
responsibilities for the selection and appointment of Directors
rest with the entire Board.

The nomination committee of the Company will select from
a broad range of candidates and as far as feasible consider
those who are outside the Board’s circle of contacts in
accordance with the Company’s Board diversity policy. The
nomination committee of the Company will consider the
potential contribution a candidate can bring to the Board in
terms of qualifications, skills, experience, independence and
gender diversity. It will also consider succession planning for
Directors to ensure the long term success of the Company.

Corporate Governance Committee

The CG Code recommends listed companies to set up a
corporate governance committee to look after issues relating
to corporate governance. However, the Directors consider
that it is more appropriate and efficient for the Company
to retain in the Board the function of overseeing corporate
governance issues. The Directors will continuously review
and improve the Company’s and the Group’s corporate
governance practices to ensure that business activities and
decision-making processes of the Group are regulated in a
proper and prudent manner.
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Board of Directors (Continued)
Corporate Governance Committee (Continued)

During Year 2021 and up to the date of this annual report,
the corporate governance duties performed by the Board
were mainly set out below:

— developing and reviewing the Company’s policies
and practices on corporate governance and making
recommendations;

— reviewing and monitoring the continuous professional
development and training of the Directors and senior
management;

—  reviewing the Company’s compliance with the CG Code
and disclosure in the corporate governance report
contained in the Company’s annual report;

— reviewing and monitoring the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements; and

— developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of
conduct and compliance manual (if any) applicable to
employees and Directors.

Securities Dealing by Directors

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”)
as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its own
code of conduct regarding Directors’ securities transactions.
All Directors have confirmed that, following specific enquiry
by the Company, they complied with the required standards
set out in the Model Code throughout Year 2021.

The Company has also adopted codes of conduct regarding
securities transactions by relevant employees (as defined in
the CG Code) on terms no less exacting than the required
standards set out in the Model Code.
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Board of Directors (Continued)
Audit Committee

The Company established an audit committee (“Audit
Committee”) in 1999. The composition and professional
qualifications of the members of the Audit Committee
comply with the requirements under Rule 3.21 of the Listing
Rules. The Audit Committee has written terms of reference
that conform to the provisions of the CG Code. The written
terms of reference are set out in detail on the websites of
the Company and the Stock Exchange.

During Year 2021 and as at the date of this annual report,
the Audit Committee comprises three independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Hung Muk Ming (committee
chairman), Mr. Liang Qing and Mr. Zhang Lu.

The Audit Committee meets at least two times each year
to review the reporting of financial and other information
to the Shareholders, the systems of internal controls and
risk management and the effectiveness and objectivity
of the audit process. The Audit Committee also provides
an important link between the Board and the Company’s
external auditor in matters coming within the scope of its
terms of reference and keeps under review the independence
and objectivity of the external auditor.

During Year 2021, the work performed by the Audit
Committee includes the reviews of the annual results for Year
2020 of the Group, the risk management and internal control
systems of the Group for Year 2020 and the interim results
for the six months ended 30 June 2021 of the Group. The
Group’s audited consolidated annual results for Year 2021
have also been reviewed by the Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee together with the Board have reviewed
the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control system,
risk management system and internal audit function and
considered that they are effective and adequate for the time
being.
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Board of Directors (Continued)
Audit Committee (Continued)

During Year 2021, three Audit Committee meetings were
held and the attendance of each member is set out below:

Name of Directors

Number of meetings attended/held

BExg(E)
BREEE(H)

R202145 8 - EREZBeHER=-XkE
BB ZHFEERFEHNT -

=3
X

p=11rd

Attendance rate

EEHE HEERRE 2BERRK R
Hung Muk Ming

KB 3/3 100%
Liang Qing

2E 3/3 100%
Zhang Lu

SR I 3/3 100%
Remuneration Committee FHEES

The Company established a remuneration committee
(“Remuneration Committee”) in 2005 and adopted written
terms of reference which conform to the provisions of the
CG Code. The written terms of reference are set out in detail
on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.
From 1 January 2021 to 31 July 2021, the Remuneration
Committee comprised one executive Director namely, Mr.
Huang Jiajue, and two independent non-executive Directors
namely, Mr. Zhang Lu (committee chairman) and Mr. Liang
Qing. From 1 August 2021 to the date of this annual report,
the Remuneration Committee comprises one executive
Director, namely, Mr. Luo Zhihai, and two independent
non-executive Directors namely, Mr. Zhang Lu (committee
chairman) and Mr. Liang Qing.

The principal duties of the Remuneration Committee are to
ensure that no Director or any of his associates (within the
meaning of the Listing Rules) is involved in deciding his own
remuneration and that the Company has an equitable and
competitive remuneration policy to attract and retain talented
persons to serve the Company. The Board has adopted
the model where the Remuneration Committee performs an
advisory role to the Board (i.e. making recommendations
to the Board on the remunerations packages of individual
Directors and senior management). The Remuneration
Committee is also responsible for making recommendations
to the Board on the Company’s policy and structure for
all Directors’ and senior management’s remuneration and
making recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
of the non-executive Directors.
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Board of Directors (Continued)

Remuneration Committee (Continued)

The remuneration package for each employee is structured

according to his quality and qualification. The remuneration

package will contain a combination or modification of some

or all of the following four main components:

1.

Basic salary

The basic salary ranges for each position are
established with reference to the responsibilities and
the duties attached to the position. The actual salary
for the person filling the position is determined based
on the experience and ability of the individual selected
for the position.

The basic salary ranges are reviewed periodically by
reference to the general market and by comparison to
comparable positions at competitors of the Company in
the relevant industry. The actual salaries of employees
are reviewed annually and may be adjusted from time
to time based on the cost of living and the financial
performance of the Company.

Salaries are basic remuneration and are not intended to
reward performance, either individually or corporately.
Performance is rewarded through the other components
of the remuneration package.

Incentive bonus

Incentive bonus is linked to individual and corporate
performance. The incentive bonus for each employee is
determined with reference to his position and performance
during the year.
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Board of Directors (Continued)

Remuneration Committee (Continued)

3. Share option
Share options to subscribe for Shares are granted to
employees from time to time at the discretion of the
Board in order to retain valuable employees and to
motivate future performance of the employees.
Share options granted to individual employee are
determined with reference to his position, performance
and ability to contribute to the overall success of the
Group.
However, the Group does not have any share option
scheme in force for the time being.

4.  Other benefits

The Group offers other customary and/or mandatory
benefits to employees, such as statutory retirement
scheme, employee compensation, medical insurance,
paid annual leaves and child education allowance,
with reference to the prevailing practices in relevant
jurisdictions.
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Board of Directors (Continued)
Remuneration Committee (Continued)

The Remuneration Committee meets regularly to review
the Company’s human resources matters and remuneration
policies. During Year 2021, two Remuneration Committee
meetings were held and the attendance of each member is
set out below:

Exg(#)
FMEES(E)

VFMZEeTHARERBHNARANAL
BERFERHFMBR - N20215FE - HMZ
EeCAMMAREH  SNEBZHEBRH
FIgnR

Number of
meetings
attended/held
during the
Name of Directors term of office Attendance rate
EHREEERRE
EEsA EX0-F PN HE=R
Huang Jiajue (Resigned on 1 August 2021) 11 100%
HEB(HR202168 A1 HEHT)
Liang Qing 2/2 100%
Zhang Lu 2/2 100%
SR
Luo Zhihai (Appointed on 1 August 2021) N/A 38 N/A 3

EEE(FR2021F8A1HELT)

Note: Attendances of the Directors appointed and resigned during
Year 2021 were made by reference to the numbers of such
meetings held during their respective tenures.
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Board of Directors (Continued)
Remuneration Committee (Continued)

The Remuneration Committee has reviewed and made
recommendation to the Board on the approval of the
payment of the Director’s fees to the executive and
non-executive Directors for Year 2021 after taking into
consideration the results of the Group, the performance of
the Directors, the senior management and the employees
and the prevailing market practices.

Details of the Directors’ emoluments and the five highest
paid employees as required to be disclosed pursuant to
Appendix 16 to the Listing Rules are set out in Notes 8 and
9 to the consolidated financial statements.

Nomination Committee

The Company established a nomination committee
(“Nomination Committee”) on 15 February 2012 and adopted
written terms of reference for the Nomination Committee.
The written terms of reference are set out in detail on
the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.
During Year 2021 and as at the date of this annual report,
the Nomination Committee comprises the Chairman, Mr.
Chu Hing Tsung (committee chairman), who has been
redesignated from a non-execuive Director to an executive
Director and appointed as the Chief Executive Officer with
effect from 1 August 2021, and two independent non-
executive Directors, namely, Mr. Zhang Lu and Mr. Hung Muk
Ming.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for all matters
relating to the appointment of Directors either to fill a casual
vacancy or as an addition to the existing Board. Pursuant
to the Articles of Association, any Director appointed to fill
a casual vacancy shall hold office only until the next general
meeting of the Company or as an addition to the existing
Board shall hold office only until the next annual general
meeting of the Company and shall then be eligible for
re-election at such meeting. Every Director shall be subject
to retirement by rotation at least once every three years
and shall be eligible for re-election in accordance with the
Articles of Association.
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Board of Directors (Continued)
Nomination Committee (Continued)

The Nomination Committee is responsible for identifying
suitably qualified candidates for appointment to the
Board and making recommendations to the Board for its
consideration. The process for selecting and recommending
candidates for directorship includes the consideration
of referrals and the engagement of external recruitment
professionals. The selection criteria are based mainly on
the assessment of the candidates’ characters, professional
qualifications and experience relevant to the Company’s
business.

The Nomination Committee is also responsible for
reviewing the structure, size and composition (including
the skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board
periodically, assessing the independence of the independent
non-executive Directors and making recommendation to
the Board on the appointment and re-appointment of the
Directors and succession planning for the Directors.

During Year 2021, two Nomination Committee meetings were
held to review the Board structure and the diversity of Board
members and make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment or re-appointment of directors and succession
planning for directors, in particular, the Chairman and the
Chief Executive Officer. The attendance of the meetings of
each member is set out below:

Exg(#)
REZEE(H)

RAZEQARBVEAEZRERESS
ZEANBRAESEHRLHEBRE R UHE
B TENEBEFARIRBFERERE
SIBALTRZEEXAFTEAETHE -8
EHRTEIEREEEBAENME BXE
&R B BB AN SR B 57

RAZESERANTEAEHRTEZTSMNR
B RERES (BRI - ME &)
AHEBELRTESFNBIMUNANESS
WERLERESTREEMHETHEFLZ

N
2
S

R20215FE - IREEZEEBR TMAREH%
LR ESeREREEENES TL I
RETRENETESRESMETEICL
HEARRERERITBAE) AESSRER
#o ZEXBZHEREBEREINNOT

Number of
meetings
Name of Directors attended/held Attendance rate
HESERE
BEEHA 2 HEBRH™ HE=R
Chu Hing Tsung 2/2 100%
REM
Zhang Lu 2/2 100%
SR I
Hung Muk Ming 2/2 100%
HEARER
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Board of Directors (Continued)

Directors’ and Officers’ Liability Insurance and
Indemnity

The Company has arranged appropriate liability insurance to
indemnify its Directors and officers in respect of legal actions
against them.

Induction and Training

Each newly appointed Director, executive or non-executive,
is provided with a Director’s induction package to ensure
that he has a proper understanding of his duties and
responsibilities. The Director’s induction package includes an
overview of the Group’s business operation and governance
policies, the Director’s responsibilities and duties, relevant
regulatory requirements and briefing with the senior
management of the Group.

Pursuant to the CG Code, all Directors should participate
in continuous professional development to develop and
refresh their knowledge and skills. This is to ensure that their
contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant.
During Year 2021, all Directors participated in appropriate
continuous professional development activities by way
of attending training and/or reading materials relevant to
the Company’s business or to the Directors’ duties and
responsibilities. All Directors have confirmed that, following
specific enquiry by the Company, they complied with the
continuous professional development requirement of the CG
Code for Year 2021.
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Board of Directors (Continued)

Induction and Training (Continued)

Exg(#)

AR IEIN(E)

The training attended by the Directors during Year 2021 is EER2021 FEETHEIIBM AT -

summarised below.

Type of training (Note 7) Training matters (Note 2)

Name of Directors EEHSR ENFR A7) EINEE(H7E2)
Executive Directors BITEE
Chu Hing Tsung (redesignated KB (52021985 1H b i, i, iv
from a non-executive BIFNTESZAT AR
Director to an executive TEENZERTTHE
Director with effect from £)
1 August 2021)
Luo Zhihai R ps] b i, i, dii, iv
Tang Lunfei (appointed with  FER AR (F2021F1 511 a, b i i, v
effect from HEZT)
11 January 2021)
Wang Ping (appointed with ~ FF (20214851 0% a, b i, i, iv
effect from Z1E)
1 August 2021)
Huang Jiajue (resigned with = {EE (72202148 71H N/ATE N/AANE
effect from 1 August 2021) BT)
Ma Yilin (resigned with effect HIEF(F202145F1 A 11 N/AZ 3 F N/AT i
from 11 January 2021) H#HE)
Non-executive Director HFHITEE
Chen Zhiwei BRE&E b i, i, dii, iv
Independent non-executive BV #HTEE
Directors
Liang Qing 2E b i, i, i, iv
Zhang Lu o % b i, i, iv
Hung Muk Ming AR b i, i, i
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Board of Directors (Continued)

Induction and Training (Continued)

Note 1:
a: attending seminar or training session
b: reading newspapers, journals and updates relating to

the economy, general business or Directors’ duties and
responsibilities, etc.

Note 2:

corporate governance
ii: regulatory
iii: finance and accounting
iv: managerial

The Company also received confirmation from the Company
Secretary that he took no less than 15 hours of relevant
professional training during Year 2021.
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Risk Management and Internal Control

The Board is responsible for ensuring that the Company has
effective risk management and control systems. The Board
evaluates the effectiveness of the systems at least annually.
A review of the effectiveness of the risk management and
internal control systems of the Group for Year 2021 was
conducted.

Risk Management and Internal Control System

The Company’s risk management and internal control
systems are designed to manage and mitigate risks, rather
than eliminate risks, and can only provide reasonable and
not absolute assurance against material misstatement or
loss. The Company has employed a bottom-up approach
for the identification, assessment and mitigation of risks at
business unit level and across functional areas.

Main Features of Risk Management and Internal
Control Systems

The key elements of the Company’s risk management
and internal control systems include the establishment of
a risk register to track and document identified risks, the
assessment and evaluation of risks, the development and
continuous updating of responsive procedures, and the
ongoing testing of internal control procedures to ensure their
effectiveness.

An ongoing risk assessment approach is adopted by the
Company for identifying and assessing new risks. The
identified risks will be recorded in the risk register which will
be reviewed regularly. After considering the control measures
against the risks identified, a risk matrix is adopted to
determine the risk rating (L=low risk, M=medium risk, H=high
risk) after evaluation of each risk identified by the likelihood
and the impact of the risk event.
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Risk Management and Internal Control (Continued)

Process Used to ldentify, Evaluate and Manage
Significant Risks

During the process of risk assessment, the risk owner of
each of the departments of the Group and major subsidiaries
of the Company is required to capture and identify the key
inherent risks that affect the achievement of its objectives.
Each inherent risk is evaluated according to the risk matrix.
After taking into consideration the risk response, such as
control measures in place to mitigate the risk, the residual
risk of each inherent risk is evaluated again and categorised
according to its risk level. The risk register with the risk
responses and residual risks is reported to the Audit
Committee. The Audit Committee, acting on behalf of the
Board, evaluates the effectiveness of the risk management
and internal control systems of the Group. The residual
risks in the highest category will be subject to the Board’s
oversight.

Process Used to Review the Effectiveness of the
Risk Management & Internal Control Systems and to
Resolve Material Internal Control Defects

In view of the Company’s business and scale of operations,
and in order to adopt the most cost-effective method of
conducting periodic reviews of the Company’s internal
controls, the Board has outsourced the internal audit
function to an independent consulting firm (“Consulting
Firm”). The Consulting Firm has conducted a review of the
Company’s risk management and internal control systems
for Year 2021 according to the scope of review agreed and
approved by the Audit Committee.
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Risk Management and Internal Control (Continued)
Inside Information

The Board is responsible for the handling and dissemination
of inside information. In order to ensure that the market
and Shareholders are fully and promptly informed about the
material developments in the Group’s business, the Board
has adopted an inside information disclosure policy regarding
the procedures of proper information disclosure. Release of
inside information is subject to the approval of the Board.
Unless duly authorised, all staff members of the Group shall
not communicate inside information to any external parties
and shall not respond to market speculation and rumours.
In addition, all external presentation materials or publications
must be pre-vetted before release.

Report to Audit Committee

The Consulting Firm reports directly to the Audit Committee
and the Audit Committee is satisfied that there has been no
major deficiency noted in the areas of the Company’s risk
management and internal control systems being reviewed
after implementation of the measures recommended by
the Consulting Firm to rectify the internal control defects
reported by it. Accordingly, the Audit Committee and the
Board considered the risk management and internal control
systems of the Group to be effective and adequate.
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General Meetings RERE

During Year 2021, the Company convened one general R2021FERN - AARBR—KARERE -
meeting which was the annual general meeting held on BIpR2021F6 A1I0BA BT 2 RRBFAE -
10 June 2021. The attendance of each Director is set out EESHRBEAHINAT o

below.

General meeting attended/held during
Name of Directors the term of office Attendance rate

BEEfR FHAHERERE 2HRERHY HE =R

Executive Directors
HITEE
Chu Hing Tsung (redesignated from a non-

executive Director to an executive Director

with effect from 1 August 2021)
KREM(R2021F8A1BRIERITESTHET A

TEEREZER/ITHAE) 0/1 0%
Luo Zhihai
BB 11 100%
Tang Lunfei

(appointed with effect from 11 January 2021)
EmM(HA2021F1 A11AEST) 1/1 100%
Wang Ping

(appointed with effect from 1 August 2021)
FTF(R2021F8 A1 BEEE) N/A 7 N/A i
Huang Jiajue

(resigned with effect from 1 August 2021)
HEB(R2021F8 A1 BEHT) 1/1 100%
Ma Yilin

(resigned with effect from 11 January 2021)
M (720211 A11BEHT) N/A g N/A i@ B

Non-executive Director

HBITEE

Chen Zhiwei

PR & 1/1 100%

Independent non-executive Directors

BUFHITEE

Liang Qing

2E 11 100%
Zhang Lu

SR 11 100%
Hung Muk Ming

ey Nz = 11 100%
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Auditor’s Remuneration

For Year 2021, the remuneration paid/payable to the
Company’s auditor, Ernst & Young, for their audit and non-

audit services provided, is set out as follows:

T

R2021 5 E s L PR 2 At KOEB|AT IR
BN A D R B AT % ok & 5t AP = A
ZBE T

Fee paid/payable

Nature of services PRI ME e ENEH
HK$
BT
Audit services FHET R 7,400,000
Non-audit services IEEET RS
— Professional services in relation to a major — BREARRSG 2 EERE
transaction 350,000
— Internal control services — NEBEEIE AR 7S 300,000
Total Rk 8,050,000

Remuneration of Senior Management

The emoluments paid to senior management were amongst

BREEASHH

SNTRAEEAEZHMERREAKESS

the emoluments paid to the five highest paid individuals of e AL ZzANWHBEHSRERE M HRE
the Group and are set out in Note 9 to the consolidated MIEEQ ©

financial statements.

The remuneration of the senior management of the Group by

AEBNSREBABR2021FENHEE

band for Year 2021 were as follows: WEFN WO
No. of
individuals
AE
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7L £2,000,000/% 7T 2
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001% 722,500,000/ 7T 1
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,0018 7t £ 3,000,000/8 7T 1
4
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Directors’ Responsibility Statement

The Board acknowledges its responsibilities for the
preparation of the financial statements of the Group for each
financial year, which give a true and fair view of the state
of the affairs, results and cash flow of the Group for that
year in compliance with the relevant laws and disclosure
requirements in the Listing Rules.

In preparing the financial statements of the Group for Year
2021, the Directors have (i) selected suitable accounting
policies and applied them consistently; (ii) adopted
appropriate Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and
Hong Kong Accounting Standards; (iii) made adjustments
and estimates that are prudent and reasonable; and (iv)
prepared the consolidated financial statements on the going
concern basis.

As at 31 December 2021, notwithstanding that the Group
had net current assets of approximately HK$1,776 million,
the Group’s interest-bearing bank and other borrowings and
convertible bonds in an aggregate amount of approximately
HK$1,843 million are due to be repayable within the next
12 months while its cash and bank balances amounted
to approximately HK$117 million. In view of the above
circumstances, the Directors have given careful consideration
to the Group’s future liquidity requirements, operating
performance and available sources of financing in assessing
the Group’s ability to continue operating as a going concern.
The following plans and measures are formulated to manage
the working capital and improve the financial position of the
Group:

()  the Group will continue to implement measures to
speed up the collection of outstanding loan receivables;

(i) the Group will continue to take measures to expedite the
disposal of financial asset investments, including equity
investments and non-performing assets portfolio; and

(i) the Group is actively negotiating with the holders of the

convertible bonds for refinancing its convertible bonds
due in 2022.
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Directors’ Responsibility Statement (Continued)

Having reviewed the Group’s cash flow projections prepared
by management, which cover a period of not less than
twelve months from 31 December 2021, the Directors are
of the opinion that, taking into account the abovementioned
plans and measures, the Group will have sufficient working
capital to finance its operations and to meet its financial
obligations as and when they fall due. Accordingly, the
Directors are satisfied that it is appropriate to prepare the
consolidated financial statements of the Group on a going
concern basis.

The Directors are also responsible for keeping proper
accounting records, which reflect the financial position of
the Group accurately at all times. The Directors also have
general responsibilities for setting up an appropriate internal
control system, which is mainly to safeguard the assets
of the Group and to prevent and detect fraud and other
irregularities. The Directors have reviewed the internal control
system of the Group and are satisfied that the internal
control system of the Group is functioning properly.

Shareholders’ Rights

Set out below is a summary of certain rights of the
Shareholders as required to be disclosed pursuant to the
mandatory disclosure requirements under the CG Code.
Convening General Meeting on Request

Shareholder(s) may request the Directors to convene an
extraordinary general meeting pursuant to Sections 566 to

568 of the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws
of Hong Kong) (“Companies Ordinance”).
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Shareholders’ Rights (Continued)
Convening General Meeting on Request (Continued)

In accordance with Section 566 of the Companies
Ordinance, the Directors are required to call a general
meeting if the Company has received requests to do so
from members of the Company representing at least 5% of
the total voting rights of all the members of the Company
having a right to vote at general meeting. Such requests
must state the general nature of the business to be dealt
with at the meeting, and may include the text of a resolution
that may properly be moved and is intended to be moved
at the meeting. Such requests may be sent to the Company
in hard copy form (by depositing at the registered office
of the Company at Suite 4901, 49th Floor, Office Tower,
Convention Plaza, 1 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong for
the attention of the Board) or in electronic form (by email:
info@silvergrant.com.hk); and must be authenticated by the
person or persons making it. In accordance with Section
567 of the Companies Ordinance, the Directors must call
a meeting within 21 days after the date on which they
become subject to the requirement under Section 566 of the
Companies Ordinance and such meeting must be held on
a date not more than 28 days after the date of the notice
convening the meeting.

If the Directors do not, within 21 days from the date of
the deposit of the requisition, proceed duly to convene
an extraordinary general meeting on a day not more than
28 days after the date on which the notice convening the
extraordinary general meeting is given, the Shareholder(s)
concerned, or any of them representing more than one half
of the total voting rights of all of them, may themselves
convene an extraordinary general meeting, provided that the
extraordinary general meeting so convened shall not be held
after the expiration of 3 months from the said date.

The extraordinary general meeting convened by Shareholders
shall be convened in the same manner, as nearly as possible,
as that in which general meetings are to be convened by the
Directors.
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Shareholders’ Rights (Continued)

Procedures for Directing Shareholders’ Enquiries to the
Board

Shareholders can raise enquiries to the Board. All enquiries
shall be in writing and sent by post to the registered office of
the Company at Suite 4901, 49/F, Office Tower, Convention
Plaza, 1 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong for the
attention of the Company Secretary.

Putting Forward Proposals at Annual General Meetings

To put forward a resolution at an annual general meeting,
Shareholders are requested to follow the requirements
and procedures set out in Sections 615 and 616 of the
Companies Ordinance.

Section 615 of the Companies Ordinance provides that the
Company must give notice of a resolution if it has received
requests that it do so from (A) the members of the Company
representing at least 2.5% of the total voting rights of all
the members of the Company who have a right to vote on
the resolution at the annual general meeting to which the
requests relate; or (B) at least 50 members of the Company
who have a right to vote on the resolution at the annual
general meeting to which the requests relate. Such requests
(a) may be sent to the Company in hard copy form (by
depositing at the registered office of the Company at Suite
4901, 49th Floor, Office Tower, Convention Plaza, 1 Harbour
Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong for the attention of the Board)
or in electronic form (by email: info@silvergrant.com.hk); (b)
must identify the resolution of which notice is to be given;
(c) must be authenticated by the person or persons making
it; and (d) must be received by the Company not later than
() 6 weeks before the annual general meeting to which the
requests relate; or (i) if later, the time at which notice is given
of that meeting. Section 616 of the Companies Ordinance
provides that the Company which is required under Section
615 of the Companies Ordinance to give notice of a
resolution must send a copy of it at the Company’s own
expense to each member of the Company entitled to receive
notice of the annual general meeting (1) in the same manner
as the notice of the meeting; and (2) at the same time as, or
as soon as reasonably practicable after, it gives notice of the
meeting.
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Shareholders’ Rights (Continued)
Proposing Director for Election at General Meetings

In respect of proposing a person for election as a Director at
general meetings, please refer to the procedures available on
the website of the Company at http://www.silvergrant.com.hk.

Constitutional Documents

During Year 2021, there was no change in the Company’s
constitutional documents.

Communication with Shareholders

The Company endeavours to maintain a high level of
transparency in communicating with Shareholders and
investors at large. In order to enhance the transparency
of Shareholders’ voting in a general meeting, separate
resolutions are proposed at a general meeting on each
substantially separate issue, including the election of
individual Directors and all resolutions are voted on by poll.
The Company will engage an external scrutineer to count
the votes. The poll voting results will be published on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange at a later
time on the same business day. In addition, the requirement
for resolutions to be voted by poll is stated in the circular
or the annual report to be despatched to Shareholders.
Moreover, the chairman of the meeting will explain to
Shareholders the described procedures for conducting a poll
before voting at each general meeting.

The Company has maintained a website at http://www.
silvergrant.com.hk which enables Shareholders, investors and
the general public to have open access to the information
of the Company. Financial information and all corporate
communications of the Company are made available on the
Company’s website and are updated regularly.

Shareholders who wish to raise any queries with the Board
may write to the Company Secretary at Suite 4901, 49/F
Office Tower, Convention Plaza, 1 Harbour Road, Wanchai,
Hong Kong.
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The Board presents the annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for Year
2021.

Principal Activities

The Company is an investment holding company. The
subsidiaries of the Company are principally engaged in
property leasing and investments. Details of the principal
activities of the Company’s subsidiaries are set out in Note 1
to the consolidated financial statements.

Results and Appropriations
The results of the Group and appropriations of the Company
for Year 2021 are set out in the consolidated statement of

profit or loss on pages 105.

The Board has resolved not to recommend the payment of a
final dividend for Year 2021.
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Business Review EBER
The business review of the Group for Year 2021 is set out AEB021 FEREBERIFINWOT -
below:
Section in the Page No. of the
Annual Report Annual Report
HIRER 2 HG FHZEH
a. Fair view of the Company’s business Chairman’s Statement 5
BERRBIEBNTEER IRRE
b. Description of the principal risks and uncertainties facing Directors’ Report 68
the Company RS
HARRHENEZRR R THABRREZ R
¢. Indication of likely future development in the Company’s Chairman’s Statement 5
business IFEWmE
AAREBHEENREANRRERNIBR
d. Analysis using financial key performance indicators Financial Highlights 2
ERMBERRRIERETOAN BBRE
e. Discussion on the Company’s environmental policies and Environmental, Social and 35
performance Governance
HARRBNRBEBE LZRNRE RE aegkEn
f. An account of the Company’s key relationships with its Directors’ Report 68
employees, customers and suppliers and others that EEeRE

have a significant impact on the Company and on which
the Company’s success depends

ARRIEEES  BEERMEENEZFENBAURER
RSN THANEMATNEZRENFA  ZAL
HARRBEATYE  MAZRAAHNERENZAL

g. Discussion on the Company’s compliance with the relevant  Directors’ Report 68

laws and regulations that have a significant impact on EEeHY
the Company

HEARAETHRARNBERYENBRERZIROINER
B R A
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Business Review (Continued)
Issue of Senior Note

On 8 December 2020, the Company as the issuer, Mr. Chu
Hing Tsung (“Mr. Chu”), the Chairman, the Chief Executive
Officer and an executive Director as the guarantor, CNCB
(Hong Kong) Investment Limited (“Investor”) as the investor
and CNCB (Hong Kong) Capital Limited as the arranger,
entered into a subscription agreement (“Subscription
Agreement”), pursuant to which the Company conditionally
agreed to issue to the Investor, and the Investor has
conditionally agreed to subscribe for, a senior secured
guaranteed note (“Senior Note”) in the aggregate principal
amount of US$19,800,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$154,440,000) maturing on the date falling one year
from the issue date of the Senior Note (“Issue Date”). The
consummation of the issue and subscription of the Senior
Note was subject to the fulfilment or waiver of all the
conditions precedent set out in the Subscription Agreement
and would take place within three business days after all
such conditions precedent were fulfilled or waived. Interest
shall accrue on the Senior Note from (and including) the
Issue Date until (and including) the date on which the
Senior Note is redeemed in accordance with the terms and
conditions of the Senior Note at the rate of 7.5% per annum
on the outstanding principal amount of the Senior Note,
payable quarterly in arrears. If an event of default occurs
and is continuing, the interest rate for the period from (and
including) the date of occurrence of such event of default
until (and including) the date on which such event of default
ceases to continue, shall be adjusted to a rate of 15% per
annum. Pursuant to the Subscription Agreement, the Senior
Note was required to be secured by a personal guarantee
to be executed by Mr. Chu in favour of the Investor and
mortgages to be executed by the Group over certain
properties owned by the Group in favour of the Investor. The
Senior Note would constitute direct, unconditional, secured,
guaranteed, unsubordinated and general obligations of
the Company and would rank at least pari passu with all
other present and future direct, unconditional, unsecured,
unsubordinated and general obligations of the Company.
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Business Review (Continued)
Issue of Senior Note (Continued)

On 18 December 2020, the Company issued the Senior
Note in the aggregate principal amount of US$19,800,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$154,440,000) to the
Investor. The Board considered that the issue of the Senior
Note represented an opportunity to obtain funding for the
Group. The net proceeds, after deducting issuance costs,
received by the Company from the issue of the Senior Note
amounting to approximately US$19,300,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$150,540,000), would be used by the
Group as its general working capital. As at the date of this
annual report, the net proceeds from the issue of the Senior
Note have been fully utilised by the Group as intended.

In December 2021, the Senior Note has been redeemed in
full by the Company.

Further details of the Senior Note are set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 8 December 2020.

Issue of Convertible Bonds

On 20 May 2019, the Company entered into a placing
agreement (“Placing Agreement”) with CMB International
Capital Limited (“Placing Agent”), pursuant to which the
Company conditionally agreed to place through the Placing
Agent, on a best effort basis, 7% senior unsecured and
guaranteed convertible bonds (“Convertible Bonds”) of
the Company due 2022 of an aggregate principal amount
of up to HK$200,000,000, to placees who and whose
subsidiaries or associates are independent third parties
(within the meaning of the Listing Rules) of the Company,
at the conversion price (“Conversion Price”) of HK$2.33 per
ordinary share with no par value (“Conversion Share”) of the
Company (“Placing”).

On 22 May 2019, the Company entered into a subscription
agreement (“JIC Subscription Agreement”) with JIC
(Hong Kong) Holding Limited (“JIC”) (a placee procured
by the Placing Agent, who and whose ultimate beneficial
owner(s) are independent third parties (within the meaning
of the Listing Rules)), in relation to JIC’s subscription for
the Convertible Bonds with a principal amount of up to
HK$200,000,000 (“JIC Subscription”).
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Business Review (Continued)
Issue of Convertible Bonds (Continued)

Save for (a) the date of the agreement; (b) the identity of
the subscriber; (c) the principal amount of the Convertible
Bonds to be subscribed; and (d) the inclusion of two
additional conditions precedent to the completion of the
JIC Subscription Agreement (namely, (i) Mr. Chu Hing Tsung
(“Mr. Chu”), the Chairman, the Chief Executive Officer, an
executive Director and a substantial Shareholder (within the
meaning of the Listing Rules), having executed and delivered
to JIC the Guarantees (as defined below); and (ii) the
Company shall have completed all of the obligations under
the JIC Subscription Agreement required on or before the
completion date, the principal terms of the JIC Subscription
Agreement are substantially the same as to those of the
Connected Subscription Agreements (as defined below).

On 20 May 2019, the Company also entered into a
subscription agreement (“Connected Subscription
Agreement”, collectively the “Connected Subscription
Agreements”) with each of Regent Star International Limited
(“Regent Star”), Mr. Gao Jian Min (“Mr. Gao”), Wonderful Sky
Financial Group Holdings Limited (“Wonderful Sky”), Ms. Luk
Ching Sanna (“Ms. Luk”) and Excel Bright Capital Limited
(“Excel Bright”) (collectively the “Connected Subscribers”,
and each a “Connected Subscriber”), who were all
connected persons (within the meaning of the Listing
Rules) of the Company as at the date of the Connected
Subscription Agreements, pursuant to which the Company
conditionally agreed to issue, and each of the relevant
Connected Subscribers conditionally agreed to subscribe
for, the Convertible Bonds in the aggregate principal amount
of HK$950,000,000, at the Conversion Price (“Connected
Subscriptions”). Mr. Chu has provided personal guarantees
(“Guarantees”) in favour of the relevant subscriber pursuant
to the JIC Subscription Agreement and the Connected
Subscription Agreements.
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Business Review (Continued)
Issue of Convertible Bonds (Continued)

Completion of the JIC Subscription and the Connected
Subscriptions took place on 3 July 2019. The gross
proceeds from the issue of the Convertible Bonds were in
the amount of HK$1,150,000,000. The net proceeds from
the issue of the Convertible Bonds, after deduction of all
relevant costs and expenses, amounted to approximately
HK$1,147,000,000, among which (i) approximately
HK$500,000,000 would be used for repaying the Company’s
short-term debts; (i) approximately HK$400,000,000 would
be used for expanding the Company’s business to the
financial investment and service industry, such as acquisition
of and investment in distressed debts in the PRC; and (jii)
approximately HK$247,000,000 would be used as general
working capital of the Company. As at the date of this
annual report, the net proceeds have been fully utilised as
intended.

Principal terms of the Convertible Bonds

The issue price of the Convertible Bonds is 100% of
the principal amount of the Convertible Bonds, which is
HK$1,150,000,000 in aggregate (among which a principal
amount of HK$200,000,000 was placed to JIC through
the Placing; and the principal amount of HK$450,000,000,
HK$200,000,000, HK$100,000,000, HK$100,000,000 and
HK$100,000,000 were subscribed for by Regent Star, Mr.
Gao, Wonderful Sky, Ms. Luk and Excel Bright, respectively).
The maturity date of the Convertible Bonds (“Maturity Date”)
was the date falling on the 36th month from the issue date
of the Convertible Bonds. The Convertible Bonds bear
interest at the rate of 7% per annum payable semi-annually
from the issue date of the Convertible Bonds. Assuming
there is no early redemption of the Convertible Bonds and
all of the Convertible Bonds are redeemed only on the
Maturity Date, the effective interest rate of the Convertible
Bonds is approximately 12.0% per annum. The conversion
period of the Convertible Bonds is from the issue date of
the Convertible Bonds up to the close of business on a date
which is five trading days prior to the Maturity Date.
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Business Review (Continued)
Issue of Convertible Bonds (Continued)
Principal terms of the Convertible Bonds (Continued)

The Conversion Price of HK$2.33 per Conversion Share
represents (i) a premium of approximately 39% to the
closing price of HK$1.68 per Share as quoted on the Stock
Exchange on 20 May 2019, being the date of the Placing
Agreement and the Connected Subscription Agreements;
and (i) a premium of approximately 40% to the average
closing price of HK$1.66 per Share as quoted on the Stock
Exchange for the last five consecutive trading days prior
to the date of the Placing Agreement and the Connected
Subscription Agreements.

A bondholder of the Convertible bonds can only exercise
his/her/its conversion rights on the conditions that (i) no
obligation will arise on the bondholder to make a general
offer to the Shareholders for all securities of the Company
under Rule 26 of the Code on Takeovers and Mergers upon
exercising of the conversion rights; and (ii) no Listing Rules,
including the minimum public float requirements of the
Company under Listing Rules, will be breached as a result of
an exercise of the conversion rights.

Unless previously redeemed, converted, purchased or
cancelled, the Company will redeem all of the Convertible
Bonds on the Maturity Date at such amount equivalent
to 116.5% of the principal amount of the outstanding
Convertible Bonds (inclusive of interests received up to the
Maturity Date).

The Convertible Bonds constitute direct, unsubordinated,
unconditional and unsecured obligations of the Company and
shall at all times rank pari passu and without any preference
or priority among themselves and pari passu with all other
present and future direct, unsubordinated, unconditional and
unsecured obligations of the Company.
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Business Review (Continued)
Issue of Convertible Bonds (Continued)

Dilutive impact of the conversion of the Convertible
Bonds

As at the date of this annual report, none of the Convertible
Bonds has been converted.

Assuming there is full conversion of the Convertible
Bonds at the Conversion Price of HK$2.33 per Share,
the net subscription price for each Conversion Share is
approximately HK$2.32 per Share and an aggregate of
493,562,227 Shares shall be allotted and issued (among
which 85,836,909 Shares will be issued under the Placing
and 407,725,318 Shares will be issued under the Connected
Subscriptions), representing approximately 21.4% of the
total number of Shares in issue as at the date of this annual
report and approximately 17.6% of the total number of
Shares in issue as enlarged by the allotment and issue of
the Conversion Shares (assuming no other change in the
issued share capital of the Company). Such allotment and
issue of the Conversion Shares will result in the respective
shareholdings of the Shareholders being diluted by
approximately 17.6%.
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Business Review (Continued)
Issue of Convertible Bonds (Continued)

Dilutive impact of the conversion of the Convertible
Bonds (Continued)

Set out below is the dilution effect on the equity interest
of the substantial Shareholders (within the meaning of
the Listing Rules) if there had been full conversion of the
outstanding Convertible Bonds as at 31 December 2021:
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Upon full conversion of the

Upon full conversion of the  Upon full conversion of the Convertible Bonds under the
Convertible Bonds under the Convertible Bonds under the Placing and the Connected

Name of Shareholders As at 31 December 2021 Placing
REREZR
RRE® 20215127318 REARTRRES &
Approximate Approximate

Number of percentage of
Shares held shareholding

Number of percentage of
Shares held shareholding

Connected Subscriptions
REBERRSE
REARTRRESK

Approximate
Number of percentage of
Shares held shareholding

Subscriptions
RERESERBERRER
REARTRRES &

Approximate
Number of percentage of
Shares held shareholding

BORR BaER BARR BaER
Friskp 8 A ARl FEROEA ARk FEROEA ARl FEROEA BAk
Zhuguang Holdings
Tkl 681,240,022 29.56% 681,240,022 28.5% 681,240,022 25.1% 681,240,022 24.3%
Regent Star
212 438,056,000 19.01% 438,056,000 18.3% 631,189,047 23.3% 631,189,047 22.6%
Note: Zhuguang Holdings owns 681,240,022 Shares through its Ma: A ZERBBAEZ2EHRABNE 2 A

wholly-owned subsidiary, Splendid Reach Limited. Zhuguang
Holdings is owned as to 66.85% by Rong De Investments
Limited, and Mr. Chu, the Chairman, the Chief Executive
Officer and an executive Director, holds 34.06% equity interest

in Rong De Investments Limited.
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Business Review (Continued)
Issue of Convertible Bonds (Continued)

Dilutive impact of the conversion of the Convertible
Bonds (Continued)

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had total net assets
of approximately HK$5,718,233,000 and total net current
assets of approximately HK$1,776,269,000. Taking into
consideration that the Group has formulated plans and
measures to manage its working capital and improve its
financial position, including measures to speed up the
collection of outstanding loan receivables and to expedite
the disposal of financial asset investments (including equity
investments and non-performing assets portfolio), and active
negotiation with the holders of the Convertible Bonds for
refinancing the Convertible Bonds, the Company expects
that it will be able to meet its redemption obligations under
the Convertible Bonds.

An analysis of the Company’s share price at which it would
be equally financially advantageous for the holders of the
Convertible Bonds to convert or redeem the Convertible
Bonds based on their implied internal rate of return on the
Maturity Date is set out below:
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equivalent to 116.5% of the principal
amount of the outstanding Convertible
Bonds, inclusive of interests received &%)
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such Convertible Bonds have already

been previously redeemed, converted,
purchased or cancelled)
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Business Review (Continued)
Issue of Convertible Bonds (Continued)

Dilutive impact of the conversion of the Convertible
Bonds (Continued)

Details of the Placing, the JIC Subscription and the
Connected Subscriptions are set out in the announcements
of the Company dated 20 May 2019, 22 May 2019 and 27
June 2019, and the circular of the Company dated 10 June
2019.

Compliance with laws and regulations

The Company was incorporated in Hong Kong with its
shares listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.
The Company’s subsidiaries were incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands, Hong Kong and the PRC. The Group’s
operations are mainly carried out by the Company’s
subsidiaries in the PRC and through certain property
investments in Hong Kong.

The Group’s principal business activities are property leasing
and investments in the PRC and Hong Kong which are highly
regulated businesses. To engage in investments (both in the
PRC and Hong Kong) and financial services, the Group must
obtain relevant permits from government authorities before
the commencement of the business. Set out below is a
summary of certain aspects of the PRC and Hong Kong legal
and regulatory provisions relating to the Group’s operations
and business:

° Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the
Laws of Hong Kong);

o FEKREESEEERETITIVE (Interim Measures for
the Supervision and Administration of Privately Offered
Investment Funds®); and

o FERBASBSTAETEIEL (Measures for the
Administration of the Fundraising of Privately Offered
Investment Funds?).

* English name is translated for identification purpose only
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Business Review (Continued)
Compliance with laws and regulations (Continued)

If there is any non-compliance with the above rules and
regulations, it will affect the Group’s operations, development
and financial performance. During Year 2021, the Group
complied with all the relevant laws and regulations in Hong
Kong, the British Virgin Islands and the PRC that have a
significant impact on the Group.

Key Risk Factors

The following paragraphs list out the key risks and
uncertainties facing the Group. It is a non-exhaustive list
and there may be other risks and uncertainties in addition
to the key risk areas outlined below. Besides, this annual
report does not constitute a recommendation or an advice
for anyone to invest in the securities of the Company and
investors are advised to make their own judgment or consult
their own investment advisors before making any investment
in the securities of the Company.

Operational Risks

The Group’s operation is subject to a number of risk factors
distinctive to direct investment, property investment and
property related businesses. Default on the part of the
Group’s buyers, tenants and strategic business partners, and
inadequacies or failures of internal processes, people and
systems or other external factors may have various levels
of negative impact on the Group’s results of operations.
Additionally, accidents may happen despite systems and
policies set up for their prevention, which may lead to
financial loss, litigation or damage in reputation.

Policy Risks

The Group’s principal operating activities are in the mainland
China. The mainland market operates a system of planned
economy. New laws and regulations are launched from time
to time to regulate and/or promote economic activities.
The enactment of any new regulatory policies may have
various levels of negative impact on the Group’s results of
operations.
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Key Risk Factors (Continued)
Past Performance and Forward Looking Statements

The performance and the results of operation of the Group
as set out in this annual report are historical in nature and
past performance is not a guarantee of future performance.
This annual report may contain forward-looking statements
and opinions that involve risks and uncertainties. Actual
results may also differ materially from expectations discussed
in such forward-looking statements and opinions. Neither
the Group nor the Directors, employees or agents of the
Group assume any obligations or liabilities in the event that
any of the forward-looking statements or opinions does not
materialise or turns out to be incorrect.

Fixed Assets

The Group’s leasehold land and buildings were revalued
at 31 December 2021. The surplus on revaluation
of the leasehold land and buildings of approximately
HK$12,632,000 has been credited to the asset revaluation
reserve.

The Group revalued all of its investment properties at
31 December 2021. The net increase in fair value of
investment properties, which has been credited directly to
the consolidated statement of profit or loss, amounted to
approximately HK$31,814,000.

Details of the valuation and movements of the investment
properties and property, plant and equipment of the Group
during Year 2021 are set out in Notes 13 and 14 to the
consolidated financial statements respectively.

Details of the major investment properties of the Group at 31

December 2021 are set out in the section under “Summary
of Investment Properties” of this annual report.
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Charitable Donations

No material donation was made to charitable organisations
by the Group during Year 2021.

Share Capital

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company
during Year 2021 are set out in Note 29 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Distributable Reserves of the Company

The Company’s reserves available for distribution to
Shareholders as at 31 December 2021 comprised the
retained profits of approximately HK$289,744,000.

Equity Linked Agreements

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Issue of
Convertible Bonds” above, no equity linked agreements were
entered into by the Group during Year 2021 or subsisted at
the end of Year 2021.

Directors

The Directors during Year 2021 and up to the date of this
annual report are:

Executive Directors
Chu Hing Tsung
(redesignated from a non-executive Director to an
executive Director and appointed as Chief Executive
Officer with effect from 1 August 2021)
Luo Zhihai
Tang Lunfei (appointed with effect from 11 January 2021)
Wang Ping (appointed with effect from 1 August 2021)
Huang Jiajue (Chief Executive Officer)
(resigned with effect from 1 August 2021)
Ma Yilin (resigned with effect from 11 January 2021)
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Directors (Continued)

Non-executive Director
Chen Zhiwei

Independent non-executive Directors
Liang Qing

Zhang Lu

Hung Muk Ming

Each Director has been appointed for a specific term,
and is subject to retirement by rotation and re-election in
accordance with the Articles of Association.

In accordance with the provisions of the Articles of
Association, Mr. Luo Zhihai, Mr. Liang Qing and Mr. Zhang
Lu shall retire by rotation at the forthcoming annual general
meeting, and they, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-
election. The remaining Directors shall remain in office.

Directors of Subsidiaries

Other than the Directors named in the section headed
“Directors”, the persons who have served on the respective
boards of directors of the subsidiaries of the Company
during Year 2021 and up to the date of this annual report
included Mr. Huang Jiajue, Mr. Luo Zhihai, Mr. Wang Ping,
Mr. Tang Junhong, Mr. Chen Yongcun and Mr. Ng Hoi Leung
Leo.

Silver Grant International Holdings Group Limited
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Directors’ Service Contracts

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting has a service contract which is not
determinable by the Group within one year without payment
of compensation (other than statutory compensation).

Changes in Information of Directors

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, there
were changes in the information required to be disclosed
in accordance with paragraphs (a) to (e) and (g) of Rule
13.51(2) of the Listing Rules in the course of the Directors’
term of office.

Mr. Hung Muk Ming, an independent non-executive Director,
resigned as an independent non-executive director of
Century Sage Scientific Holdings Limited, a company the
shares of which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange (Stock code: 1450) with effect from 29 September
2021.

With effect from 24 March 2022, Mr. Chen Zhiwei, a non-
executive Director, resigned as a non-executive director of
Modern Land; and Mr. Tang, Lunfei, an executive Director,
was appointed as a non-executive director of Modern Land.

Save as the aforesaid, the Company has not been advised
by the Directors of any change in the information required
to be disclosed pursuant to paragraphs (a) to (e) and (g) of
Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules since its last update to the
Shareholders.
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Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and
Short Positions in the Shares, Underlying Shares
and Debentures of the Company

As at 31 December 2021, save as disclosed below, no other
Directors or the chief executive of the Company had any
interests or short positions in any Shares, underlying Shares
or debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code:

EERRETRABREQTRS - 18
AROREEE ZEERAR

BT ATIEEESN - R20214F12A31H @
BEMEELARNARESTERABRARR
A EHAMEEEZE (TR RBLFRPE KIS
XVER) BBkt - MR M EREER - A
RIEEH K BEEAEI2EETFERAR
AIA) B R B SR IR R T BB LA E 5 = A0
EARNARBRAOERIORE

Long position in the Shares ERARGZIFE
Approximate
Number of percentage of
Name of Director Capacity Shares interested issued Shares (Note 1)
FREE R HIEE BT
EEE8 g4 ZRBEE BBBE D (AET)
Mr. Chu Interest of controlled 681,240,022 29.56%
corporations (Note 2)
KRFEHE RiEwEE R (A t2)
Notes: BisE
1. The total number of issued Shares as at 31 December 2021 (i.e. 1. MR2021%12A31H » B BT 2 & (A

2,304,849,611 Shares) has been used for the calculation of
the approximate percentage of shareholdings in the Company.

2. Mr. Chu directly holds 34.06% of the issued shares of Rong
De Investments Limited (“Rong De”), which in turn holds
66.85% of the issued shares of Zhuguang Holdings, which
in turn holds 100% of the issued shares of Splendid Reach
Limited (“Splendid Reach”), the beneficial owner of such
681,240,022 Shares. Accordingly, Mr. Chu, Rong De and
Zhuguang Holdings are deemed to be interested in the Shares
held by Splendid Reach pursuant to Part XV of the SFO.

Silver Grant International Holdings Group Limited
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Arrangements to Purchase Shares or Debentures

At no time during Year 2021 or at the end of Year 2021 was
the Company, its parent company or any of its subsidiaries
or fellow subsidiaries, a party to any arrangements to
enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or
any other body corporate, and neither the Directors nor the
chief executive of the Company nor any of their spouse or
children under the age of 18, had any right to subscribe for
the securities of the Company, or had exercised any such
right.

Directors’ Interests in Transactions, Arrangements
or Contracts of Significance

Other than as disclosed in the sections headed “Issue of
Senior Note” and “Issue of Convertible Bonds” above, no
transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance
to which the Company, its parent company or any of its
subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party and in which
a Director or his connected entities had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of Year
2021 or at any time during Year 2021.

Management Contracts

No contracts, other than employment contracts, concerning
the management and administration of the whole or any part
of the Company’s business were entered into during Year
2021 or subsisted at the end of Year 2021.

Permitted Indemnity Provision

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, subject to the
statutes, every Director shall be entitled to be indemnified
out of the assets of the Company against all losses or
liabilities which he may sustain or incur in or about the
execution of the duties of his office or otherwise in relation
thereon. The Company has arranged appropriate liability
insurance to indemnify its Directors and officers in respect
of legal actions against them during Year 2021 and such
permitted indemnity provision is still in force as at the date
of this annual report.
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Substantial Shareholders’ Interests and Short
Positions in the Shares and Underlying Shares of
the Company

As at 31 December 2021, save as disclosed below, so
far as it is known to the Directors or the chief executive
of the Company, no persons other than a Director or the
chief executive of the Company, had any interests or short
positions in the Shares and underlying Shares which would
fall to be disclosed to the Company or the Stock Exchange
under the provisions of Part XV of the SFO and were
recorded in the register required to be kept under section
336 of the SFO:

Long position in the Shares:

FERRREAQATARMDREERD 2
BmRKRE

20215124318 - R I XHRBEEIN - LA
NAEERESTTHRABNA - #EALCRH
BREARFTESIRRITBEAR)EERD K
T IR 2 T (AT 4 2 30 B T AR 35 38 55 K HA
AR SEXVEDHR T 28 A A1 ) 3B 22 P i &
RBRSENBIEE S KB E G0 5336151
ERTHELME

BROZHFE -

Approximate
percentage of

Number of issued Shares
Shares (Note 1)
interested HECRT
Name of substantial Shareholders Capacity BEERZ RozEA
TERRER 56 Ko #E (H1st1)
China Cinda Asset Management Co., Ltd. Interest of controlled corporations 438,056,000 19.01%
(“China Cinda") (Note 2)
PEEEEEERRNERAA(HERGE]) RELZERR(Hi22)
China Cinda (HK) Holdings Company Limited Interest of a controlled corporation 438,056,000 19.01%
(“Cinda HK”) (Note 2)
PEEE(ER)ERBRAR(EEEE]) REGEEER(HiE2)
Regent Star International Limited Beneficial Owner (Note 2) 438,056,000 19.01%
(‘Regent Star’) ERBERANZ2)
ERERERRA(ERE])
Liao Tengjia Interest of controlled corporations (Note 3) 681,240,022 29.56%
BiRE RELEE RS (H:3)
Rong De Interest of controlled corporations (Mote 3) 681,240,022 29.56%
Rz R LB (H23)
Zhuguang Holdings Interest of a controlled corporation (Nofe 3) 681,240,022 29.56%
R RELEEER (M3
Splendid Reach Beneficial owner (Note 3) 681,240,022 29.56%

ESBAANLS)
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Substantial Shareholders’ Interests and Short FTERERREAQTRMDRERERG 2 &

Positions in the Shares and Underlying Shares of wmk
the Company (Continued)

Notes: Kiat -

1. The total number of issued Shares as at 31 December 2021 (i.e. 1.
2,304,849,611 Shares) has been used for the calculation of
the approximate percentage of shareholdings in the Company.

2. China Cinda directly holds 100% of the issued shares of 2.
Cinda HK, which in turn holds 100% of the issued shares
of Regent Star, the beneficial owner of such 438,056,000
Shares. Therefore, China Cinda and Cinda HK are deemed to
be interested in the Shares held by Regent Star pursuant to
Part XV of the SFO.

3. Mr. Liao Tengjia directly holds 36% of the issued shares of 3.
Rong De, which in turn holds 66.85% of the issued shares of
Zhuguang Holdings, which in turn holds 100% of the issued
shares of Splendid Reach, the beneficial owner of such
438,056,000 Shares. Therefore, Mr. Liao Tengjia, Rong De and
Zhuguang Holdings are deemed to be interested in the Shares
held by Splendid Reach pursuant to Part XV of the SFO.

KRB (E)

20216128310 2 B 81T 0 2 & (8D
2,304,849,611%) E AEETE AR B Z &
BB DL -

FEEEAERFAEEDTB100%E 1T
n o MEERBRAEEBRI00%E 17K
5 B 53%438,056,0000% %10 8 B 25
BA Bt FEEEREESTBRESES
N EREAEDI EXVEB AR B 2 BT B B
DA EE -

ERESEEEFERER 2B EHTR
5 TR {E RSB B 15 AR66.85% B B /TR
1% MER S AENHE G Splendid Reach 100%
BTG - Bt - BEESE - BER
KRB IR 7 5 R B E ARG EXVEBE R AR
Splendid ReachFT#F B &I D R B #E ©

Long position in the underlying Shares YRR (2B
Approximate
Number of percentage of
underlying issued Shares
Shares (Note 1)
interested HECRT
Name of substantial Shareholders Capacity ERREHL k2B
TERRER 5t HERGEA (Hit1)
China Cinda Interest of controlled corporations (Mote 2) 193,133,047 (Note 3) 8.38%
hEIEE RELEERR(HHE2) (Hi7#3)
Cinda HK Interest of a controlled corporation (Note 2) 193,133,047 (Note 3) 8.38%
EERE RELEERR(HHE2) (Hi7#3)
Regent Star Beneficial owner (Note 2) 193,133,047 (Note 3) 8.38%
2 ERBAANZ2) (Hi7#3)
Annual Report 2021 —E—FFR
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Substantial Shareholders’ Interests and Short
Positions in the Shares and Underlying Shares of
the Company (Continued)

Notes:

1. The total number of the issued Shares as at 31 December
2021 (i.e. 2,304,849,611 Shares) has been used for the
calculation of the approximate percentage of shareholdings in
the Company.

2. China Cinda directly holds 100% of the issued shares of Cinda
HK, which in turn holds 100% of the issued shares of Regent
Star, the beneficial owner of such 193,133,047 underlying
Shares. Therefore, China Cinda and Cinda HK are deemed
to be interested in the underlying Shares held by Regent Star
pursuant to Part XV of the SFO.

3. These represent unlisted physically settled derivatives of the
Company.

Annual Confirmation of Independence

The Company has received from each of the independent
non-executive Directors an annual confirmation of his
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
The Company considers all of the independent non-executive
Directors to be independent.

Connected Transaction

There were no connected transactions or continuing
connected transactions of the Company that were
not exempt from the annual reporting requirement in
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules during Year 2021 and
the related party transactions as set out in note 35(a) to
the consolidated financial statements did not constitute
connected transactions or continuing connected transactions
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The Directors
confirm that the Company has complied with the disclosure
requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

Buy-Back, Sales or Redemption of Listed Securities

During Year 2021, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries bought back, sold or redeemed any of its listed
securities.

Silver Grant International Holdings Group Limited
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Emolument Policy

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set
up by the Remuneration Committee and is based on their
merit, qualifications and competence.

The emoluments of the Directors are decided by the
Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Company’s
operating results, individual performance and comparable
market practices.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of its directors, during
Year 2021 and up to the date of this report, the Company
has maintained sufficient public float of not less than 25% of
the Company’s issued shares as required under the Listing
Rules.

Major Customers and Suppliers

The Group’s revenue for Year 2021 comprised rental income
from the leasing of properties and dividend income from
listed and unlisted securities.

The accumulated amount of revenue attributable to the
Group’s five largest customers during Year 2021 was less
than 30% of the Group’s total revenue for Year 2021.

The Group had no supplier during Year 2021 due to the
nature of its principal business activities.

During Year 2021, none of the Directors or any of their close
associates (within the meaning of the Listing Rules) or any
of the Shareholders who, to the knowledge of the Board,
owned more than 5% of the Shares had interest in any of
the Group’s five largest customers.
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Key Relationships with Employees, Customers
and Suppliers

The Group recognises its employees as one of the
significant assets of the Group. The Group aims to continue
establishing a caring environment for its employees which
emphasises the personal development of its employees. The
Group organises various social and recreational activities,
including annual dinner and birthday parties, to strengthen
the bonding among its employees and promote their sense
of belonging. During Year 2021, there was no material non-
compliance with relevant laws and regulations that had a
significant impact on the Group relating to the compensation
and dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working hours,
rest periods, equal opportunity, anti-discrimination, and other
benefits and welfare with respect to its employees.

The Group understands that it is important to maintain good
relationships with its tenants in relation to its property leasing
business by continuous interaction with them and being
responsive to their demands. The Group has also established
procedures for handling the complaints from its tenants to
ensure the complaints are dealt with in a prompt and timely
manner. Because of its business nature, the Group does not
rely on any major tenants and no credit terms are granted to
them.

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance (Chapter 485 of the Laws of Hong Kong) for
those employees who are eligible to participate in the MPF
Scheme. Contributions are made based on a percentage of
the employees’ basic salaries and are charged to profit or
loss as they become payable in accordance with the rules
of the MPF Scheme. The Group’s employer contributions
vest fully with the employees when contributed into the
MPF Scheme. Where employees leave the scheme prior to
the full vesting of the employer’s contributions, the amount
of forfeited contributions cannot be used to reduce the
contributions payable by the Group.

Silver Grant International Holdings Group Limited
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Key Relationships with Employees, Customers
and Suppliers (Continued)

The employees of the Company’s subsidiaries which operate
in Mainland China are required to participate in a central
pension scheme (the “Pension Scheme”) operated by the
local municipal government. The subsidiaries are required
to contribute certain percentages of their payroll costs to
the Pension Scheme. The only obligation of the Group
with respect to the Pension Scheme is to pay the ongoing
contributions under the Pension Scheme. The contributions
are charged to profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the Pension Scheme. No
forfeited contribution is available to reduce the contribution
payable by the Group in future years.

The Group is also dedicated to developing good
relationships with its suppliers and business partners to
ensure the stability of it business. The Group reinforces
the business relationships with its suppliers and business
partners by ongoing communication with them in a proactive
and effective manner so as to ensure the timely delivery
of services to the Group and a wide range of potential
investments will be available to the Group at all times.
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Auditor

Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu has resigned as an auditor
of the Company with effect from 6 February 2020. Messrs.
Ernst & Young has been appointed as the new auditor of the
Company by the Board with effect from 6 February 2020 to
fill the casual vacancy following the resignation of Messrs.
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu.

A resolution will be submitted to the Annual General Meeting

to re-appoint Messrs. Ernst & Young as auditor of the
Company.

On behalf of the Board
Chu Hing Tsung
Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director

Hong Kong, 21 April 2022

Silver Grant International Holdings Group Limited
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e
EY:

To the members of
Silver Grant International Holdings Group Limited
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements
of Silver Grant International Holdings Group Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out
on pages 105 to 257, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2021, and
the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2021, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.
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Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of
the consolidated financial statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants
(the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Material uncertainty related to going concern

We draw attention to Note 2.1 to the consolidated financial
statements which indicates notwithstanding that the Group
had net current assets of approximately HK$1,776 million
as at 31 December 2021, there are identified events
or conditions that indicate the existence of a material
uncertainty related to going concern, when considering
that the Group’s current portion of interest-bearing bank
and other borrowings and convertible bonds amounted to
approximately HK$1,843 million in aggregate while its cash
and bank balances amounted to approximately HK$117
million. This, along with other matters as set forth in Note
2.1 to the consolidated financial statements, may cast
significant doubt about the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this
matter.

Silver Grant International Holdings Group Limited
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Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period.
In addition to the matters described in the Material
uncertainty related to going concern section of our report,
we have determined the matters described below to be
key audit matters to be communicated in our report.
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit
of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and
in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters. For each matter below,
our description of how our audit addressed the matter is
provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the
Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report, including in
relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included
the performance of procedures designed to respond to our
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements. The results of our audit
procedures, including the procedures performed to address
the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on
the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

Annual Report 2021
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Key audit matter

HREITER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Bz EtNEERARETER

Valuation of investment properties and leasehold land and buildings under property, plant and

equipment

REWHERYF  BERRETHELHREFZIAE

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had investment
properties and leasehold land and buildings under
property, plant and equipment, which were stated
at fair value, with an aggregate carrying amount of
approximately HK$2,971 million. The carrying amount
of the investment properties and leasehold land and
buildings represented approximately 26% of the total
assets of the Group as at 31 December 2021.
M20215F12A31H - EEEREAME - WEMKREBER
THREMEARBE T REFHEREDERLBRAA
18#72,971,000,000% L 71| Bk - 2021612310 » &
EMEUARBE L MBFHREENL BEEEEEE
#4926% °

The Group engaged external valuers to determine the
fair value of the investment properties and leasehold
land and buildings at the end of the reporting period.

EEERNREPREBI L EMETREYENURE
ETREFHRAME -

We identified this as a key audit matter because the
carrying amount of the investment properties and
leasehold land and buildings was significant to the
Group and subjective judgements were made by
management in determining the assumptions and
inputs of the valuation.
HRIREYMEURAE T M REFNREEY E5E
MEBEX  BEBERETMEZREREBABER
TER B AE - R MBS RERETFE -

Related disclosures are included in notes 2.5, 3, 13

and 14 to the consolidated financial statements.
EEE BN GRE M EREME2.5 3 13K%14 °
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The following procedures were performed to
address the identified key audit matter:
HPIRECBAIARBAFTEZIEFWT

o We obtained and reviewed the valuation
reports prepared by the external valuers
engaged by the Group.

BMEEIEE BSEEEDZINMEERFTR
2 HERS -

° We assessed the external valuers’ qualification,
experience and expertise and considered their
objectivity and independence.
BPIFHEINBIEERM BE - KRBRERAZ
WEBHZHERB LI

° We involved our internal valuation specialists

to assist us in the assessment of the
valuation methodologies applied and the key
assumptions and estimates adopted in the
valuation, and performed benchmarking on
the value of the properties to the transaction
prices of other comparable properties on a
sample basis.
FAPIBAE A EB A EE R 5 B B AP AR 5 S EH
HEMAZEEREARMRA 2 FEZRERM
T WAHMAI B BME RSB RELE - {4
BZEMEZEBE-

° We also assessed the adequacy of the
disclosures of the valuation of the investment
properties and leasehold land and buildings
under property, plant and equipment in the
consolidated financial statements.

BN LGRS BRRAREMERYZE - K
EEZRETHEL M REFHERENTRE -

REFEZEREERER QA
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Key audit matter

HRETER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Bz Et N EERARETER

Recoverability assessment of amounts due from an associate and joint ventures and loan

receivables

TR —KBERAR —KREELEHURERE 2 TR E] 1

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had amounts
due from an associate and joint ventures and loan
receivables with an aggregate carrying amount
of approximately HK$4,609 million, representing
approximately 40% of the total assets of the Group.
The expected credit losses recognised for the year
ended 31 December 2021 amounted to approximately
HK$1 million.

M20215F12A31H » E5ERK—FKBERRA LGS
10 5 FRA R B WU E SR BR TH (B 48 (8. 4 &4,609,000,000
Bt BESEEBEENNI% - BLE2021F12H
31EIEFE - HREHEEEELR1,000,000% T

Management applied the general approach in
assessing the associated credit risks and exposures
and engaged an external valuer in determining the
allowance for expected credit losses.
ERERA—RAENGHEBEEERR RRERKAD - I
ZHEINEBILERE ETRREEEERE -

We identified this as a key audit matter because the
aggregate carrying amount of the amounts due from
an associate and joint ventures and loan receivables
was significant to the Group and subjective
judgements were made by management and the
external valuer in determining the allowance for
expected credit losses.

R —KE & R R R A S b ERAREKE R R
HEALRYE SEEM=BEAN - BEREERINMEE
RifEL FEHETAE T TRRE EBERE - HEFIER
AR ELTEIE -

Related disclosures are included in notes 2.5, 3
and 17, 18 and 20 to the consolidated financial
statements.

MHRREEN G M BE®ERME25 317 - 18%20 -
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The following procedures were performed to
address the identified key audit matter:
HPIRECBPIARBAFTEZIEFWT ¢

° We obtained and reviewed the expected credit
loss calculations prepared by the external
valuer engaged by the Group.

BMESITERN BEREEFZINMEER IR
HBHEEBRTEE -

° We assessed the external valuer’s qualification,
experience and expertise and considered its
objectivity and independence.
BAFHEIND A 2 BE - &8 REXMH -
WEBHZHMERB LI

° We involved our internal valuation
specialists to assist us in the assessment
of the methodologies applied and the key
assumptions and estimates adopted in the
expected credit loss calculations.
HFIBEABEEER BB HMT G ERRGE
EEEMAZHERRA EERERMEE -

° We also assessed the adequacy of the
disclosures of the recoverability assessment
of amounts due from an associate and
joint ventures and loan receivables in the
consolidated financial statements.

B ERER S B R AR R e — KB &
NARa & E AR E R AT E R 2 5
M o
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Key audit matter

HREEITER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Bz Et O EERARETER

Impairment assessment of investment in a joint venture

HEERENREN BT

As at 31 December 2021, the Group held investment
in a joint venture with a carrying amount, net of
impairment, of approximately HK$1,544 million,
where an indication of impairment exists. Hence, the
Group has performed an impairment assessment on
its investment in this joint venture by calculating the
recoverable amount, based on the value-in-use as
determined by an external valuer using the discounted
cash flow model. Based on the assessment result, an
impairment loss of approximately HK$305 million was
recognised in profit or loss during the year.
R2021F12A31H - EEEFKE " RELELENR
& - HEREEHNRRIRE) & 41,544,000,0008 7T © &
EHRBETR - At EXECHEARZEEREN
REETRENE - FERBBRINBEEMEARIRER
emERAEECNEREERFAEKREIEEE o BRIEFT
&R - N F AT 1E & 7 2R B & 8 £9305,000,000
BTT ©

We identified this as a key audit matter because the
determination of the recoverable amount of the joint
venture requires significant management judgements
and estimates.

BB AEREAFTIE  DHREETSERENT
WEeEEESKNERRE I R -

Related disclosures are included in notes 2.5, 3 and

18 to the consolidated financial statements.
EEEBEE NG E R EME2.5 - 3&18 °
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The following procedures were performed to
address the identified key audit matter:

ZAREECHAIERETFRCRFOT

° We discussed with management and external
valuer regarding the valuation process,
significant assumptions and inputs used in the
cash flow forecasts and the management’s
critical judgmental areas.

BAEERE RINBEERM N B B EERT
IR IR TR P E A A ERRER M ABURIA K
E IR IE B0 A B2 1l SR o

° We evaluated the key assumptions and inputs
used in the cash flow forecasts based on
our knowledge of the business, historical
performance, economic and industry data and
publicly available information.
BAOBRBERMEEROME - BERR - LK
TEREBBERAFRER - SHERR 2RISR P E A
B Z Rk N A B -

° We assessed the external valuer’s qualification,
experience and expertise and considered its
objectivity and independence.
BRI ER 2 B - KR REENE
WEBHZHME LB

° We involved our internal valuation specialists
to assist us in evaluating the methodologies
applied and the discount rate and growth rate
adopted in the cash flow forecasts.
BMEFADEESRBEMTEER 2 RTER
PR Z /AR PR BhER R g R -

° We also assessed the adequacy of the
disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements.

BAMHEREEMBRRAZEE TR -

REFEZEREERER QA
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Other information included in the Annual Report

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Annual Report, other than the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on
the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

Annual Report 2021
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Responsibilities of the directors for the consolidated
financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued
by the HKICPA and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors of the Company are responsible for assessing the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the directors of
the Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit

Committee in discharging their responsibilities for overseeing
the Group’s financial reporting process.

Silver Grant International Holdings Group Limited
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with section 405 of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

Annual Report 2021
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements (Continued)

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Silver Grant International Holdings Group Limited
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements (Continued)

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our
audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence and to communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance
in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

Annual Report 2021
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements (Continued)

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Chow Chi Chung.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
27/F, One Taikoo Place

979 King’s Road

Quarry Bay, Hong Kong

21 April 2022

Silver Grant International Holdings Group Limited
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFITOR LOSS 2 & 1B &E &

For the year ended 31 December 2021

Bt E202146 12831 AILF/E
2021 2020
Note HK$’000 HK$°000
HtaF FET FET
Rental income HEa2UA & 87,376 89,128
Direct operating expenses HELZHAY (5,910) (9,016)
81,466 80,112
Dividend income from listed and EmkIELTES
unlisted securities % B 5 102 116
Other income, gains and losses Hipg A~ Wz & EE 5 348,441 285,084
Change in fair value of financial assets LAR Bzt 8 H E &4 E)
at fair value through profit or loss ATABEMEREEL
NAEEE (102,689) (667)
Change in fair value of derivative PTESMI A AR BEES
financial instruments (15,203) 39,630
(Impairment)/reversal of impairment of & @&ZE CRE),
financial assets, net VERIEEZAEpE ] (950) 6,352
Administrative expenses THRER (267,285) (224,170)
Change in fair value of investment WEMEZ ARELEE
properties 31,814 (13,555)
Finance costs HM%ER 7 (410,008) (216,675)
Share of (losses)/profits of: BETE 2 (E18), w5 f)
— associates — B NF (45,380) 3,325
— joint ventures — BEDE (1,417,546) (404,061)
Loss before taxation BREEATE B 6 (1,797,238) (444,509)
Taxation 1B 10 (15,256) 3,401
Loss for the year FAEIE (1,812,494) (441,108)
Loss attributable to: AR & 75 (G &1 -
— Owners of the Company — AREEAA (1,452,609) (317,641)
— Non-controlling interests — IR (359,885) (123,467)
(1,812,494) (441,108)
LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE ARAQAFLE#ERIEE AEN
TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS #&RE#E (LLAEMLSIR)
OF THE COMPANY (in HK cents)
— Basic — BEXK (63.02) (13.78)
— Diluted — #E (63.02) (13.78)
Annual Report 2021 —FFHk
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME £ & 2 H W 2 &

For the year ended 31 December 2021

B FE2021F 12531 HIFF/Z
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FEIT
LOSS FOR THE YEAR FAER (1,812,494) (441,108)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME F R H 1 2 H W
FOR THE YEAR
Other comprehensive income that may &HIR]EHHEEEZR Y
be reclassified to profit or loss in Hip 2wl e=s
subsequent periods
Exchange differences on translation A& /GINEFFELE ZE N =58
of foreign operations 134,363 326,891
Total other comprehensive income that & EBiR] EfT N =Bz 2
may be reclassified to profit or loss H b2 E IR SRR
in subsequent periods 134,363 326,891
Other comprehensive income/(loss) BRETAIEN D EEER Y
that will not be reclassified to profit HEemmiies, (BE):
or loss in subsequent periods:
Gain/(loss) arising on property B W (BE):
revaluation 12,632 (85,779
Income tax effect FrisBis & (261) 9,644
Net other comprehensive income/(loss) & EI NI EFH D ATIEZ
that will not be reclassified to profit ZEMEEKZE S (EE)
or loss in subsequent periods FEE 12,371 (26,135)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME S RHMEmEKE (FE)
FOR THE YEAR, (BR#B&K)
NET OF TAX 146,734 300,756
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE LOSS FRAZHEBEAE
FOR THE YEAR (1,665,760) (140,352)
Total comprehensive loss attributable to: 2 [ E518 4258 FE 1L :
— Owners of the Company — KREER A (1,328,410) (62,450)
— Non-controlling interests — FEHERRE R (337,350) (77,902)
(1,665,760) (140,352)

Silver Grant International Holdings Group Limited
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION #& &

At 31 December 2021

B % R R &

R2021F12H31H
2021 2020
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
HtaE FET FET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FEREBEE
Investment properties KREYE 13 2,730,045 2,624,229
Property, plant and equipment ME - BB MR 14 271,659 250,921
Right-of-use assets FEHREEE 15 51,773 54,216
Other intangible assets Hihmp&E 16 2,814 —
Interests in associates RN b 17 335,507 85,569
Interests in joint ventures SRR 18 1,568,397 3,033,385
Amount due from an associate FEU — KB E N R 17 560,690 —
Amounts due from joint ventures WS LDER 18 1,747,964 969,951
Financial assets at fair value through AR EGTEEEE
profit or loss SFABERNTREE 19 167,689 2,780
Loan receivables FEWE K 20 - 231,932
Total non-current assets IEREBEERE 7,436,538 7,252,983
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Trade receivables FE AR R 21 4,377 7,317
Deposits, prepayments and other e - BRRREAmE
receivables Wk 22 714,075 420,467
Amount due from a joint venture B —REETER 18 61,078 59,528
Amount due from an associate UL — KBt & N Al 17 - 584,989
Loan receivables FEWE R 20 2,239,727 1,207,369
Financial assets at fair value through LA AAESTE B HEH)
profit or loss STABSHEREE 719 952,679 875,206
Derivative financial instruments PTEEMIA 27 22,280 37,483
Pledged bank deposits BEMIRITER 23 24,450 23,753
Cash and bank balances e R/ITER 23 116,755 769,767
Total current assets RBEERE 4,135,421 3,985,879
CURRENT LIABILITIES REAEE
Accrued charges, rental deposits and  EtER - KRS &
other payables At FE T 5K 24 405,116 287,160
Interest-bearing bank and other FTRRITRHEMER
borrowings 25 541,037 369,309
Taxation payable FET R IB 109,457 108,272
Lease liabilities HEEE 15 2,048 -
Convertible bonds AR ESH 26 1,301,494 —
Total current liabilities BB EEE 2,359,152 764,741
NET CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE 1,776,269 3,221,138
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT EELERRBER
LIABILITIES 9,212,807 10,474,121
Annual Report 2021 T —FFR



108

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION % 4 Bf & iR R 3=

At 31 December 2021

R20214F12H31H
2021 2020
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
HtaF FET FET
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FREBEME
Interest-bearing bank and other AFERITREMER
borrowings 25 3,193,628 1,571,112
Convertible bonds ] PR (& & 26 - 1,232,463
Lease liabilities HEaE 15 52,404 48,532
Deferred tax liabilities ELEHIHAR 28 248,542 238,021
Total non-current liabilities ERBAERE 3,494,574 3,090,128
Net assets FEE 5,718,233 7,383,993
EQUITY B #E
Equity attributable to owners of the RRBEE ARERE
Company
Share capital R AN 29 3,626,781 3,626,781
Reserves s 30 1,604,563 2,932,973
5,231,344 6,559,754
Non-controlling interests FEFE AR AE = 486,889 824,239
Total equity feiELR(E 5,718,233 7,383,993
Wang Ping Luo Zhihai
E¥F EEE
Director Director
EZE EZE

Silver Grant International Holdings Group Limited
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY iR &R # B X

For the year ended 31 December 2021

B ZE2021F 12431 HIFF/E

Attributable to owners of the Company

RAREEAELE
Asset Non-
Share revaluation Translation  Retained controlling Total
capital reserve reserve profits  Sub-total interests equity
BE FER
kx Btk EXRE  REER gt B REAE
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK 000
AT AT AT AT AT AT AT
(note 29)
(hi29)
At 1 Januery 2020 1202051 A 1B 3626781  282,249° 56,557 2656617 6620204 902,141 7,524,345
Loss for the year EnEE - - —  (317641)  (B17.641)  (123467)  (441,108)
Other comprenensive income/(loss) FRAMEENS/
for the year: (B%8):
Fxchange differences on translation REBNEBEE L
of foreign operations EizE - - 281,326 - 281,326 45,565 326,891
Loss arising on property revaluation, ERNFEECEE
net of tax (i) - (26,135) = = (26,135) = (26,135)
Total comprehensive (loss)/income Enzmbs/ (B8)
for the year 3 — 813 8136 (BITEH) (62450  (T.0) (140352
Disposal of leasehold properties under HESHERTH
revaluation model HENZ = (16,166) - 16,166 - - -
At 31 December 2020 and 1 January 2021 R2020E12A31A R
2021511 3,626,781 239,948 337,883  2,355,142* 6,559,754 824,239 7,383,993
Loss for the year EREE - = - (1,452,609) (1,452,609)  (359,885) (1,812,494)
Other comprehensive income for the year: EREMEENE
Fxchange differences on translation REBNEREEL
of foreign operations EiEd - - 111,828 - 111,828 22535 134,363
Gain arising on property revaluation, ERNEEE MR
net of tax (B#ix) - 12,371 - - 12,371 - 12,371
Total comprehensive (oss)/income for the year — £R2E(BR) / Uiz
gz - 12,371 111,828 (1,452,609)  (1,328,410) (337,350)  (1,665,760)
At 31 December 2021 3 20215 12A318 3626781 52319 449711 002533 5231344 486889 5,718,233

These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves

of HK$1,604,563,000 (2020: HK$2,932,973,000) in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

Annual Report 2021
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS &6 HERE R

Year ended 31 December 2021

B FE2021F 12531 HIFF/Z
2021 2020
Note HK$’000 HK$°000
Hfat FET FET
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ¥ ¥KELCHERE
ACTIVITIES
Loss before tax BRELATE B (1,797,238) (444,509)
Adjustments for: T
Share of results of associates Ly NS 45,380 (3,325)
Share of results of joint ventures BEaErEER 1,417,546 404,061
Depreciation of property, plant and VI BB NEREBITE
equipment 14 12,244 11,376
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEERE 15 3,980 2,784
Impairment loss on other intangible H b & ER R EE 1R
assets 16 2,807 —
Finance costs 5 ER 410,008 216,675
Dividend income from listed and EmkIELTES
unlisted securities % S U A ] (102) (116)
Interest income A B U A (289,600) (280,466)
Net loss on disposal of items of HEWE - BERRE
property, plant and equipment BAZERFHE 5 408 24
Change in fair value of investment REMEZARELZS
properties 13 (31,814) 18,565
Change in fair value of financial RARETEEHEE
assets at fair value through profit STABRREMEE
or loss NAEEE 6 102,689 667
Change in fair value of derivative TESMIAZARE
financial instruments =) 6 15,203 (39,630)
Impairment/(reversal of impairment) CREERECRER
of financial assets, net 6] )5 %8 6 950 (6,352)
Write-off of loan and other B I E A YR EE A
receivables and an amount due JE W — S Bk i R R K
from an associate 6 37,394 62,510
(70,145) (62,746)
Increase in financial assets at fair value AR EE BHEH:TA
through profit or loss B R E EE N (302,937) (16,797)
Decrease in trade receivables R UL BR TR > 2,940 1,418
(Increase)/decrease in deposits, Be B E bR BGR
prepayments and other receivables (3%Ehn) A (138,337) 71,576
Increase/(decrease) in accrued charges, FEETEF - HGIES REM
rental deposits and other payables FEftFR3E 0, R4 ) 117,956 (5,009)

Silver Grant International Holdings Group Limited
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS &6 HERE R

Year ended 31 December 2021

B ZE2021F 12431 HIFF/E

2021 2020
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
Bt FET FET
Cash used in operations CEEBAZRE (390,523) (11,558)
Dividend received B U B 102 116
Interest paid BAFE (336,541) (157,221)
Tax (paid)/refunded (B, REIFK (2,624) 640

Net cash flows used in operating CEEBFAZFRERE
activities (729,586) (168,023)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING REXERBEHEERE

ACTIVITIES
Interest received B F A 131,096 276,604
Purchase of items of property, plant BAE - BEREE

and equipment (20,321) (3,252)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEDE  BE MR E

plant and equipment Frigsk78 = 19,798
Advance of loan receivables 237 ERE R (1,844,250) (198,872)
Receipt of loan receivables B FE W B 3R 1,077,728 123,752
Acquisition of a subsidiary U BE — R BT B A A 31 (3,594) -
Advance to an associate B —RKEE AR (16,511) (64,178)
Advance to joint ventures BY —REBDE (721,524) (92,700)
Deposit paid for acquisition of an WHERR R B 2 EN RS

equity investment - (249,695)
Capital injection to an associate M—REERREE (293,399) —
Capital injection to a joint venture M—REETLELE (24,450) -
Increase in pledged deposits 3R 17 SR8 00 (697) (1,432)
Net cash flows used in investing REXEBIAFESRE

activities (1,715,922) (189,975)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS &6 HERE R

Year ended 31 December 2021

Bt E202146 12831 AILF/E
2020
Note HK$’000 HK$°000
HtaF FET FET
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING RMEXBAESRERE
ACTIVITIES
Other loans raised HWERFE 538,648 1,056,271
Senior notes raised EBEERRE = 161,461
Repayment of other loans EEEMER (279,076) (121,382)
New bank loans HIBITER 2,139,364 50,000
Repayment of bank loans BERITER (610,636) (180,000)
Principal portion of lease payments HMENRZARE IS - (11,685)
Net cash flows from financing activities BE&A XS FIRESRE 1,788,300 944,665
NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE IN ReRRESEEGRD),/
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS HEHNEEE (657,208) 586,667
Cash and cash equivalents at RERRESFE
beginning of year FHIEER 769,767 190,247
Effect of foreign exchange rate HNETERF B 2 E - JFE
changes, net 4,196 (7,147)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BHE&RREZHE
END OF YEAR FREEE 116,755 769,767
ANALYSIS OF THE BALANCES OF R&RBELZE
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS g iy
Cash and bank balances e NIRTT4E65 23 116,755 769,767

Silver Grant International Holdings Group Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & &

For the year ended 31 December 2021
Bt E202146 12831 AILF/E

1.

Corporate and Group Information

Silver Grant International Holdings Group Limited
(the “Company”) is a public limited liability company
incorporated in Hong Kong and its shares are listed on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). The registered office and principal place
of business of the Company are located at Suite 4901,
49th Floor, Office Tower, Convention Plaza, 1 Harbour
Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong.

The Company is an investment holding company and is
engaged in property investment and securities trading.
The Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred
as the “Group”) are principally engaged in property
leasing and investments.

Information about subsidiaries

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are

B R MR

RAREEESR

REBFEREBER AR ([ARAE])
BE—RRBEBAMK LN ARERA
A HRONREBBERSHMERAA
([BE22FT]) £ o RARGEMFER R
FEEEMBNMII AT BT B EE
1RERESHAKNEINEIQNIE -

ARB/—FEREERR %%W%
BREREHFEE - AR T&ﬁ%%
(ﬁﬂﬂ$E.DIxﬁ$W¥ﬁE&
BEXRK -

ME QB ER

RRAFNEZMBRBFBEOT :

as follows:
Place of incorporation/ Nominal value of issued and Equity interest attributable
Company name registration and operations  paid-up/registered capital to the Company Principal activities
AR B/ EEREEHED BRRME/ERRAERA RAEERTER TEER
Direct Indirect
ER 3
Twin Sparkle Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100% - Property holding and
investment
RMEERAR 3 %I FENERIE
Real China Development Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100% — Property holding and
investment
FRERARLA B 2B EHESTE

Noda International Investment (Guangzhou)

Co., Limited®" (the “PRC")/Mainland China
HERRRE (BN RRAT PEARAME(PE]),/  AR¥00,0000007
RERY
Hongda International Investment (Guangzhou) PRC/Mainland China RMB500,000,000
Co., Limitet®"
LEERRE (RN ERARD™ E /B ARE500,000,0007

Annual Report 2021
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 & Bt #& 3R & Mi 5%

For the year ended 31 December 2021
Bt E202146 12831 AILF/E

1.

Corporate and Group Information (Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Place of incorporation/

Nominal value of issued and

RAREBMER(E)
MEARER ()

Equity interest attributable

Company name registration and operations  paid-up/registered capital to the Company Principal activities
RS i/ BRREEHEE BRARME/ARRAEE KAREERAER IEEH
Direct Indirect
BE B
Silver Grant International Investment Hong Kong HK$1,000 100% — Investment holding
Management Limited
FRERREREARAA B 1,000/87C RERR
Bejing Runda International Investment PRC/Mainland China RMB500,000,000 — 100%  Investment
Management Limited*"
FRREERREERERATY E /B NRE500,000,0007 k&
Silver Grant International Investment (Guangzhou) ~ PRG/Mainland China RMB200,000,000 - 100%  Investment holding
Co., Limited*®*
BRERRE (BN ARAT™ /AR NEE200,0000007% REBR
Guangzhou Runsui No.2 Partnership PRC/Mainland China N/A = 87.25%  Corporate management
(Limited Partnership)™ senvice
ENER-Saue (RRA%)" e/ HE M ¥k EERRE
Silver Grant International Holding (Guangzhou) ~ PRG/Mainland China RMB50,000,000 - 100%  Investment
Co., Limited"
BEARER(ENFRAT E /B NRE50,000,0007C k&
Guangzhou Runfu No.9 Investment Partnership ~ PRG/Mainland China N/A - 100%  Non-performing asset
(Limited Partnership) investment
ENERNSRACEAR (BRAR)" e/ E M TR TREERE
Beihai Mao Yuan Investment Co., Limited®* PRC/Mainland China RMB50,000,000 - 100%  Investment
PERTRERRAT e/ E M AR$50,000,0007C RE
Yinjian Energy Trading (Guangzhou) Co., Limited®  PRG/Mainland China RMB500,000,000 - 100%  Trading
FRVRES BN ERAT" e/ E M AR$500,000,00072 g5

Silver Grant International Holdings Group Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4 4 Bt ¥ R & M 5F

For the year ended 31 December 2021

B FE2021F 12531 HIFF/Z
1. Corporate and Group Information (Continued) 1. AFARKEEERZ)
Information about subsidiaries (Continued) MELARER(Z)
Place of incorporation/ Nominal value of issued and Equity interest attributable
Company name registration and operations  paid-up/registered capital to the Company Principal activities
L iR/ ZRREEA Y BRARAR/ERRAEE KARELRAER 354
Direct Indirect
Bi [

Taizhou Yinjian Energy Investment Co., Limited® ~ PRG/Mainland China RMB100,000,000 — 100%  Environmental conservation
and renewable energy
investment

FNEEVERAERAR e/ AER ARE100,000,0007 RERERBENRRE

Tai Zhou Dong Thai Petrochemical Company PRC/Mainland China RMB,664,089,268 - 68.07%  Investment holoing and

Limited® investment

FHRERLERLR /e NRE1,664,089,2087 REBRRRE

Konson Investment Limited Hong Kong HK$100 = 70%  Investment holding

AEREERAR (3 10087 RERK

East Gate (Befing) Property Management PRC/Mainland China 1S$100,413,500 — 100%  Property development

Co., Ltd (formerly known as Beiing East Gate and investment

Development Co., Ltd. (‘Befing East Gate')*®"
BRIRNEERERAD IR RREEE  $8/PEMY 100,413 500%7T NEERLRE
BRAA L RRR)™

Beiing Ju Fu Real Estate Development Company ~ PRG/Mainland China RMB105,000,000 - 99.05%  Property development
Limited (‘Beiing Ju Fu’)* and investment

FRERFHEREARAAHRER N E /B NBE105,000,0007 NEERRIRE

# Registered as domestic limited liability companies under i BEPENEEEMARNEER AT -
the PRC law

e Registered as wholly-foreign-owned enterprise under the ® BIEFBEEEEMAINEZEHRER
PRC law Al e

" The English names of these companies represent the " AR RFMERTE HRXERE - %
best effort made by management of the Company to ERAMENERBOARREERER
directly translate their Chinese names as they did not SAZNHERXEBEEMS -

register any official English names.

* Registered as limited partnership company under the * RIEFBAEFMABREBDE -
PRC law.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 & Bt #& 3R & Mi 5%

For the year ended 31 December 2021

()  The above table lists the subsidiaries of the
Company which, in the opinion of the directors,
principally affected the results for the reporting
year or formed a substantial portion of the net
assets of the Group. To give details of other
subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors,
result in particulars of excessive length.

2.1 Basis of Presentation

As at 31 December 2021, notwithstanding that
the Group had net current assets of approximately
HK$1,776 million, the Group’s interest-bearing bank
and other borrowings and convertible bonds in an
aggregate amount of approximately HK$1,843 million
are due to be repayable within the next 12 months
while its cash and bank balances amounted to
approximately HK$117 million.

In view of the above circumstances, the directors
of the Company have given careful consideration to
the Group’s future liquidity requirements, operating
performance and available sources of financing in
assessing the Group’s ability to operate as a going
concern. The following plans and measures are
formulated to manage the working capital and improve
the financial position of the Group:

()  The Group will continue to implement measures
to speed up the collection of outstanding loan
receivables.

(i)  The Group will continue to take measures
to expedite the disposal of financial asset
investments, including equity investments and
non-performing assets portfolio.

Silver Grant International Holdings Group Limited

Bt E202146 12831 AILF/E
1. Corporate and Group Information (Continued) 1. QEAREEERE)
Information about subsidiaries (Continued) MELARER(Z)

() LEREINEFBRIZBFELR
BAREFEXEINBERNAEE
FEEEARBONARBN B R
Al EERA RHEMHEAR
ANFHIFEEHERNBRTTE

B 7N 5= @ 20214128318 B R
g & E F ¥ 4 B1,776,000,000/%8
T EAEERG BRI REAME
ERBRESNRDIEDEHOA
1,843,000,000/% T+ B H 72 1A K 2K
TZEAREE  mMERES RRITEH
#97/4117,000,00078 7T

ERLMIER RRARESHENEARE
ERELERE T  EFAZSELRAEHE
RRBBESHF K  KERERATAE
BHRR - REBRLEER  HELEE
BIFEARM - RARIEHIE A T8I R
i

() 7GR Al A BREREE 3 AN R M =)
REENEEER -

(i) ANEEGEBRIEBMNREE
TREERE  BREBEERER
TREEMS -

REFEZEREERER QA



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4 4 Bt ¥ R & M 5F

For the year ended 31 December 2021
Bt E202146 12831 AILF/E

2.1 Basis of Presentation (Continued) 21 E2IEEE)

(i)  The Group is actively negotiating with the holders
of the convertible bonds for refinancing its
convertible bonds due in 2022.

The directors of the Company have reviewed
the Group’s cash flow projections prepared by
management, which cover a period of not less than
twelve months from 31 December 2021. They are
of the opinion that, taking into account the above-
mentioned plans and measures, the Group will have
sufficient working capital to finance its operations and
to meet its financial obligations as and when they
fall due. Accordingly, the directors of the Company
are satisfied that it is appropriate to prepare the
consolidated financial statements of the Group on a
going concern basis.

Notwithstanding the above, there are inherent
uncertainties as to whether the Group is able to
achieve its plans and measures as described above.
Whether the Group will be able to generate adequate
cash flows to continue as a going concern would
depend on (i) the successful and timely implementation
of the plans and measures to speed up the collection
of outstanding loan receivables; (i) the successful and
timely implementation of the plans for the disposal
of financial asset investments; and (iii) the successful
refinancing of its outstanding convertible bonds.

Annual Report 2021
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 & Bt #& 3R & Mi 5%

For the year ended 31 December 2021
Bt E202146 12831 AILF/E

2.1

2.2

Basis of Presentation (Continued)

Should the Group be unable to achieve the above-
mentioned plans and measures, the Group may be
unable to continue to operate as a going concern,
in which case adjustments would have to be made
to adjust the values of the Group’s assets to their
recoverable amounts, to provide for any further liabilities
which might arise and to reclassify non-current assets
and non-current liabilities as current assets and current
liabilities, respectively. The effects of these adjustments
have not been reflected in these consolidated financial
statements.

Basis of Preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) (which include all Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”), accounting principles generally accepted in
Hong Kong and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
They have been prepared under the historical
cost convention, except for investment properties,
leasehold land and buildings under property, plant and
equipment, financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss and derivative financial instruments, which have
been measured at fair value. These financial statements
are presented in Hong Kong dollars and all values are
rounded to the nearest thousand (HK$’000) except
when otherwise indicated.

Silver Grant International Holdings Group Limited

2.1

2.2

EIEEE)

HASKEEEER L8 kG - A
SERVEBERFELERBREL
2 EZBRAT  BTEITHBAEE
BENBEZHEMNBOSE - SR
EENTAE - SREMEE - LAk
RBEERFRBDABDHEFDER
MBEERRBAR - ZEHABNTE
RARE R TR A M RR AR o

mBLEE

AMBHRERCREBEEASGAMAS(E
BEEA® DBEMNEEMBREE
AT EEMBHREER ] (BREMAER
BUBmEER  FEGHER(ER
SR ER D RRE) BAEARERR
A RBERARGIIRE - RIREWE -
ME - BEMRBETZHEHEL W NE
FURAEFEREZSFAABRZE
MEERTESRIARRAAENE
O NER A M SRR BIRE LR AE
MREL - BR A AHEBAS - AR BEHRRIAE
TTEY - BB SBREREREAOT
B (THET)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4 4 Bt ¥ R & M 5F

For the year ended 31 December 2021
Bt E202146 12831 AILF/E

2.2 RBEE(E)

2.2 Basis of Preparation (Continued)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include
the financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries for the year ended 31 December 2021. A
subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity),
directly or indirectly, controlled by the Company.
Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or
has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with
the investee and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the investee (i.e., existing rights
that give the Group the current ability to direct the
relevant activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less
than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an
investee, the Group considers all relevant facts and
circumstances in assessing whether it has power over
an investee, including:

(@) the contractual arrangement with the other vote
holders of the investee;

(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements;
and

(c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting
rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are
prepared for the same reporting period as the
Company, using consistent accounting policies. The
results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date
on which the Group obtains control, and continue to be
consolidated until the date that such control ceases.

Annual Report 2021
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 & Bt #& 3R & Mi 5%

For the year ended 31 December 2021
Bt E202146 12831 AILF/E

2.2 RBEE(E)

2.2 Basis of Preparation (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the owners
of the parent of the Group and to the non-controlling
interests, even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets
and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows
relating to transactions between members of the Group
are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there
are changes to one or more of the three elements of
control described above. A change in the ownership
interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is
accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it
derecognises (i) the assets (including goodwill) and
liabilities of the subsidiary, (i) the carrying amount of
any non-controlling interest and (iii) the cumulative
translation differences recorded in equity; and
recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration
received, (i) the fair value of any investment retained
and (iii) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss.
The Group’s share of components previously recognised
in other comprehensive income is reclassified to profit
or loss or retained profits, as appropriate, on the same
basis as would be required if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

Silver Grant International Holdings Group Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS % & Bt 7% 3R & M} &%

For the year ended 31 December 2021
E22021F 12831 HILFE

2.3 Changes in Accounting Policies and 23 SBEREEZEH
Disclosures

The Group has adopted the following revised HKFRSs REEERAFEMBREENERAT
for the first time for the current year’s financial HENER] BB B E 2R
statements:

Amendments to HKFRS 9, Interest Rate Benchmark BEVBMEER  FIERENE
HKAS 39, HKFRS 7, Reform — Phase 2 Fo% - HEGET —F =g
HKFRS 4 and HKFRS16 HRFE395 - B

g sat=pi ]

ET - BEMB
HEERFIHR K

ERB G ERE LR
F16RIEE] A
Amendment to HKFRS 16 Covid-19-Related ERUMBRELR  2021F6H30H
Rent Concessions F1BTASFT A 7 £1Covid-19
beyond 30 June 2021 Viclc ik
(early adopted) R (FEF

ww)

Annual Report 2021 —E-—FFR




122

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 & Bt #& 3R & Mi 5%

For the year ended 31 December 2021
Bt E202146 12831 AILF/E

2.3 Changes in Accounting Policies and
Disclosures (Continued)

The nature and the impact of the revised HKFRSs are

described below:

(a)

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, HKFRS 7,
HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16 address issues not dealt
with in the previous amendments which affect
financial reporting when an existing interest rate
benchmark is replaced with an alternative risk-free
rate (“RFR”). The amendments provide a practical
expedient to allow the effective interest rate to be
updated without adjusting the carrying amount
of financial assets and liabilities when accounting
for changes in the basis for determining the
contractual cash flows of financial assets and
liabilities, if the change is a direct consequence
of the interest rate benchmark reform and the
new basis for determining the contractual cash
flows is economically equivalent to the previous
basis immediately preceding the change. In
addition, the amendments permit changes
required by the interest rate benchmark reform
to be made to hedge designations and hedge
documentation without the hedging relationship
being discontinued. Any gains or losses that
could arise on transition are dealt with through the
normal requirements of HKFRS 9 to measure and
recognise hedge ineffectiveness. The amendments
also provide a temporary relief to entities from
having to meet the separately identifiable
requirement when an RFR is designated as
a risk component. The relief allows an entity,
upon designation of the hedge, to assume that
the separately identifiable requirement is met,
provided the entity reasonably expects the RFR
risk component to become separately identifiable
within the next 24 months. Furthermore, the
amendments require an entity to disclose
additional information to enable users of financia
statements to understand the effect of interest
rate benchmark reform on an entity’s financial
instruments and risk management strategy. The
amendments did not have any impact on the
financial position and performance of the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4 4 Bt ¥ R & M 5F

For the year ended 31 December 2021
Bt E202146 12831 AILF/E

2.3 Changes in Accounting Policies and
Disclosures (Continued)

(b)

Amendment to HKFRS 16 issued in April 2021
extends the availability of the practical expedient
for lessees to elect not to apply lease modification
accounting for rent concessions arising as a
direct consequence of the Covid-19 pandemic by
12 months. Accordingly, the practical expedient
applies to rent concessions for which any
reduction in lease payments affects only payments
originally due on or before 30 June 2022, provided
the other conditions for applying the practical
expedient are met. The amendment is effective
retrospectively for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 April 2021 with any cumulative effect
of initially applying the amendment recognised as
an adjustment to the opening balance of retained
profits at the beginning of the current accounting
period. Earlier application is permitted.

The Group has early adopted the amendment
on 1 January 2021. However, the Group has not
received Covid-19-related rent concessions and
plans to apply the practical expedient when it
becomes applicable within the allowed period of
application.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 & Bt #& 3R & Mi 5%

For the year ended 31 December 2021
Bt E202146 12831 AILF/E

2.4 Issued But Not Yet Effective Hong Kong 24 EEMEENKRERZERBMBERS

Financial Reporting Standards

AEE L BNATEHRAER THIEE
B m R R RR O AT MARIERT BB R 75

The Group has not applied the following new and
revised HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet

effective, in these financial statements.

e -

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual BRUBREER S BB
Framework EIRIEET A BRI B
Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets BT BREER REZHREE
and HKAS 28 (2011) between an Investor and its F10RREEGE REHEETF
Associate or Joint Venture® R 55285 2 BB E L &
(20118 ) BET AR FRAS
HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts? BRUBREER Rz & 42
AT
Amendments to HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts? 5 EREUBREENE  REEA?°
175RAER] R
Amendment to HKFRS 17 Initial Application of BB RELR G IER BB
HKFRS 17 and HKFRS 9 FATHRIEFT AR HEERIE 175
— Comparative Information? REEBHHE
CERZ9HE —
HEE R
Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as BE G ER B ESIERETE
Current or Non-current® * FRIEFTAR SLIERTHE? 4
Amendments to HKAS 1 and  Disclosure of Accounting BERGEREIRR B HEFE
HKFRS Practice Policies? BRI GRS ER
Statement 2 B RSB0
BRI
Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting BEA SR ERIEH BT 15 HEE?
Estimates? BRI

Amendments to HKAS 12

Deferred Tax related to Assets

BRGNS 125

KEE—X5

and Liabilities arising from EEEN BHEEREE
a Single Transaction? HEREFIE?
Amendments to HKAS 16 Property, Plant and BB EAE16Y. UE - BER
Equipment: Proceeds BRI RIEHEHE
before Intended Use' b0l e ek
Amendments to HKAS 37 Onerous Contracts — Cost of BB GREREIT  BRMA—ET
Fulfiling a Contract' EEEN BRI A
Annual Improvements to Amendments to HKFRS 1, BRI REER BB IR ER
HKFRSs 2018-2020 HKFRS 9, lllustrative 20185 % Z15% - BF
Examples accompanying 20205 EH 2 BIEIEER
HKFRS 16, and HKAS 41° FREBHE E9ut - BE
BB HREER|
FE16758E1 2
HHIREESE
ERIF415
BET A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4 4 Bt ¥ R & M 5F

For the year ended 31 December 2021
E22021F 12831 HILFE

2.4 Issued But Not Yet Effective Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (Continued)

U Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2022

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2023
g No mandatory effective date yet determined but

available for adoption

& As a consequence of the amendments to HKAS 1,
Hong Kong Interpretation 5 Presentation of Financial
Statements — Classification by the Borrower of a Term
Loan that Contains a Repayment on Demand Clause
was revised in October 2020 to align the corresponding
wording with no change in conclusion

9 As a consequence of the amendments to HKFRS 17
issued in October 2020, HKFRS 4 was amended to
extend the temporary exemption that permits insurers to
apply HKAS 39 rather than HKFRS 9 for annual periods
beginning before 1 January 2023
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 & Bt #& 3R & Mi 5%

For the year ended 31 December 2021
Bt E202146 12831 AILF/E

2.4 Issued But Not Yet Effective Hong Kong 24 EEMEENKRERZERBMBERS

Financial Reporting Standards (Continued)

Further information about those HKFRSs that are
expected to be applicable to the Group is described
below:

Amendments to HKFRS 3 are intended to replace a
reference to the previous Framework for the Preparation
and Presentation of Financial Statements with a
reference to the Conceptual Framework for Financial
Reporting issued in June 2018 without significantly
changing its requirements. The amendments also add
to HKFRS 3 an exception to its recognition principle
for an entity to refer to the Conceptual Framework to
determine what constitutes an asset or a liability. The
exception specifies that, for liabilities and contingent
liabilities that would be within the scope of HKAS 37
or HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 if they were incurred separately
rather than assumed in a business combination, an
entity applying HKFRS 3 should refer to HKAS 37 or
HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 respectively instead of the Conceptual
Framework. Furthermore, the amendments clarify
that contingent assets do not qualify for recognition
at the acquisition date. The Group expects to adopt
the amendments prospectively from 1 January 2022.
Since the amendments apply prospectively to business
combinations for which the acquisition date is on or
after the date of first application, the Group will not
be affected by these amendments on the date of
transition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4 4 Bt ¥ R & M 5F

For the year ended 31 December 2021
Bt E202146 12831 AILF/E

2.4 Issued But Not Yet Effective Hong Kong 24 EEMEENKRERZERBMBERS

Financial Reporting Standards (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011)
address an inconsistency between the requirements
in HKFRS 10 and in HKAS 28 (2011) in dealing with
the sale or contribution of assets between an investor
and its associate or joint venture. The amendments
require a full recognition of a gain or loss resulting
from a downstream transaction when the sale or
contribution of assets between an investor and its
associate or joint venture constitutes a business. For
a transaction involving assets that do not constitute a
business, a gain or loss resulting from the transaction
is recognised in the investor’s profit or loss only to
the extent of the unrelated investor’s interest in that
associate or joint venture. The amendments are to be
applied prospectively. The previous mandatory effective
date of amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28
(2011) was removed by the HKICPA in January 2016
and a new mandatory effective date will be determined
after the completion of a broader review of accounting
for associates and joint ventures. However, the
amendments are available for adoption now.

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities
as Current or Non-current clarify the requirements
for classifying liabilities as current or non-current.
The amendments specify that if an entity’s right to
defer settlement of a liability is subject to the entity
complying with specified conditions, the entity has a
right to defer settlement of the liability at the end of the
reporting period if it complies with those conditions at
that date. Classification of a liability is unaffected by
the likelihood that the entity will exercise its right to
defer settlement of the liability. The amendments also
clarify the situations that are considered a settlement
of a liability. The amendments are effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023 and
shall be applied retrospectively. Earlier application
is permitted. The amendments are not expected to
have any significant impact on the Group’s financial
statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 & Bt #& 3R & Mi 5%

For the year ended 31 December 2021
Bt E202146 12831 AILF/E

2.4 Issued But Not Yet Effective Hong Kong 24 EEMEENKRERZERBMBERS

Financial Reporting Standards (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure of Accounting
Policies require entities to disclose their material
accounting policy information rather than their
significant accounting policies. Accounting policy
information is material if, when considered together
with other information included in an entity’s financial
statements, it can reasonably be expected to influence
decisions that the primary users of general purpose
financial statements make on the basis of those
financial statements. Amendments to HKFRS Practice
Statement 2 provide non-mandatory guidance on how
to apply the concept of materiality to accounting policy
disclosures. Amendments to HKAS 1 are effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023
and earlier application is permitted. Since the guidance
provided in the amendments to HKFRS Practice
Statement 2 is non-mandatory, an effective date for
these amendments is not necessary. The Group is
currently assessing the impact of the amendments on
the Group’s accounting policy disclosures.

Amendments to HKAS 8 clarify the distinction between
changes in accounting estimates and changes in
accounting policies. Accounting estimates are defined
as monetary amounts in financial statements that are
subject to measurement uncertainty. The amendments
also clarify how entities use measurement techniques
and inputs to develop accounting estimates. The
amendments are effective for annual reporting periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2023 and apply
to changes in accounting policies and changes in
accounting estimates that occur on or after the start
of that period. Earlier application is permitted. The
amendments are not expected to have any significant
impact on the Group’s financial statements.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021

B FE2021F 12531 HIFF/Z
2.4 Issued But Not Yet Effective Hong Kong 24 EEMEENKRERZERBMBERS

Financial Reporting Standards (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 12 narrow the scope of the
initial recognition exception so that it no longer applies
to transactions that give rise to equal taxable and
deductible temporary differences, such as leases
and decommissioning obligations. Therefore, entities
are required to recognise a deferred tax asset and a
deferred tax liability for temporary differences arising
from these transactions. The amendments are effective
for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1
January 2023 and shall be applied to transactions
related to leases and decommissioning obligations
at the beginning of the earliest comparative period
presented, with any cumulative effect recognised as
an adjustment to the opening balance of retained
profits or other component of equity as appropriate
at that date. In addition, the amendments shall be
applied prospectively to transactions other than leases
and decommissioning obligations. Earlier application
is permitted. The amendments are not expected to
have any significant impact on the Group’s financial
statements.

Amendments to HKAS 16 prohibit an entity from
deducting from the cost of an item of property, plant
and equipment any proceeds from selling items
produced while bringing that asset to the location and
condition necessary for it to be capable of operating
in the manner intended by management. Instead, an
entity recognises the proceeds from selling any such
items, and the cost of those items, in profit or loss.
The amendments are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2022 and shall be
applied retrospectively only to items of property, plant
and equipment made available for use on or after
the beginning of the earliest period presented in the
financial statements in which the entity first applies
the amendments. Earlier application is permitted. The
amendments are not expected to have any significant
impact on the Group’s financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 & Bt #& 3R & Mi 5%

For the year ended 31 December 2021
Bt E202146 12831 AILF/E

2.4 Issued But Not Yet Effective Hong Kong 24 EEMEENKRERZERBMBERS

Financial Reporting Standards (Continued) (4 )

Amendments to HKAS 37 clarify that for the purpose of BB GTHEREITRIEFTANEE © SR
assessing whether a contract is onerous under HKAS BEBCTENEITHAGEAREE
37, the cost of fulfilling the contract comprises the EEENS  BIIEANKABERES
costs that relate directly to the contract. Costs that NEZRBEKAE - BE N EZ RS
relate directly to a contract include both the incremental KA BIEEBITZ A #1838 2 K A (7] 40
costs of fulfiling that contract (e.g., direct labour and BEESTIRME) REBITEHNEEH
materials) and an allocation of other costs that relate FAREMAK A DB EEEITE D
directly to fulfilling that contract (e.g., an allocation of FTAME  BWRERZEEENITERI
the depreciation charge for an item of property, plant UNREHEEBREERA) o —fRIT
and equipment used in fulfiling the contract as well as R AN B2 & 4930 8 B 5 B - FRIEIR IR
contract management and supervision costs). General BHAREREFHUIMER  TATE
and administrative costs do not relate directly to a A - ZFBE]R2022F1H1H 3
contract and are excluded unless they are explicitly ZEARNFEREER  WEARE
chargeable to the counterparty under the contract. The BREEAEREIINFERS YN
amendments are effective for annual periods beginning *J@TTE%%?EE’J G4 NATIREIE
on or after 1 January 2022 and shall be applied to A P EAZFEITNEMNZRBETE
contracts for which an entity has not yet fulfilled all its H—H’JE;. B EIRIER B BRI SR
obligations at the beginning of the annual reporting C MBABYILLERER - ZFIBE]E
period in which it first applies the amendments. Earlier ﬁﬁ TEHAREENMBRRELEMNE
application is permitted. Any cumulative effect of -7

initially applying the amendments shall be recognised
as an adjustment to the opening equity at the date
of initial application without restating the comparative
information. The amendments are not expected to
have any significant impact on the Group’s financial
statements.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
Bt E202146 12831 AILF/E

2.4 Issued But Not Yet Effective Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (Continued)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020 sets
out amendments to HKFRS 1, HKFRS 9, lllustrative
Examples accompanying HKFRS 16, and HKAS 41.
Details of the amendments that are expected to be
applicable to the Group are as follows:

° HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments: clarifies the fees
that an entity includes when assessing whether
the terms of a new or modified financial liability
are substantially different from the terms of the
original financial liability. These fees include only
those paid or received between the borrower
and the lender, including fees paid or received by
either the borrower or lender on the other’s behalf.
An entity applies the amendment to financial
liabilities that are modified or exchanged on or
after the beginning of the annual reporting period
in which the entity first applies the amendment.
The amendment is effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2022. Earlier
application is permitted. The amendment is not
expected to have a significant impact on the
Group’s financial statements.

° HKFRS 16 Leases: removes the illustration of
payments from the lessor relating to leasehold
improvements in lllustrative Example 13
accompanying HKFRS 16. This removes potential
confusion regarding the treatment of lease
incentives when applying HKFRS 16.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 & Bt #& 3R & Mi 5%

For the year ended 31 December 2021
Bt E202146 12831 AILF/E

25 FESTHREME

2.5 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Investments in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a
long term interest of generally not less than 20% of the
equity voting rights and over which it is in a position
to exercise significant influence. Significant influence is
the power to participate in the financial and operating
policy decisions of the investee, but is not control or
joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby
the parties that have joint control of the arrangement
have rights to the net assets of a joint venture. Joint
control is the contractually agreed sharing of control
of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions
about the relevant activities require the unanimous
consent of the parties sharing control.

The Group’s investments in associates and joint
ventures are stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position at the Group’s share of net assets
under the equity method of accounting, less any
impairment losses. Adjustments are made to bring into
line any dissimilar accounting policies that may exist.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
Bt E202146 12831 AILF/E

25 FEETHRBEE)

2.5 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures
(Continued)

The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results and
other comprehensive income of associates and joint
ventures is included in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and consolidated other comprehensive
income, respectively. In addition, when there has
been a change recognised directly in the equity of
the associates or joint venture, the Group recognises
its share of any changes, when applicable, in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity. Unrealised
gains and losses resulting from transactions between
the Group and its associates or joint ventures are
eliminated to the extent of the Group’s investments
in the associates and joint ventures, except where
unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment
of the assets transferred. Goodwill arising from the
acquisition of associates or joint ventures is included as
part of the Group’s investments in associates or joint
ventures.

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment
in a joint venture or vice versa, the retained interest
is not remeasured. Instead, the investment continues
to be accounted for under the equity method. In all
other cases, upon loss of significant influence over
the associate or joint control over the joint venture,
the Group measures and recognises any retained
investment at its fair value. Any difference between the
carrying amount of the associate or joint venture upon
loss of significant influence or joint control and the fair
value of the retained investment and proceeds from
disposal is recognised in profit or loss.

When an investment in an associate or a joint venture
is classified as held for sale, it is accounted for in
accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for
Sale and Discontinued Operations.
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2.5 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)
Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred is
measured at the acquisition date fair value which is
the sum of the acquisition date fair values of assets
transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed by the
Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the
equity transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed by
the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and
the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange
for control of the acquiree. For each business
combination, the Group elects whether to measure
the non-controlling interests in the acquiree that are
present ownership interests and entitle their holders
to a proportionate share of net assets in the event of
liquidation either at fair value or at the proportionate
share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other
components of non-controlling interests are measured
at fair value. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.

The Group determines that it has acquired a business
when the acquired set of activities and assets includes
an input and a substantive process that together
significantly contribute to the ability to create outputs.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the
financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate
classification and designation in accordance with
the contractual terms, economic circumstances and
pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This
includes the separation of embedded derivatives in
host contracts of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest is remeasured at its
acquisition date fair value and any resulting gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss.
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2.5 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)
Business combinations and goodwill (Continued)

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
acquirer is recognised at fair value at the acquisition
date. Contingent consideration classified as an asset
or liability is measured at fair value with changes in
fair value recognised in profit or loss. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted
for within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess
of the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the
amount recognised for non-controlling interests and any
fair value of the Group’s previously held equity interests
in the acquiree over the identifiable net assets acquired
and liabilities assumed. If the sum of this consideration
and other items is lower than the fair value of the net
assets acquired, the difference is, after reassessment,
recognised in profit or loss as a gain on bargain
purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost
less any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill
is tested for impairment annually or more frequently
if events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying value may be impaired. The Group
performs its annual impairment test of goodwill as at
31 December. For the purpose of impairment testing,
goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from
the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group’s
cash-generating units, or groups of cash-generating
units, that are expected to benefit from the synergies
of the combination, irrespective of whether other assets
or liabilities of the Group are assigned to those units or
groups of units.
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2.5 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)
Business combinations and goodwill (Continued)

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-
generating units) to which the goodwill relates. Where
the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit
(group of cash-generating units) is less than the
carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised. An
impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed
in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-
generating unit (or group of cash-generating units) and
part of the operation within that unit is disposed of, the
goodwill associated with the operation disposed of is
included in the carrying amount of the operation when
determining the gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill
disposed of in these circumstances is measured based
on the relative value of the operation disposed of and
the portion of the cash-generating unit retained.

Silver Grant International Holdings Group Limited
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2.5 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)
Fair value measurement

The Group measures its investment properties,
leasehold land and buildings under property, plant and
equipment, financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss and derivative financial instruments at fair value
at the end of each reporting period. Fair value is the
price that would be received to sell an asset or paid
to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. The fair
value measurement is based on the presumption that
the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability
takes place either in the principal market for the asset
or liability, or in the absence of a principal market, in
the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.
The principal or the most advantageous market must
be accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset
or a liability is measured using the assumptions that
market participants would use when pricing the asset
or liability, assuming that market participants act in
their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes
into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and
best use or by selling it to another market participant
that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are
appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value,
maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and
minimising the use of unobservable inputs.
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2.5 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)
Fair value measurement (Continued)

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured
or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows,
based on the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or
liabilities

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement is observable, either
directly or indirectly

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the
financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group
determines whether transfers have occurred between
levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of
each reporting period.
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2.5 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)
Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when
annual impairment testing for an asset is required (other
than inventories, investment properties, deferred tax
assets and financial assets), the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount
is the higher of the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s
value in use and its fair value less costs of disposal,
and is determined for an individual asset, unless the
asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or groups
of assets, in which case the recoverable amount is
determined for the cash-generating unit to which
the asset belongs. In testing a cash-generating unit
for impairment, a portion of the carrying amount of
a corporate asset (e.g., a headquarters building) is
allocated to an individual cash-generating unit if it can
be allocated on a reasonable and consistent basis of,
otherwise, to the smallest group of cash-generating
units.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset. An impairment loss is charged to profit or
loss in the period in which it arises in those expense
categories consistent with the function of the impaired
asset.

An impairment loss is charged to the statement of
profit or loss in the period in which it arises, unless the
asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case
the impairment loss is accounted for in accordance
with the relevant accounting policy for that revalued
asset.

Annual Report 2021

FEMEERE

HWEBRBRHRBE RAREE
(FE - WEYEX EERBEEERS
BMEERIN) ETFEERERRE - A
AP B EZ AT E IR o B EM A E
CRDEEIREELEUNERE
18 - ARERSRER L SRR E KR
mE UHEMNEEERE KRIFEE
WARELARAEE EBINEMEESK
BEANNRERA - EUERT » 7
WOl e BRIk EEMBrIRSEE B
TUEE - BHRESEE BV ETRE
AHE - et e R —BEEETS
[ J“ﬂﬁ?(ﬁﬂ?@a‘ﬁ@?)éﬁ—ﬁﬁ"
FHESSEEERRSEEEN -

Algn k=& E’ﬁﬁﬁ%i%&%ﬂﬁu °

MEBEENEENRREBBE K
Ol & B HER - R EEREER -
AAERASRERERRETMEHE
BREEEMZREEREAR A
MR BRI RE IR R BAIRERE - REERE
REELHIR BEm R - WHIHRE
BEEER T ZRAXER

ERBEREETMEBEBaRME
BRIFEXEENEMRENER BN
T REBBRREZEHEEZRES
TR AR e



140

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 & Bt #& 3R & Mi 5%

For the year ended 31 December 2021
Bt E202146 12831 AILF/E

25 FEETHRBEE)

2.5 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)
Impairment of non-financial assets (Continued)

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is an indication that
previously recognised impairment losses may no
longer exist or may have decreased. If such an
indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated.
A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset
other than goodwill is reversed only if there has been
a change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount of that asset, but not to an amount
higher than the carrying amount that would have been
determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in
prior years. A reversal of such an impairment loss
is credited to profit or loss in the period in which
it arises, unless the asset is carried at a revalued
amount, in which case the reversal of the impairment
loss is accounted for in accordance with the relevant
accounting policy for that revalued asset.

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@) the party is a person or a close member of that
person’s family and that person
(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or
(i) is a member of the key management

personnel of the Group or of a parent of the

Group;

or
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2.5 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Related parties (Continued)

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies:

(i)  the entity and the Group are members of the
same group;

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of
the other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or
fellow subsidiary of the other entity);

(i)  the entity and the Group are joint ventures
of the same third party;

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity;

(v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related to the Group;

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by
a person identified in (a);

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
the key management personnel of the entity
(or of a parent of the entity); and

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of
which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Group or to the
parent of the Group.
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2.5 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)
Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost
or valuation less accumulated depreciation and any
impairment losses. The cost of an item of property,
plant and equipment comprises its purchase price and
any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset
to its working condition and location for its intended
use. Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant
and equipment have been put into operation, such as
repairs and maintenance, is normally charged to profit
or loss in the period in which it is incurred. In situations
where the recognition criteria are satisfied, the
expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in the
carrying amount of the asset as a replacement. Where
significant parts of property, plant and equipment
are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group
recognises such parts as individual assets with specific
useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Valuations are performed frequently enough to ensure
that the fair value of a revalued asset does not differ
materially from its carrying amount. Changes in the
values of property, plant and equipment are dealt
with as movements in the asset revaluation reserve.
If the total of this reserve is insufficient to cover a
deficit, on an individual asset basis, the excess of
the deficit is charged to the statement of profit or
loss. Any subsequent revaluation surplus is credited
to the statement of profit or loss to the extent of the
deficit previously charged. An annual transfer from the
asset revaluation reserve to retained profits is made
for the difference between the depreciation based
on the revalued carrying amount of an asset and the
depreciation based on the asset’s original cost. On
disposal of a revalued asset, the relevant portion of
the asset revaluation reserve realised in respect of
previous valuations is transferred to retained profits as
a movement in reserves.
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2.5 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(Continued)

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to
write off the cost of each item of property, plant and
equipment to its residual value over its estimated useful
life. The principal annual rates used for this purpose
are as follows:

Leasehold land and 50 years or over the lease

buildings term, whichever is shorter
Leasehold improvements 3 years
Furniture and fixtures 10 years
Office equipment 5 years
Motor vehicles 10 years

Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the cost of that
item is allocated on a reasonable basis among the
parts and each part is depreciated separately. Residual
values, useful lives and the depreciation method are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each
financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including
any significant part initially recognised is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits
are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss
on disposal or retirement recognised in profit or loss
in the year the asset is derecognised is the difference
between the net sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the relevant asset.

Annual Report 2021

ME - BERREBUARFTEE)

FERTIEYR  BEREREHERBH
it Al e A F A EARERTE - WM
ERAZERBEE - SAULEANTE
FRET

HELHE  50FHREH - AR

BF RE R
HERE 3%
e

REMNMEE 10F
WMAERE 5F
RE 104F

W% BERREER BT
FEAEETE  ZEE ZHARRA R
HEESRZEFEID MEHDHEHH
SHEE - FIREE - TEREHRF
B EBE DR E M RE AR R
ESEHBE

ME - BEERERRB (BRERIR
RNBEAF DN HEXTFEHEAK
HE A RIR B & B AR R AP N 2 B
RILTER - RRILEREEFEEER
RN ERBEEE 2 REHER -
RHEBREEMSIURFRARRM
EMERHZRE -



144

2.5 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)
Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings
(including the leasehold property held as a right-of-
use asset which would otherwise meet the definition
of an investment property) held to earn rental income
and/or for capital appreciation, rather than for use in
the production or supply of goods or services or for
administrative purposes; or for sale in the ordinary
course of business. Such properties are measured
initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent
to initial recognition, investment properties are stated at
fair value, which reflects market conditions at the end
of the reporting period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values
of investment properties are included in profit or loss in
the period in which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an
investment property are recognised in profit or loss in
the period of the retirement or disposal.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on
initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets
acquired in a business combination is the fair value at
the date of acquisition. The useful lives of intangible
assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite.
Intangible assets with finite lives are subsequently
amortised over the useful economic life and assessed
for impairment whenever there is an indication that the
intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation
period and the amortisation method for an intangible
asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at
each financial year end.
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2.5 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)
Intangible assets (other than goodwill) (Continued)

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested
for impairment annually either individually or at the
cash-generating unit level. Such intangible assets are
not amortised. The useful life of an intangible asset
with an indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine
whether the indefinite life assessment continues to
be supportable. If not, the change in the useful life
assessment from indefinite to finite is accounted for on
a prospective basis.

Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether
a contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or
contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to
control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and
measurement approach for all leases, except for short-
term leases and leases of low-value assets. The Group
recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and
right-of-use assets representing the right to use the
underlying assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 & Bt #& 3R & Mi 5%

For the year ended 31 December 2021
Bt E202146 12831 AILF/E

2.5 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Leases (Continued)

Group as a lessee (Continued)

@)

Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the
commencement date of the lease (that is the date
the underlying asset is available for use). Right-
of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of
lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets
includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised,
initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments
made at or before the commencement date less
any lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets
are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the
shorter of the lease terms and the estimated
useful lives of the assets as follows:

Buildings Over the lease term

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to
the Group by the end of the lease term or the
cost reflects the exercise of a purchase option,
depreciation is calculated using the estimated
useful life of the asset.

When a right-of-use asset meets the definition of
investment property, it is included in investment
properties. The corresponding right-of-use asset
is initially measured at cost, and subsequently
measured at fair value, in accordance with the
Group’s policy for “investment properties”.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
Bt E202146 12831 AILF/E

2.5 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Leases (Continued)

Group as a lessee (Continued)

@)

(b)

Right-of-use assets (Continued)

When the right-of-use assets are related to
property, plant and equipment measured at
revalued amount, the right-of-use assets are
included in property, plant and equipment and
measured at revalued amount in accordance
with the Group’s policy for “property, plant and
equipment”.

Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the
commencement date of the lease at the present
value of lease payments to be made over the
lease term. The lease payments include fixed
payments (including in-substance fixed payments)
less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease
payments that depend on an index or a rate, and
amounts expected to be paid under residual value
guarantees. The lease payments also include the
exercise price of a purchase option reasonably
certain to be exercised by the Group and
payments of penalties for termination of a lease,
if the lease term reflects the Group exercising the
option to terminate the lease. The variable lease
payments that do not depend on an index or a
rate are recognised as an expense in the period
in which the event or condition that triggers the
payment occurs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 & Bt #& 3R & Mi 5%
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Bt E202146 12831 AILF/E

2.5 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Leases (Continued)

Group as a lessee (Continued)

(b)  Lease liabilities (Continued)

()

In calculating the present value of lease payments,
the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate
at the lease commencement date because the
interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable. After the commencement date, the
amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect
the accretion of interest and reduced for the
lease payments made. In addition, the carrying
amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there
is a modification, a change in the lease term,
a change in lease payments (e.g., a change to
future lease payments resulting from a change in
an index or rate) or a change in assessment of an
option to purchase the underlying asset.

Short-term leases

The Group applies the short-term lease
recognition exemption to its short-term leases
of office premises (that is those leases that
have a lease term of 12 months or less from
the commencement date and do not contain
a purchase option). Lease payments on short-
term leases are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease

inception (or when there is a lease modification) each

of its leases as either an operating lease or a finance

lease.
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25 FEETHRBEE)

2.5 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Leases (Continued)

Group as a lessor (Continued)

Leases in which the Group does not transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of an asset are classified as operating
leases. When a contract contains lease and non-lease
components, the Group allocates the consideration in
the contract to each component on a relative stand-
alone selling price basis. Rental income is accounted
for on a straight-line basis over the lease terms and is
included in revenue in the statement of profit or loss
due to its operating nature. Initial direct costs incurred
in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are
added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and
recognised over the lease term on the same basis
as rental income. Contingent rents are recognised as
revenue in the period in which they are earned.

Leases that transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of an underlying asset
to the lessee, are accounted for as finance leases.
Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition,

as subsequently measured at amortised cost and fair
value through profit or loss.
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2.5 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Investments and other financial assets (Continued)

Initial recognition and measurement (Continued)

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow
characteristics and the Group’s business model for
managing them. With the exception of trade receivables
that do not contain a significant financing component
or for which the Group has applied the practical
expedient of not adjusting the effect of a significant
financing component, the Group initially measures
a financial assets at its fair value, plus in the case
of a financial asset not at fair value through profit or
loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables that do not
contain a significant financing component or for which
the Group has applied the practical expedient are
measured at the transaction price determined under
HKFRS 15 in accordance with the policies set out for
“Revenue recognition” below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and
measured at amortised cost, it needs to give rise to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest (“SPPI”) on the principal amount outstanding.
Financial assets with cash flows that are not SPPI are
classified and measured at fair value through profit or
loss, irrespective of the business model.

Silver Grant International Holdings Group Limited
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2.5 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Investments and other financial assets (Continued)

Initial recognition and measurement (Continued)

The Group’s business model for managing financial
assets refers to how it manages its financial assets
in order to generate cash flows. The business model
determines whether cash flows will result from
collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial
assets, or both. Financial assets classified and
measured at amortised cost are held within a business
model with the objective to hold financial assets in
order to collect contractual cash flows, while financial
assets classified and measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income are held within a business
model with the objective of both holding to collect
contractual cash flows and selling. Financial assets
which are not held within the aforementioned business
models are classified and measured at fair value
through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade date, that is, the date
that the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchase or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the period generally established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace.
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25 FEETHRBEE)

2.5 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Investments and other financial assets (Continued)

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets
depends on their classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt
instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently
measured using the effective interest method and are
subject to impairment. Gains and losses are recognised
in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised,
modified or impaired.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
carried in the statement of financial position at fair
value with net changes in fair value recognised in profit
or loss.

This category includes derivative instruments
and equity investments which the Group had not
irrevocably elected to classify at fair value through
other comprehensive income. Dividends on equity
investments classified as financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss are also recognised in profit or
loss when the right of payment has been established, it
is probable that the economic benefits associated with
the dividend will flow to the Group and the amount of
the dividend can be measured reliably.
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2.5 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 25 TESHBERBEE)
(Continued)
Investments and other financial assets (Continued) REREMEREEE)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(Continued)

A derivative embedded in a hybrid contract, with a
financial liability or non-financial host, is separated from
the host and accounted for as a separate derivative
if the economic characteristics and risks are not
closely related to the host; a separate instrument with
the same terms as the embedded derivative would
meet the definition of a derivative; and the hybrid
contract is not measured at fair value through profit
or loss. Embedded derivatives are measured at fair
value with changes in fair value recognised in the
statement of profit or loss. Reassessment only occurs
if there is either a change in the terms of the contract
that significantly modifies the cash flows that would
otherwise be required or a reclassification of a financial
asset out of the fair value through profit or loss
category.

A derivative embedded within a hybrid contract
containing a financial asset host is not accounted for
separately. The financial asset host together with the
embedded derivative is required to be classified in its
entirety as a financial asset at fair value through profit
or loss.
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2.5 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)
Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a
financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from the
Group’s consolidated statement of financial position)
when:

o the rights to receive cash flows from the asset
have expired, or

° the Group has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from the asset, or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full
without material delay to a third party under a
“pass-through” arrangement; and either (a) the
Group has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has
neither transferred nor retained substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has
transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from an asset or has entered into a
pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if, and to
what extent, it has retained the risk and rewards of
ownership of the asset. When it has neither transferred
nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards
of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the
Group continues to recognise the transferred asset to
the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement. In
that case, the Group also recognises an associated
liability. The transferred asset and the associated
liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights
and obligations that the Group has retained.
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2.5 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)
Derecognition of financial assets (Continued)

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a
guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at
the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset
and the maximum amount of the consideration that the
Group could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit
losses (“ECLs”) for all debt instruments not held at fair
value through profit or loss. ECLs are based on the
difference between the contractual cash flows due in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows
that the Group expects to receive, discounted at an
approximation of the original effective interest rate. The
expected cash flows will include cash flows from the
sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements
that are integral to the contractual terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit
exposures for which there has not been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, ECLs
are provided for credit losses that result from default
events that are possible within the next 12 months (a
12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for which
there has been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit
losses expected over the remaining life of the exposure,
irrespective of the timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).
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2.5 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

General approach (Continued)

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether
the credit risk on a financial instrument has increased
significantly since initial recognition. When making the
assessment, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting
date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition and
considers reasonable and supportable information
that is available without undue cost or effort, including
historical and forward-looking information.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when
internal or external information indicates that the
Group is unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual
amounts in full before taking into account any credit
enhancements held by the Group. A financial asset is
written off when there is no reasonable expectation of
recovering the contractual cash flows.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subject to
impairment under the general approach and they are
classified within the following stages for measurement
of ECLs except for trade receivables which apply the
simplified approach as detailed below.

Stage 1 — Financial instruments for which credit
risk has not increased significantly since
initial recognition and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal
to 12-month ECLs
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2.5 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

General approach (Continued)

Stage 2 — Financial instruments for which credit risk
has increased significantly since initial
recognition but that are not credit-impaired
financial assets and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal
to lifetime ECLs

Stage 3 — Financial assets that are credit-impaired
at the reporting date (but that are not
purchased or originated credit-impaired)
and for which the loss allowance is
measured at an amount equal to lifetime
ECLs

Simplified approach

For trade receivables that do not contain a significant
financing component or when the Group applies the
practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a
significant financing component, the Group applies
the simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Under the
simplified approach, the Group does not track changes
in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance
based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The
Group has established a provision matrix that is based
on its historical credit loss experience, adjusted for
forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the
economic environment.
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2.5 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition,
as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss, loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives
designated as hedging instruments in an effective
hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value
and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables,
net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other
payables, borrowings, convertible bonds and derivative
financial instruments.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities
depends on their classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and
borrowings)

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans,
borrowings and senior notes are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method unless the effect of discounting would
be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.
Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when
the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the
effective interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate.
The effective interest rate amortisation is included in
finance costs in profit or loss.
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25 FEETHRBEE)

2.5 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Financial liabilities (Continued)

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are
those contracts that require a payment to be made
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because the
specified debtor fails to make a payment when due
in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.
A financial guarantee contract is recognised initially
as a liability at its fair value, adjusted for transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the issuance of
the guarantee. Subsequent to initial recognition, the
Group measures the financial guarantee contracts
at the higher of: (i) the ECL allowance determined in
accordance with the policy as set out in “Impairment of
financial assets”; and (i) the amount initially recognised
less, when appropriate, the cumulative amount of
income recognised.

Annual Report 2021

ERMeEE)
HBEREXN

AEEZ LN BERSOBIREAN
FOAME 5 A AR E BB ARBERE
BH T EGRREE S HFAMBEEEL
MWEH - MIBEFRE DTSR A(ERE
RREE YRBHERERELNR
ZRAIEL AR - RYITHERR - A%
ERATMENRSEAEVBERS
#L)VRE @ BEERE IFMSERRETE
MmEHMEERERE RIS ERS
R (AE M) RN R WA -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 & Bt #& 3R & Mi 5%

For the year ended 31 December 2021
Bt E202146 12831 AILF/E

25 FEETHRBEE)

2.5 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Financial liabilities (Continued)

Convertible bonds

The component of convertible bonds that exhibits
characteristics of a liability is recognised as a liability in
the statement of financial position, net of transaction
costs. If the conversion option of convertible bonds
exhibits characteristics of an embedded derivative,
it is separated from its liability component. On initial
recognition, the derivative component of the convertible
bonds is measured at fair value and presented as
part of derivative financial instruments. Any excess
of proceeds over the amount initially recognised
as the derivative component is recognised as the
liability component. Transaction costs are apportioned
between the liability and derivative components of the
convertible bonds based on the allocation of proceeds
to the liability and derivative components when the
instruments are initially recognised. The portion of the
transaction costs relating to the liability component is
recognised initially as part of the liability. The portion
relating to the derivative component is recognised
immediately in the statement of profit or loss.

In subsequent periods, the liability component of
convertible bonds is carried at amortised cost using
the effective interest method. The derivative financial
instruments are measured at fair value with changes in
fair value recognised in profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.
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2.5 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 25 FESTBEMEE)
(Continued)
Derecognition of financial liabilities (Continued) HKIEBAEHEE(E)

When an existing financial liability is replaced by
another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original
liability and a recognition of a new liability, and the
difference between the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and
the net amount is reported in the statement of financial
position if, there is a currently enforceable legal right to
offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention
to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and
settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Derivative financial instruments

Initial recognition and subsequent measurement

Derivative financial instruments are initially recognised
at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract
is entered into and are subsequently remeasured at fair
value. Derivatives are carried as assets when the fair
value is positive, and as liabilities when the fair value is
negative.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in fair value
of derivatives are taken directly to profit or loss.
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25 FEETHRBEE)

2.5 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)
Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on
hand and demand deposits, and short term highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value, and have a short maturity of
generally within three months when acquired, less bank
overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an
integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of
financial position, cash and cash equivalents comprise
cash on hand and at banks, including term deposits
and assets similar in nature to cash, which are not
restricted as to use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal
or constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event
and it is probable that a future outflow of resources
will be required to settle the obligation, provided that
a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the
end of the reporting period of the future expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation. The
increase in the discounted present value amount arising
from the passage of time is included in finance costs in
the statement of profit or loss.
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2.5 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)
Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income
tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss
is recognised outside profit or loss, either in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period, taking into consideration
interpretations and practices prevailing in the countries
in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on
all temporary differences at the end of the reporting
period between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, except:

° when the deferred tax liability arises from goodwill
or the initial recognition of an asset or liability in
a transaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss;
and

° in respect of taxable temporary differences
associated with interests in subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures, when the timing of
the reversal of the temporary differences can be
controlled and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.
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2.5 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)
Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, and the carryforward of unused
tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax
assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, and the carryforward
of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be
utilised, except:

° when the deferred tax asset relating to the
deductible temporary differences arises from
the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss;
and

° in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with interests in subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures, deferred tax
assets are only recognised to the extent that it
is probable that the temporary differences will
reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit
will be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred
tax assets are reassessed at the end of each reporting
period and are recognised to the extent that it has
become probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to
be recovered.
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2.5 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)
Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when
the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based
on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset
if and only if the Group has a legally enforceable right
to set off current tax assets and current tax liabilities
and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either the same taxable entity or different
taxable entities which intend either to settle current tax
liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to realise the
assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each
future period in which significant amounts of deferred
tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or
recovered.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value
where there is reasonable assurance that the grant
will be received and all attaching conditions will be
complied with. When the grant relates to an expense
item, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis
over the periods that the costs, for which it is intended
to compensate, are expensed.

Annual Report 2021

FRg® (&)

BREFIREERBBENRBHEEZLR
FRERENRAREMERRHRE R IAR
iiﬁﬂiﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂif’%ﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ@ﬁ%(&
BE) REERE

[EEAKEA R AIRNITHEAR A # BN
MIBEEENAHARGERE - BELT
PMREERELCHBREER B
BAYFE—EHERIN S RKAEEH
BABRECRAREHEEFTEAEER
BER - BIRFREEAENHRESR
BEREEXRAKEREERGERARBZ
TRABBEBHWZ AEHER - AIE
ERBEERELEHRBRER] THH -

B RS

ééé BREEAKEFEBI LTS
Bh <z PrA Mt s R fh i - RIBRAT # Rk IR
A’tﬁﬁﬁ‘” c BRI R A HH

AR R VB R (8 2 PR B S 2 BT
?z:z% TACEERER DA e

\tﬂi a&yp ik



166

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 & Bt #& 3R & Mi 5%

For the year ended 31 December 2021
Bt E202146 12831 AILF/E

25 FEETHRBEE)

2.5 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised
when or as control of goods or services is transferred
to the customers at an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled
in exchange for those goods or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable
amount, the amount of consideration is estimated
to which the Group will be entitled in exchange for
transferring the goods or services to the customer.
The variable consideration is estimated at contract
inception and constrained until it is highly probable
that a significant revenue reversal in the amount of
cumulative revenue recognised will not occur when the
associated uncertainty with the variable consideration
is subsequently resolved.

When the contract contains a financing component
which provides the customer with a significant benefit
of financing the transfer of goods or services to the
customer for more than one year, revenue is measured
at the present value of the amount receivable,
discounted using the discount rate that would be
reflected in a separate financing transaction between
the Group and the customer at contract inception.
When the contract contains a financing component
which provides the Group with a significant financial
benefit for more than one year, revenue recognised
under the contract includes the interest expense
accreted on the contract liability under the effective
interest method. For a contract where the period
between the payment by the customer and the transfer
of the promised goods or services is one year or less,
the transaction price is not adjusted for the effects of
a significant financing component, using the practical
expedient in HKFRS 15.
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2.5 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)
Revenue recognition (Continued)
Revenue from other sources

Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis
over the lease terms. Variable lease payments that
do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised
as income in the accounting period in which they are
incurred.

Other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using
the effective interest method by applying the rate that
exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts
over the expected life of the financial instrument to the
net carrying amount of the financial asset.

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’
right to receive payment has been established, it is
probable that the economic benefits associated with
the dividend will flow to the Group and the amount of
the dividend can be measured reliably.
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2.5 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Other employee benefits

Pension scheme

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance for those employees who are
eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions
are made based on a percentage of the employees’
basic salaries and are charged to profit or loss as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the
MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held
separately from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund. The Group’s employer contributions
vest fully with the employees when contributed into
the MPF Scheme. Where employees leave the scheme
prior to the full vesting of the employer’s contributions,
the amount of forfeited contributions cannot be used to
reduce the contributions payable by the Group.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which
operate in Mainland China are required to participate
in a central pension scheme (the “Pension Scheme”)
operated by the local municipal government. The
subsidiaries are required to contribute certain
percentages of their payroll costs to the Pension
Scheme. The only obligation of the Group with
respect to the Pension Scheme is to pay the ongoing
contributions under the Pension Scheme. The
contributions are charged to profit or loss as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the
Pension Scheme.
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2.5 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)
Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e.,
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of
time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. The
capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases when
the assets are substantially ready for their intended
use or sale. All other borrowing costs are expensed in
the period in which they are incurred. Borrowing costs
consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs
in connection with the borrowing of funds.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars, which is the Company’s functional currency.
Each entity in the Group determines its own functional
currency and items included in the financial statements
of each entity are measured using that functional
currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded by
the entities in the Group are initially recorded using
their respective functional currency rates prevailing
at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
translated at the functional currency rates of exchange
ruling at the end of the reporting period. Differences
arising on settlement or translation of monetary items
are recognised in profit or loss.
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2.5 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)
Foreign currencies (Continued)

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial
transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair
value in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the date when the fair value was
measured. The gain or loss arising on translation of a
non-monetary item measured at fair value is treated in
line with the recognition of the gain or loss on change
in fair value of the item (i.e., translation difference on
the item whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in
other comprehensive income or profit or loss is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or
loss, respectively).

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition
of the related asset, expense or income on the
derecognition of a non-monetary asset or non-monetary
liability relating to an advance consideration, the date of
initial transaction is the date on which the Group initially
recognises the non-monetary asset or non-monetary
liability arising from the advance consideration. If
there are multiple payments or receipts in advance,
the Group determines the transaction date for each
payment or receipt of the advance consideration.
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2.5 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)
Foreign currencies (Continued)

The functional currencies of certain overseas
subsidiaries, an associate and joint ventures are
currencies other than Hong Kong dollars. As at the
end of the reporting period, the assets and liabilities
of these entities are translated into Hong Kong dollars
at the exchange rates prevailing at the end of the
reporting period and their statements of profit or loss
are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange
rates that approximate to those prevailing at the dates
of the transactions. The resulting exchange differences
are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in the translation reserve. On disposal
of a foreign operation, the component of other
comprehensive income relating to that particular foreign
operation is recognised in profit or loss.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign
operation and any fair value adjustments to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities arising on acquisition
are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign
operation and translated at the closing rate.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of
cash flows, the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries
are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange
rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently
recurring cash flows of overseas subsidiaries which
arise throughout the year are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the weighted average exchange rates
for the year.
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B FE2021F 12531 HIFF/Z
3. Significant Accounting Judgements and

Estimates

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and
their accompanying disclosures and the disclosure
of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes
that could require a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in the
future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies, management has made the following
judgements, apart from those involving estimations,
which have the most significant effect on the amounts
recognised in the financial statements:

Property lease classification — Group as lessor

The Group has entered into commercial property leases
on its investment property portfolio. The Group has
determined, based on an evaluation of the terms and
conditions of the arrangements, such as the lease term
not constituting a major part of the economic life of
the commercial property and the present value of the
minimum lease payments not amounting to substantially
all the fair value of the commercial property, that it
retains substantially all the significant risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of these properties which are
leased out and accounts for the contracts as operating
leases.

Silver Grant International Holdings Group Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & &

For the year ended 31 December 2021
Bt E202146 12831 AILF/E

3.

Significant Accounting Judgements and
Estimates (Continued)

Judgements (Continued)

Classification between investment properties and
owner-occupied properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies
as an investment property, and has developed criteria
in making that judgement. Investment property is a
property held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation
or both. Therefore, the Group considers whether a
property generates cash flows largely independently of
the other assets held by the Group. Some properties
comprise a portion that is held to earn rentals or for
capital appreciation and another portion that is held for
use in the production or supply of goods or services
or for administrative purposes. If these portions could
be sold separately or leased out separately under a
finance lease, the Group accounts for these portions
separately. If the portions could not be sold separately,
the property is an investment property only if an
insignificant portion is held for use in the production
or supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes. Judgement is made on an individual property
basis to determine whether ancillary services are
so significant that a property does not qualify as an
investment property.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 & Bt #& 3R & Mi 5%

For the year ended 31 December 2021

B FE2021F 12531 HIFF/Z
3. Significant Accounting Judgements and

Estimates (Continued)

Judgements (Continued)

Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purpose of measuring deferred taxation arising
from investment properties that are measured using the
fair value model, the directors of the Company have
reviewed the Group’s investment property portfolios
and concluded that the Group’s investment properties
of HK$2,730,045,000 (2020: HK$2,624,229,000),
representing properties for residential or commercial
use, are held under a business model whose objective
is to consume substantially all of the economic benefits
embodied in the investment properties over time,
rather than through sale. Therefore, in measuring the
Group’s deferred taxation on investment properties,
the directors of the Company have determined that
the presumption that the carrying amounts of these
investment properties measured using the fair value
model are recovered entirely through sale is rebutted.
Accordingly, deferred taxation in relation to these
investment properties has been measured based on the
tax consequences of recovering the carrying amounts
entirely through use.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are
described below.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4 4 Bt ¥ R & M 5F

For the year ended 31 December 2021

B FE2021F 12531 HIFF/Z
3. Significant Accounting Judgements and

Estimates (Continued)
Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Provision for ECL for amounts due from an
associate and joint ventures and loan receivables

The Group individually calculates ECLs for its amounts
due from an associate and joint ventures and loan
receivables. The measurement of ECL under HKFRS
9 for the Group’s amounts due from an associate and
joint ventures and loan receivables requires judgement
on, in particular, the estimation of the amount
and timing of future cash flows when determining
impairment losses and the assessment of any
significant increase in credit risk. These estimates are
driven by a number of factors, where the change of the
factors which result in different levels of allowances,
a lower/higher impairment loss may arise. The Group
uses its credit loss experience, repayment history and
financial position of the Group’s associate and joint
venture, debtors and their guarantors (if any) and an
assessment of both the current and forecast general
economic conditions to estimate the probability of
default, the loss given default and the impact on the
forward-looking information. At each reporting date, the
Group assesses whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk for exposures since initial
recognition by comparing the risk of default occurring
over the expected life between the reporting date and
the date of initial recognition. The Group considers
reasonable, supportable and available information that
is relevant and available without undue cost or effort for
this purpose. This includes quantitative and qualitative
information and also forward-looking analysis.

Annual Report 2021

3.

BEREHE R A (E)

fhat TREEM (&)

Y —BELAREELFESARIE
WEHMZBRIEEERER

AEBERESAERR-—RBERRRE
EEEFRUARBRER 2 FABMERERS
B AEEHNREE—RBEATREE
CEFAREBRERRBERBHERE
ERFORTERREEBRFREE
HIE - BRI - ERERMER KR MG
EAIRIEIE N0 (= & R e TR HIAR 2K 3R
ERENKRINEHE - EFERETH
=D REREFHEL LR TRMAR
ER - BERE /BEHEEE - A
SEEREBRERRRAZEDEE B
ARERBA(MB)NEEBERLR
BB 2 R IS0 on_E 3R B e TR AY
—REBEB AT EEOB R - ZHE
RERHAEEEHNTE - RESER
S AKEEBLLERE M ERYA
AR B H ) B (A TR HIRS BR B A B KV
% HAEERR B VRRERBARES
RIEEM - BT E - AEEE2EE
FNHBZRARE N ENRERH S
HEERER  BRELCEELERR
RIBEMED AT -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 & Bt #& 3R & Mi 5%

For the year ended 31 December 2021

B FE2021F 12531 HIFF/Z
3. Significant Accounting Judgements and

Estimates (Continued)
Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Provision for ECL for amounts due from an
associate and joint ventures and loan receivables
(Continued)

In relation to the valuation of amounts due from an
associate and joint ventures, in addition to the above,
the management has exercised judgement in estimating
the timing and future cash flows to be recovered with
reference to the timing of the collection of receivable
from the associate and joint ventures, in order to
determine the recoverability of the amounts due from
the associate and joint ventures.

The carrying amounts and the accumulated ECLs of
amounts due from an associate and joint ventures and
loan receivables are as follows:

3.

BEREHE R A (E)

fhat TREEM (&)

R — B ERAREELFEHARIE
WEHNZEEEEEERE(E)

BRARK—FBERR LA ERERD
{8 - Br Lo - BT E 2 IR U
REARAECEREROER  TEE
EAEF GRS R AW E SRS
B tMAERKBERRRGEDLR
FREY AT UL O] {4

JEU — KBk & DR RE &P ERIARE
WEFHWEREERZFEREEEBN
™

2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Carrying amounts BREE

Amount due from an associate JEUL — KB A 560,690 584,989
Amounts due from joint ventures JEUL & & ER 1,809,042 1,029,479
Loan receivables B E R 2,239,727 1,439,301
4,609,459 3,053,769

Accumulated ECLs BtEHEEREE
Amount due from an associate JEU—REEE N 9,416 4,794
Amounts due from joint ventures FEW A& &b 3,536 4,354
Loan receivables FElE = 12,042 15,004
24,994 24,152
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4 4 Bt ¥ R & M 5F

For the year ended 31 December 2021

B FE2021F 12531 HIFF/Z
3. Significant Accounting Judgements and

Estimates (Continued)
Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Estimation of fair value of investment properties
and leasehold land and buildings

At the end of the reporting period, the Group’s
investment properties and leasehold land and buildings
under property, plant and equipment are stated at fair
value of HK$2,730,045,000 (2020: HK$2,624,229,000)
and HK$240,742,000 (2020: HK$235,663,000),
respectively, based on the valuation performed
by independent qualified professional valuers. In
determining the fair value, the valuers have based
on investment approach and market value basis,
which involves, inter-alia, certain estimates, including
capitalisation rate, market rent, term yields, reversion
yields and comparable market transactions. In relying
on the valuation, management has exercised judgement
and is satisfied that the method of valuation is reflective
of the current market conditions.

Further details, including the key assumptions used for
fair value measurement and a sensitivity analysis, for
investment properties and leasehold land and buildings,
are disclosed in notes 13 and 14 to the financial
statements, respectively.

Annual Report 2021

3.

BEREHE R A (E)

fhat TREEM (&)

REYFURHEL HRIEFH A ALE
14t

RARERR  ERBULAEREER
BRI - AEEME - BE RS H
HTIHWREMEARBE L W REFS
Bl ¥ A f {E2,730,045,0005 7T (2020
4 1 2,624,229,0007% 7T ) K% 240,742,000
77T (20204 : 235,663,000/ 7T ) 518K °
TEEAAER - HEMUREERT
BERAEXE  ERSRATMH BEEAE
NMeE - mizHe  FHREE  ER
WEERAILBENTESER S - REBE
MRS BEEINERAEAE - WiE
B RS E T A A R LR B A T 35 AR
gﬂ °

ELZHE  BEARKEMEIAREE
T REFHAABFERBRED T
HBRRR - D RIRM B HRME18R
14FRIREE -



178

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 & Bt #& 3R & Mi 5%

For the year ended 31 December 2021

B FE2021F 12531 HIFF/Z
3. Significant Accounting Judgements and

Estimates (Continued)
Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Valuation of financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

When the fair value of financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss recorded in the consolidated
statement of financial position cannot be derived from
active markets, the fair value is determined using a
variety of valuation techniques that include the use
of mathematical models. The inputs to these models
are taken from observable markets where possible,
but where this is not feasible, estimation is required
in establishing fair values. The estimates include
considerations of certain unobservable inputs as
detailed in note 37 to the financial statements. Changes
in assumptions about these factors could affect the
reported fair value of financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss in the consolidated statement
of financial position and the level where the financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss are disclosed
in the fair value hierarchy. Significant management
judgements and estimates are required in determining
the valuation of financial instruments which are
categorised as Level 3 in the fair value hierarchy. As at
31 December 2021, the amount of financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss was HK$1,120,368,000
(2020: HK$877,986,000). Further details are disclosed
in note 19 to the financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & &

For the year ended 31 December 2021
Bt E202146 12831 AILF/E

3.

Significant Accounting Judgements and
Estimates (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Impairment assessment of investment in a joint
venture

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators
of impairment for investment in a joint venture at the
end of each reporting period. An impairment exists
when the carrying value of the investment in the joint
venture exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the
higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its
value in use. The calculation of recoverable amount
requires significant judgements by management, in
particular, on key internal inputs and external market
conditions which impact future cash flows, discount
rates and long-term growth rate. If future events do
not correspond to the assumptions, the recoverable
amount will need to be revised, and this may have
impact on the Group’s operating performance or
financial position. Further details are given in note 18 to
the financial statements.

Operating Segment Information

For management purposes, the Group is organised into
business units based on their products and has the
following reporting segments:

(@) the investments segment representing the
investments in financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss and loan receivables; and

(b)  the property leasing segment representing holding
of properties for rental income potential and/or for
capital appreciation
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 & Bt #& 3R & Mi 5%

For the year ended 31 December 2021

B FE2021F 12531 HIFF/Z
4. Operating Segment Information (Continued)

Management monitors the results of the Group’s
operating segments separately for the purpose of
making decisions about resources allocation and
performance assessment. Segment performance is
evaluated based on reportable segment profit/loss,
which is a measure of adjusted profit/loss before
tax. The adjusted profit/loss before tax is measured
consistently with the Group’s profit/loss before tax
except that non-lease-related finance costs, share of
results of associates and joint ventures and corporate
expenses are excluded from such measurement.

No segment assets or liabilities is presented as the
chief operating decision maker does not regularly
review segment assets and liabilities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4 4 Bt ¥ R & M 5F

For the year ended 31 December 2021

EFE20214F12H31 HIFFE
4. Operating Segment Information (Continued) 4. REDIER(E)
Year ended 31 December 2021 BE2021FE12831B LEE
Property
Investments leasing Total
BE NERE st
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET FET
Revenue Wz
— Rental income —HS WA - 87,376 87,376
— Dividend income from listed and ~— FWRIELHES
unlisted securities % B U A 102 - 102
102 87,376 87,478
Segment profit D EBE A 164,943 76,517 241,460
Other unallocated income, gains and  E MRS EUA -~ W Kk
losses il 9,970
Corporate expenses PEME (180,170)
Finance costs (other than interest on B ER(HE&EZ
lease liabilities) A EERIN) (405,572)
Share of losses of: BT 2 B9
— associates A WN| (45,380)
— joint ventures — AEDHE (1,417,546)
Loss before taxation M Ei R EE (1,797,238)
Taxation I8 (15,256)
Loss for the year FNEE (1,812,494)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 & Bt #& 3R & Mi 5%

For the year ended 31 December 2021

Bt E202146 12831 AILF/E
4. Operating Segment Information (Continued) 4., REHTER(E)

Year ended 31 December 2021 BE2021FE12831B LEE

Property

Investments leasing Unallocated Total

k& E SN AAE Azt

HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$°000

TET

FET

TET

FET

Other segment information:

Depreciation
Change in fair value of

financial assets at fair value

through profit or loss

Interest income from an
associate

Interest income from joint

ventures

Interest income from loan

receivables

Write-off of loan and other
receivables and an amount

due from an associate

Impairment loss on financial

assets, net

Change in fair value of
investment properties

Change in fair value of a
derivative financial
instrument

Net loss on disposal of
property, plant and
equipment

Impairment loss on other
intangible asset

Impairment on interest in joint

ventures
Capital expenditure
Interests in associates
Interests in joint ventures

Share of losses of associates

A7 HEH

Vil

AR EERR
Z)t AR
TRMEEZOR
B2

YR VNG
GRNISYON

RAREREN
EON

R E RN B
A

B3 REGK
R~
NS 6

EREERERR
ik

RENFEZDRE

£

FESRIAZR
AEED

HENE  BER
RENERFE

Hit B EEN
HEBR
BELRESRHE

BARX

L oyNGol: 5

BELROES

BEBERA
B

Share of losses of joint ventures H{ & & (24

B

(102,689)

55,560

230,296

(37,394)

(950)

805

31,814

15,836

(15,203)

(408)
(2,807)
(304,634)
20,321
335,507
1,568,397
(45,380)

(1,417,546)

16,641

(102,689)

55,560

230,296

(37,394)
(950)

31,814

(15,203)

(408)
(2,807)
(304,634)
20,321
335,507
1,568,397
(45,380)

(1,417,546)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4 4 Bt ¥ R & M 5F

For the year ended 31 December 2021
Bt E202146 12831 AILF/E

4.

Operating Segment Information (Continued)

Year ended 31 December 2020

23

4. RBEIHER(E)

B E2020F 12831 ILLEE

Property
Investments leasing Total
BE ESi= Bt
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
Revenue Wz
— Rental income —HEEHA — 89,128 89,128
— Dividend income from listed and ~ — FHR3IELETES
unlisted securities REWA 116 - 116
116 89,128 89,244
Segment profit 7 &0 A 211,613 32,603 244,116
Other unallocated income, gains and  Efb R D EUA -
losses Wes & B 18 45,357
Corporate expenses PEME (119,470
Finance costs (other than interest on  Bf 7B B (T8 3%
lease liabilities) HEBERB) (213,776)
Share of profit or losses of: (AT 2 m A s EiE
— an associate — — KB AR 3,325
— joint ventures — e (404,061)
Loss before taxation PR A E1E (444,509)
Taxation HIE 3,401
Loss for the year FREE (441,108)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 & Bt #& 3R & Mi 5%

For the year ended 31 December 2021

B ZE2021F 12431 I F/E

4. Operating Segment Information (Continued)

Year ended 31 December 2020

4,

KL

B E2020F 12831 ILLEE

REsBER(E)

Property
Investments leasing Unallocated Total
®E MERE v st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET FHET
Other segment information: B e E# -
Depreciation e - 870 13,290 14,160
Change in fair value of financial BAAAEEEZAHE
assets at fair value through BEir AR
profit or loss SRMEEZRA
B (667) - = (667)
Interest income from an KE—FBE A7
associate BRI EHA 22,497 = = 22,497
Interest income from a joint KE—REE%E
venture OGRS N 76,371 - - 76,371
Interest income from loan FEME F A FI UK
receivables A 181,053 - - 181,053
Write-off of loan and other BEH R EEKR
receivables sy = = (62,510) (62,510)
Reversal of impairment loss £ B AERIEERE
on financial assets, net BEFE 6,352 - - 6,352
Change in fair value of BEME L AN E
investment properties g — (13,555) — (13,555)
Change in fair value of a TESRMIAZAD
derivative financial nEE
instrument — - 39,630 39,630
Net loss on disposal of HENE BER
property, plant and RENEETE
equipment — (24) — (24)
Capital expenditure BARRX - 1,936 1,316 3,252
Interest in an associate —XBENRRER - - 85,569 85,569
Interests in a joint venture —REENERNER - - 3,033,385 3,033,385
Share of profit of an associate  #{h—FKHZ A A
il = - 81825 3,325
Share of losses of joint ventures (k& = 1>EH]
ER - - (404,061) (404,061)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4 4 Bt ¥ R & M 5F

For the year ended 31 December 2021

B FE2021F 12531 HIFF/Z
4. Operating Segment Information (Continued)

Geographical information

Revenue from external customers

4,

REsBER(E)
1t 2 8 Y

K E I EE B

2021 2020

HK$’000 HK$’000

FETT FET

Hong Kong BB 102 116
PRC Fh 87,376 89,128
87,478 89,244

The revenue information above is based on the
locations of the customers.

Non-current assets

AW ERTERE P AERNME o

HRBEE

2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FAET

Hong Kong BB 287,176 290,687
PRC 3 4,673,019 5,757,633
4,960,195 6,048,320

The non-current asset information above is based
on the locations of the assets and excludes financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss, loan
receivables, amount due from an associate and
amounts due from joint ventures.

Information about major customers
During the current and prior years, no revenue from a

single external customer amounted to 10% or more of
the Group’s total revenue.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 & Bt #& 3R & Mi 5%

For the year ended 31 December 2021
Bt E202146 12831 AILF/E

5.

Revenue, Other Income, Gains and Losses 5.

An analysis of revenue is as follows:

Wz EblA - WERER

FEREEBZ WA TT -

2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Revenue from other sources By Y 2%
Gross rental income PRV ON 87,376 89,128
Dividend income from listed and EkIELETES
unlisted securities [E¥=N PN 102 116
87,478 89,244
An analysis of other income, gains and losses is as EUA -~ W REBRSTIOT
follows:
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
FETT FET
Interest income on: FEHBA :
— amount due from an associate — B —REEE QRN - 22,497
— amounts due from joint ventures — B EETER 55,560 76,371
— bank deposits — RITER 3,744 545
— loan receivables — B E 230,296 181,053
Net foreign exchange loss EREEFE (1,420) (810)
Net loss on disposal of property, plant HEME - MEM&REZ
and equipment B8 558 (408) (24)
Impairment loss on other intangible Hib M\ & E 2 REEBE
assets (2,807) —
Government grants* XA 5 B 188 631
Gain on disposal of financial assets at HEUAMEE B HEZEHTA
fair value through profit or loss BRSREEN K 27,009 —
Others Hith 36,279 4,821
348,441 285,084

The amount represented grants received from relevant

government authorities in Mainland China for the

Group’s operation of property leasing business. There

are no unfulfilled conditions or contingencies relating to

these grants.

Silver Grant International Holdings Group Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4 4 Bt ¥ R & M 5F

For the year ended 31 December 2021
Bt E202146 12831 AILF/E

6. Loss Before Taxation 6. KBiAER
The Group’s loss before taxation is arrived at after ANEE R ATER &R, (GEA)T
charging/(crediting): HIFIE -
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Auditor’s remuneration 1% B4R BN <& 7,400 5,350
Change in fair value of financial assets AR EHE B H&E) T AtEz
at fair value through profit or loss MemMEE 2 ANBEEE 102,689 667
Depreciation of property, plant and ME - MELRETE
equipment 12,244 11,376
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEENTE 3,980 2,784

Employee benefit expense including EERAMAX (BREESERITHAE
directors’ and chief executive officer’s  #H &) : (#1:78)
remuneration (note 8):

Wages and salaries* ERFHe 74,979 64,206

Pension scheme contributions 17l< sHEIf R
(defined contribution scheme)** (FEEH-TGTE) 1,662 2,582
76,641 66,788

Rental income under operating leases AW HEKLLHAOZHSKA -

for investment properties, less JBLSZ 855,910,000/ 7T

outgoing of HK$5,910,000 (2020: (20204F : 9,016,000/ L)

HK$9,016,000) (81,466) (80,112)
Impairment on interests in joint REERaERRE™

ventures** 304,634 —
Impairment loss on other intangible H A 2 & B R (E e

assets***# 2,807 —
Write-off of loan and other receivables &  H U 5% K FE UL — SR Bk

and an amount due from an /RETTMM%

associate 37,394 62,510
Impairment/(reversal of impairment) of & B &ERE, CRERE ) F5E

financial assets, net 950 (6,352)
Change in fair value of investment "EMERRELD)

properties (31,814) SRS 58
Change in fair value of derivative PTESRMIAEZARERZD)

financial instruments 15,203 (39,630)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 & Bt #& 3R & Mi 5%

For the year ended 31 December 2021
Bt E202146 12831 AILF/E

6. Loss Before Taxation (Continued)

*k

Heokk

During the year ended 31 December 2020, wage
subsidy of HK$580,000 was granted from the
Employment Support Scheme under the Anti-Epidemic
Fund in Hong Kong. The amount was recognised in
the administrative expenses and had been set-off
against the amount of wages and salaries. There are
no unfulfilled conditions or contingencies relating to this
grant.

There were no forfeited contributions that may be used
by the Group as the employer to reduce the existing
level of contributions.

The impairment on interests in joint ventures is included
in “Share of losses of joint ventures” in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

The impairment loss on other intangible assets is
included in “Other income, gains and losses” in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

7. FINANCE COSTS

An analysis of finance costs is as follows:

BRELAI IR (42 )

* B E2020F12A31B L EE - &
PR ES THREEEIZRT
& 17 BE580,0007%8 7T » BB ELT
HRASTHRR YRERTERFES
AR o L IE M B) & 3 A R K A 1K
sk RFIE -

o REEERREE I EE R HEUA
PRAKIRA HFOKF -

o REERREEZREESALAR
SmRANEEREDRNER] -

o HthEpAEREBEDHALAR
ERAMEMBA - Yo REE] -
MR

REFEKEXEB 2 HBERND T
T

2021 2020

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FEITL

Interest on bank loans RITEFAE 12,546 35,216
Interest on other loans HEMEF B 229,050 36,077
Interest on convertible bonds AR ESHHN B 149,532 141,955
Interest on senior note BREERNZ 14,444 528
Interest on lease liabilities HERERNE 4,436 2,899
410,008 216,675

Silver Grant International Holdings Group Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4 4 Bt ¥ R & M 5F

For the year ended 31 December 2021
Bt E202146 12831 AILF/E

8. Directors’ and Chief Executive Officer’s
Remuneration

The remuneration paid to the Company’s directors
and the chief executive officer for the year, disclosed
pursuant to the Listing Rules, section 383(1)(a), (b), (c)
and (f) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and
Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information
about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is as follows:

ESRITRARME

AEE - RIELETRA - FERRERA
£383(1)(a) * (b) (o) B (f)f&IA R R (4]
BEEMNDER)ROIF280HEE - M
TARAEFZRITBAZNFHOT

2021 2020

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FET

Fees we 3,549 3,600

Other emoluments: HEE :

Salaries, allowances and benefits in FHe  EMLREYER

kind 9,475 9,425

Discretionary bonuses BIFIEAL - 952

Pension scheme contributions RIRE 2R 192 132

9,667 10,509

13,216 14,109

Annual Report 2021 —FFHk
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 & Bt #& 3R & Mi 5%

For the year ended 31 December 2021

B ZE2021F 12431 I F/E

8. Directors’ and Chief Executive Officer’s

Remuneration (Continued)

(a)

Silver Grant International Holdings Group Limited

Independent non-executive directors

The fees paid to the Company’s independent

8. EERTBARME(E)

(a)

BYFHITES

FAXNTARRARBILIFNTE

non-executive directors during the year were as FEZ2HESWT
follows:

2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHETT FET
Liang Qing 2E 400 400
Zhang Lu SR I3 400 400
Hung Muk Ming HE/KER 300 300
1,100 1,100

There were no other emoluments payable to the

Company’s independent non-executive directors
during the year ended 31 December 2021 (2020:

Nil).

NEE2021F12A31H ILEE -
WEEMEMBYIIERITES Y

B (20204 : £) o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4 4 Bt ¥ R & M 5F

For the year ended 31 December 2021
E22021F 12831 HILFE

8. Directors’ and Chief Executive Officer’s 8. EERITHHEARME(Z)
Remuneration (Continued)

(b) Executive directors, non-executive directors (b) BITEE: FHTEERTHA
and the chief executive officer &

Salaries,
allowances Pension
and benefits Discretionary scheme Total
Fees in kind bonuses contributions remuneration

A= BRE
e RENEN BistEA AR FraE
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FET FE FET FET
2021 20214
Executive directors: WITES:
Chu Hing Tsung REM(Hita)

(note a) 252 - - - 252
Huang Jijue (note ) ~ =EB(Hib) 350 3,897 - 70 4,317
Luo Zhihai EEB 600 2,852 - 122 3,574
Tang Lunfei (note ¢) ERR (M) 389 - - - 389
Wang Ping (note d FE(Hita) 168 2,726 - - 2,894
Ma Yilin (note e) SEN(fite) - - - - -

1,759 9,475 - 192 11,426
Non-executive directors: JFHTEE
Chu Hing Tsung KEM(Hizta)

(note a) 290 - - - 290

Chen Zhiwei ¥ 400 - - - 400
690 - - = 690
2,449 9,475 - 192 12,116

Annual Report 2021 —E-—FFR




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 & Bt #& 3R & Mi 5%

For the year ended 31 December 2021
Bt E202146 12831 AILF/E

8. Directors’ and Chief Executive Officer’s 8. EERITHHEARME(Z)
Remuneration (Continued)

(b) Executive directors, non-executive directors (b) BITEE: FHTEERTHA
and the chief executive officer (Continued) (&)
Salaries,
allowances Pension
and benefits  Discretionary scheme Total
Fees in kind bonuses  contributions  remuneration
e 2 RIKE

e REWEN ByBfea SR HaR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FETL FET FETL FET
2020 20204
Executive directors: HWOEE:
Ma Yilin (note e) SEMRHHe) 400 — = = 400
Huang Jiajue (note ) ~ &EB(Hib) 600 6,573 576 66 7,815
Luo Zhihai ERE 600 2,852 376 66 3,894
1,600 9,425 952 132 12,109
Non-executive directors: FEHTEE :
Gao Jian Min (note )  &RE (i) = - - - -
Chu Hing Tsung KEM(Hizta)
(note a) 500 — — = 500
Chen Zhiwei BEE 400 = = = 400
900 = = = 900
2,500 9,425 952 132 13,009
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4 4 Bt ¥ R & M 5F

For the year ended 31 December 2021
Bt E202146 12831 AILF/E

8. Directors’ and Chief Executive Officer’s
Remuneration (Continued)

(b) Executive directors, non-executive directors
and the chief executive officer (Continued)

Notes:

(a) Mr. Chu Hing Tsung has been redesignated from
a non-executive director to an executive director
and appointed as the chief executive officer of the
Company on 1 August 2021.

(b)  Mr. Huang Jiajue resigned as an executive director
and the chief executive officer of the Company on
1 August 2021.

(c) Mr. Tang Lunfei has been appointed as an
executive director of the Company on 11 January
2021.

(d)  Mr. Wang Ping has been appointed as an
executive director of the Company on 1 August
2021.

(e) Mr. Ma Yilin resigned as an executive director of
the Company on 11 January 2021.

(f) Mr. Gao Jian Min resigned as a non-executive
director of the Company on 1 January 2020.

There was no arrangement under which a director

waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during the
year ended 31 December 2021.

Annual Report 2021

8. EERTBARME(E)

(b) BITES  FUTESRTHAR
R(E)

(a) FEMRTEEN2021F8A1H
HIERTESTATANTES
WEZERNARITHEE

(b) HEEBEELEN2021F8A1H
BIEARARITEERITRE
% o

(c) FEfaRiEE R2021F1 11
AEZRTARARHITES -

(d) EFFEAENR2021F8A1H%E
ZERARARRITES -

(e) HEMEEEK2021F1A11
BEEARRMITES -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 & Bt #& 3R & Mi 5%

For the year ended 31 December 2021
Bt E202146 12831 AILF/E

9. Five Highest Paid Employees 9.

The five highest paid employees during the year
ended 31 December 2021 included three (2020: two)
directors, details of whose remuneration are set out in
note 8 to the consolidated financial statements. Details
of the remuneration of the remaining two (2020: three)
highest paid non-director employees for the year are as

hEBRESHES

REZE2021F12A31BIEFE - A #
BESHEEBE=4(2020%F : WE)
Efx BEZHFHABERNGENB
HEMFES - RBEZFE - HBWE
(20205 : =R )EaHIEZEEZ
NGB T -

follows:

2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$’000
FAET FHET

Salaries, allowances and benefits in e ERMREWEF
kind 5,272 6,698
Discretionary bonuses [DlEREEAN - 770
Pension scheme contributions RIS FTEIHE R 70 95
5,342 7,563

The number of non-director highest paid employees
whose remuneration fell within the following bands is

FHN T T BEEEER=FHEE
gBEWT :

as follows:

HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 7t £ 1,500,00078 70 = -
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7 £2,000,0007% 75 = 1
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,0017& 7T 22,500,000/ 7T 1 —
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,0018 723,000,000 7T 1 2

Silver Grant International Holdings Group Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4 4 Bt ¥ R & M 5F

For the year ended 31 December 2021
Bt E202146 12831 AILF/E

10. Taxation 10. %i1E

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made
as the Company and its subsidiaries in Hong Kong
incurred tax losses during the year ended 31 December
2021 (2020: Nil).

The taxation charge of the PRC Corporate Income
Tax (“CIT”) for the year has been made based on
the Group’s estimated assessable profits calculated
in accordance with the relevant income tax laws
applicable to the Company’s subsidiaries in the PRC.
Under the Law of the PRC on Corporate Income Tax (“CIT
Law”) and the Implementation Regulation of the CIT
Law, the tax rate of the Company’s subsidiaries in the
PRC was 25% for the year ended 31 December 2021
(2020: 25%).

The withholding tax arising from dividend income
received from the Company’s subsidiaries in the PRC is
calculated at 5%.

HE2021F12A31B IEFE » HRA
REIRERBBEZHB RGBSR
BB - 8 A REEEREF (2020
Fm|E) o

FR - REPEMSH(TEEMSH])
TR AR B 2 BB 2 R LA R ERR
Tt FAR R A AR AT S B BT &
IS HIBH - RIBPEDSEMEH
E(EMEHE]D) REEMBRE
EiAME - B E2021F12H8318 (L4F
B ARARFBEZHBARZHEA
25%(2020%F : 25%) ©

B AR AR B2 8 2w YR AR B U
AZ A% KT E o

2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET

Current: BNER
PRC CIT — charge for the year PRIMEREH — FAXH 3,809 930
Deferred (note 28) EIE(HiE28) 11,447 (4,331)
Total tax charge/(credit) for the year FRHBESHGRR) 25 15,256 (3,401)
Annual Report 2021 T —FFR



196

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 & Bt #& 3R & Mi 5%

For the year ended 31 December 2021
Bt E202146 12831 AILF/E

10. Taxation (Continued) 10. BiE(&)

BN B R B ARER D K8 R R AR AT
AUAREIR ZORTE R R 5T 8 2 bR Al &5 18
ERAEHAS(ER) BRERB X
AEZAFERBERS(ER)BEBN

the effective tax rate for the year is as follows: I

A reconciliation of income tax expense/(credit)
applicable to loss before tax at the statutory rate for
the jurisdictions in which the Company and most of its
subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax expense/(credit) at

2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000 %
FET FET

Loss before tax PR RIS 18 (1,797,238) (444,509)
Tax credit at the R BUETE PT1S

PRC statutory HEAE 2R

income tax rate TEE % (449,310) 25.0 (111,127) 25.0
Share of results of BEEEHEL

joint ventures 3 354,387 (19.7) 101,015 (22.7)
Share of results of  #{§ —KEt= A

an associate EE$ 11,345 (0.6) (831) 0.2
Income not subject HZEREUA

to tax (25,612) 1.4 (20,813) 4.7
Expenses not Ikt b

deductible for tax 52,414 (2.9) 14,121 (3.2)
Tax losses not RIERIEE B

recognised 72,032 (4.0) 14,234 (3.2)
Tax charge/(credit) (RN EE BT

at the Group’s RAE 7 FiI8

effective tax rate T GK%) 15,256 (0.8) (3,401) 0.8

The share of tax attributable to an associate and joint B —RBERARIREECEHIE

ventures amounting to Nil (2020: Nil) and tax credit of
HK$278,143,000 (2020: HK$70,590,000), respectively,
are included in “Share of profits or losses of associates
and joint ventures” in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss.

Silver Grant International Holdings Group Limited

2Rl /A Z(20205F : B)RBIBEE R
278,143,000/ 7T (20204 : 70,590,000
BIL)  EFtAGEERRANE#E
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4 4 Bt ¥ R & M 5F

For the year ended 31 December 2021

EFE20214F12H31 HIFFE
11. Dividend 11. RE
No dividend was paid or proposed for the year ended REZE2021F12831H IEFE AR &
31 December 2021 (2020: Nil). IR SRR AR B (20204F : &) -
12. Loss Per Share Attributable to Ordinary 12. AAFEBREREEABLESRE
Equity Holders of The Company B
The calculation of the basic loss per share attributable RAREBERFEABRGERELRS
to the ordinary equity holders of the Company is based BIRE T BIBFE S

on the following data:

2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$’000
TET TAET

Loss attributable to ordinary equity FHJ//( Dt%'ii R EAREE 2 AR
holders of Company used in the MiEmR A ARGEE
basic loss per share calculation 1,452,609 317,641

Number of shares
RGEHE
2021 2020
in thousand in thousand

TR Th

Weighted average number of ordinary FALAGTESRERBEZEND

shares in issue during the year BT E IR INRE 8

used in the basic loss per share

calculation 2,304,850 2,304,850
No adjustment for dilution has been made to the RN Al M ARG 2 AT RRESEFT
basic loss per share amounts presented for the years 2 BREAEBESEEEREEY
ended 31 December 2021 and 2020 as the Company’s 2 [t I £ 5L E 22021 F K2020F
convertible bonds outstanding had an anti-dilutive 12A31BLFE 23 2 BREXREE
effect on the basic loss per share amounts presented. SREEHEERAE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 & Bt #& 3R & Mi 5%

For the year ended 31 December 2021
Bt E202146 12831 AILF/E

13. Investment Properties

13. REYWHE

2021 2020

HK$’000 HK$’000

FE FET

At the beginning of the year REF ) 2,624,229 2,486,340

Exchange realignment FE 37 28 74,002 151,444
Change in fair value recognised in RIBRRERZ A EE

profit or loss 31,814 (13,555)

At the end of the year RER 2,730,045 2,624,229

The Group’s investment properties are situated in
Hong Kong and Mainland China and were revalued on
31 December 2021 based on valuations performed
by Vigers Appraisal & Consulting Limited (“Vigers”),
an independent professionally qualified valuer, at
HK$2,730,045,000 (2020: HK$2,624,229,000).

The investment properties are leased to third parties
under operating leases, further details of which are
included in note 15 to the financial statements.

At 31 December 2021, the legal title of the Group’s
investment properties with a carrying value of
approximately HK$109,494,000 (2020: HK$92,851,000)
situated in the PRC has not been passed to the Group.

At 31 December 2021, certain of the Group’s
investment properties with an aggregate
carrying amount of HK$2,650,502,000 (2020:
HK$2,542,850,000) were pledged to secure general
banking facilities granted to the Group (note 25(a)(i)).

Silver Grant International Holdings Group Limited

AEBMREVEMREBRTER
o THIRBEE Y EEE E R HERD
B EEFEERAER QA S
H3r 1) ®B2021F128318 AT {E B (& B
= 1§ £2,730,045,000/8 7T (20204 :
2,624,229,000/8 7T ) °

REMERBEEHELETE=T
E— RIS ER SRR 5

M2021F12A318 » AEB R H H
R E Y 2 BRE{E 4 A109,494,000
7 70 (20204 : 92,851,000 7T ) K %
BNARBFEREHE -

R2021F12A31H » AEBFRAEA
H/452,650,502,000/8 75 (20204 :
2,542,850,0007 L) B TIREMED
IR - ABERE T AS B —RIRTT
B (HizE25())
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4 4 Bt ¥ R & M 5F

For the year ended 31 December 2021
Bt E202146 12831 AILF/E

13. Investment Properties (Continued)
Fair value hierarchy

For the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020,
the fair value measurements of the Group’s investment
properties are using significant unobservable inputs
(Level 3).

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, for all
investment properties that are measured at fair value,
the properties have been used in their highest and best
use.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, there were
no transfers of fair value measurements between Level
1 and Level 2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3
(2020: Nil).

Annual Report 2021
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 & Bt #& 3R & Mi 5%

For the year ended 31 December 2021

B FE2021F 12531 HIFF/Z

13. Investment Properties (Continued) 13. REWE(E)
Fair value hierarchy (Continued) AREEZERE)
Below is a summary of the valuation techniques and INTAEREE  IREMEGHERRA G
the key inputs used in the valuation of the Group’s BRI EEERASIEHRE

investment properties:

Valuation techniques Significant unobservable inputs
ER EXTUHERAY 2021 2020
Office Investment approach Capitalisation rate (%) 6 6
BFiE REE BARMEE(%)
Market rent (RMB per square 120-135 120 — 138

meter per month)

mERE(BABFARARET)

Carpark Comparison approach Adjusted transaction price (RMB 200,000 — 200,000—
per carpark space) 220,000 220,000
F55% i 3 BRERHER(GEELARS
TT)
Commercial Investment approach Capitalisation rate (%) 6 6
[EES REE BAMEE(%)
Market rent (RMB per square 78 — 150 70 — 145

meter per month)

mERE(BAREAAKARET)

Residential (located in  Comparison approach Adjusted transaction price (HK$ 28,719 — 26,073 —
Hong Kong) per square foot) 34,427 34,532

FERRER) HEE BRERSER(BFAREL)

Residential and Comparison approach Adjusted transaction price (RMB 19,584 — 22,930 —
commercial (located per square meter) 31,852 56,616
in the PRC)

EERBR(GRGE) LBEA BRBRHER(FTHK

ARETT)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4 4 Bt ¥ R & M 5F

For the year ended 31 December 2021

B FE2021F 12531 HIFF/Z
13. Investment Properties (Continued)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

The fair value was determined by reference to
comparable sales transactions available in the
relevant market or by investment approach, where the
market rentals of all lettable units of the properties
are assessed and discounted at the market yield
expected by investors for these types of properties.
The market rentals are assessed by reference to the
rentals achieved in the lettable units of the properties
as well as other lettings of similar properties in the
neighbourhood. The capitalisation rate adopted is made
by reference to the yields derived from analysing the
sales transactions of similar commercial properties and
adjusted to take into account the market expectation
from property investors to reflect factors specific to the
Group’s investment properties.

A significant increase/decrease in the market rent and
adjusted transaction price in isolation would result in
a significant increase/decrease in the fair value of the
investment properties. A significant increase/decrease
in the capitalisation rate in isolation would result in a
significant decrease/increase in the fair value of the
investment properties.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 & Bt #& 3R & Mi 5%

For the year ended 31 December 2021
Bt E202146 12831 AILF/E

14. Y% - BERRE

14. Property, Plant and Equipment

Leasehold
land and Leasehold Furniture Office Motor
buildings  improvements and fixtures equipment vehicles Total
gL
kEF:  RENEEE FRRRE HAERME RE &%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FE7 FEr FEr FEn FEn FEn
31 December 2021 20215125318
At 1 January 2021; 202151818 :
Cost A - 17,114 5,848 2,530 23,937 50,029
Revalued amount Eff48 235,663 - - - - 235,663
Accumulated depreciation ZiMEREE
and impaiment - (16,363) (1,074) (2,109) (15,226) (34,771)
Net carrying amount ERFE 235,663 1,351 4,774 422 8,711 250,921
At 1 January 2021, net of R2021%51A18 -
accumulated depreciation ZATERAETS
and impairment 235,663 1,351 4,774 422 8,711 250,921
Exchange realignment EHAR 103 2% 140 (58) 228 437
Additions AE - 10,309 - 10,012 - 20,321
Disposals mE - - - - (408) (408)
Revaluation B 12,632 - - - - 12,632
Depreciation provided durtng AR EEE
the year (7,656) (1,191) (] (1,828) (1,565) (12,244)
At 31 December 2021, net of 20214128318 »
accumulated depreciation ZHITERHESE
and impairment 240,742 10,493 4,910 8,548 6,966 271,659
At 31 December 2021: R2021%12A318 :
Cost WA - 28,324 5,988 12,517 22,266 69,095
Revalued amount L% 240,742 - - - - 240,742
Accumulated depreciation ZHMERAE
and impairment - (17,831) (1,078) (3,969) (15,300) (38,178)
Net carrying amount BHFE 240,742 10,493 4,910 8,548 6,966 271,659

Silver Grant International Holdings Group Limited
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For the year ended 31 December 2021

B ZE2021F 12431 HIFF/E

14.

Property, Plant and Equipment (Continued)

14. 9% BERRKE(E)

Leasehold
land and Leasehold  Furniture and Office Motor
buildings  improvements fixtures equipment vehicles Total
HELH
kgF  BENERE WG BAERE a2 gt
HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$ 000
TAT AT AT AT AT AT
31 December 2020 2020%12A318
At 1 January 2020; 202051518 :
Cost KA - 17,375 5813 2,394 20,968 46,550
Revalued amount EfSH 299,240 - - - - 299,240
Accumulated depreciation LHMERAE
and impairment - (15,366) (1,182) (1,899) (13,515) (31,958)
Net carrying amount EREE 299,240 2,009 4,631 499 7,453 313,832
At 1 January 2020, net of R2020E1A18 - Z3H4E
accumulated depreciation RHEFE
and impairment 299,240 2,009 4,631 499 7,453 313,832
Exchange realignment B A% 211 78 286 2 218 814
Additions AE - 172 36 107 2,937 3,252
Disposals it (19,580) - (163) - 19 (19,822)
Revaluation Eff (35,779) - - - - (35,779)
Depreciation provided durtng AR ERE
the year (8,429) (908) (16) (205) (1,818) (11,376)
At 31 December 2020, netof  $2020%128318 » EitH
acoumulated depreciation ERRETE
and impairment 235,663 1,351 4,774 422 8,711 250,921
At 31 December 2020: R2020F12A31A :
Cost A - 17,714 5,848 2,530 23,937 50,029
Revalued amount it 235,663 - - - - 235,663
Accumulated depreciation ZINERRE
and impairment — (16,363) (1,074) (2,108) (15,226) (34,771)
Net carrying amount FEFE 235,663 1,351 4774 422 8,711 250,921
T —FFR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 & Bt #& 3R & Mi 5%

For the year ended 31 December 2021

Bt E202146 12831 AILF/E
14. Property, Plant and Equipment (Continued)

At 31 December 2021, the legal titles of the Group’s
leasehold land and buildings with a carrying value of
approximately HK$38,672,000 (2020: HK$33,395,000)
situated in the PRC have not been passed to the
Group.

The fair values of the Group’s leasehold land and
buildings at 31 December 2021 and 2020 have been
arrived at on the basis of valuations carried out by
Vigers. The valuations were arrived at using direct
comparison method by reference to sales evidence
as available on the market, and investment approach,
where the market rentals of all lettable units of the
properties are assessed and discounted at the
market yield expected by investors for these types
of properties. The market rentals are assessed by
reference to the rentals achieved in the lettable units
of the properties as well as other lettings of similar
properties in the neighbourhood. The capitalisation
rate adopted is made by reference to the yields
derived from analysing the sales transactions of similar
commercial properties and adjusted to take into
account the market expectation from property investors
to reflect factors specific to the Group’s leasehold land
and buildings. The revaluation surplus on revaluation
of the leasehold land and buildings amounting to
approximately HK$12,632,000 (2020: revaluation deficit
of HK$35,779,000) was credited to asset revaluation
reserve.

At 31 December 2021, certain of the Group’s leasehold
land and buildings with an aggregate carrying amount
of HK$198,500,000 (2020: HK$198,800,000) were
pledged to secure general banking and other facilities
granted to the Group (note 25(a)(ii)).

Silver Grant International Holdings Group Limited

14. 9% BERRKEE)

M2021F128318 » AEBEMNRFH
7 BR T (B A 4 538,672,000/ 7t (2020
F : 33,395,000/ L) 2 HE L K #Z
FHEBIRBFPEZARER o

REEMHEE L M EFR2021F K&
202012 H31B 2 AR BEHEREIE
HrFrtE L 2 BEFEATS - Z5EED
FRAER LB A CLXBTIE AT G A H
ERBURKRELEE  EFAITH
MYEBN o THERES NRREER L
YT ER T I% B R E TR &
IR - MIGHEEEELEE TR LE
MEBN 2 HE REMAPITER 2 L
ME - EREFERRZESTNEBZ
U EMEZIHER S RFAEYER
BEHMSMNHAENTIRBEAEEEE
THREFZEFRER - HE T RIE
FEHRBH T EL B12,632,000% 7T
(20204F : == {# &5 435,779,000/ 7T )
EEtABESMGHE -

R2021F12A831H » AEBEEREBES
198,500,0007% 7T (20204F : 198,800,000
BIT)NE THE L REFEEEE
NERETFTASEN —RRTREME
B (KtzE25(0)i)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4 4 Bt ¥ R & M 5F

For the year ended 31 December 2021

Bt E202146 12831 AILF/E
14. Property, Plant and Equipment (Continued) 14. Y% BERRXRE(ZE)
Fair value hierarchy AREER
For the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, B £20215F £20205F12 A1 HIEFE -
the fair value measurements of the leasehold land and AEBHETHREFNAREERE
buildings are using significant unobservable inputs (Level RER A ERE ABIR(E3R) -
3).
In the opinion of the directors of the Company, for RAREERE  BRAAAREFEMNHE
leasehold land and buildings that are measured at fair ETMREFTME  WEZRERAERE
value, the properties have been used in their highest BARRERAR °
and best use.
During the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, HZE2021F K2020F 12 A31HIEFE -
there were no transfers of fair value measurements FIREFR AN EAABFES
between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into or % o JNEEE A S A -
out of Level 3.
Below is a summary of the valuation techniques and UTAREERE L RIEFHEMA
the key inputs used in the valuation of the Group’s ZIEERT R EZG ASIBERE
leasehold land and buildings:
Significant
Valuation techniques unobservable inputs Weighted average
& (B i BERATAHERASE fnfEF59E
2020
Office (located in the Investment approach Term yields 5.5% 5.5%
PRC) RE% FEEE
BFIE (R )
Reversion yields 6.0% 6.0%
BREMEE
Market rents (RMB per 75 78
square meter per month)
mEHe(BREFHRAR
)
Office (located in Comparison approach Adjusted transaction price 35,451-71,435 46,386-47,743
Hong Kong) HESk (HK$ per square foot)
BRIE(MNRES) B HER
(BFHRET)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 & Bt #& 3R & Mi 5%

For the year ended 31 December 2021

Bt E202146 12831 AILF/E
14. Property, Plant and Equipment (Continued) 14.

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

A significant increase/decrease in the market rent and
adjusted transaction price in isolation would result in
a significant increase/decrease in the fair value of the
leasehold land and buildings. A significant increase/
decrease in the yield in isolation would result in a
significant decrease/increase in the fair value of the
leasehold land and buildings.

If leasehold land and buildings had not been revalued,
they would have been included on a historical cost
basis at the following amounts:

M BERREE)
DRBESHR(E)

HET W REFOTEES MERHER
SEREBAELI  TRESHER
AEXNEEM R - HELREF
GOl Rk PNl N 3 R E S S
RABEKRERD, 00 -

HAHEE T RBFETER - A
RESERRAEELATSSBAR -

2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
At 1 January: ®m1A1H :
Cost [D®N 148,932 148,932
Accumulated depreciation 2 E (130,207) (125,694)
Net carrying amount R FE 18,725 23,238
At 1 January, net of accumulated R1A18 - REHINEFH
depreciation 18,725 23,238
Depreciation provided during the year —FRZ ITEEE (4,513) (4,513)
At 31 December, net of accumulated ~ MW12831H » ZHTE F5
depreciation 14,212 18,725
At 31 December: M12H318 :
Cost AR 148,932 148,932
Accumulated depreciation R2FtinE (134,720) (130,207)
Net carrying amount REFE 14,212 18,725

206 Silver Grant International Holdings Group Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4 4 Bt ¥ R & M 5F

For the year ended 31 December 2021
Bt E202146 12831 AILF/E

15. Leases

The Group as a lessee

The Group leased office premises in the PRC under

15. #HE

AEBEREEA

AEERBEEHELHHEHEREM

=

operating lease arrangements. Leases for the property NEYE - MENHELKERE % B3

are negotiated for a term of 13 years. Generally, the
Group is restricted from assigning and subleasing the

leased assets outside the Group.

(a) Right-of-use assets

The carrying amount of the Group’s right-of-use
assets and the movements during the year are as

follows:

Fo—RME  ARETEHEHEEEE

BREROHEEREBIAIN -

(a) RAREE

ASBEREEEFNNKREE
REBT

HK$'000
FET
As at 1 January 2020 20201 A1H =
Additions NE 57,155
Depreciation charge nEEHA (2,784)
Exchange realignment b 5, R R (155)
As at 31 December 2020 and 72020912 431 H K% 20214F1 818
1 January 2021 54,216
Additions as a result of acquisition of a ~ FAWE —XWB AR MKIE
subsidiary 143
Depreciation charge hesH (3,980)
Exchange realignment & 5 1,394
As at 31 December 2021 H20215F12831H 51,773
—T - —EER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 & Bt #& 3R & Mi 5%

For the year ended 31 December 2021
Bt E202146 12831 AILF/E

15. Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)
(b) Lease liabilities

The carrying amount of lease liabilities and the
movements during the year are as follows:

15. #HE (&)

FEBEREBEAGE)

HEARE

FAHEEENREERZEH
B

2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
FETT FET
At beginning of year F4] 48,532 —
New leases HE - 57,155
Additions as a result of acquisition FUEE—KRHB AT MAE
of a subsidiary 145 —
Accretion of interest recognised 4 ARETRHYF B 1% 0
during the year 4,436 2,899
Payments (B - (11,685)
Exchange realignment ME 5, e B 1,339 163
Carrying amount at end of year ~ FRIKRHEE 54,452 48,532
Analysed into: aEp=
Current portion mENEB 2,048 —
Non-current portion IEMBNES 52,404 48,532
54,452 48,5632

The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is

disclosed in note 38 to the financial statements.

Silver Grant International Holdings Group Limited

HE & EH 28 B 254 5B 7% R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4 4 Bt ¥ R & M 5F

For the year ended 31 December 2021

B FE2021F 12531 HIFF/Z
15. Leases (Continued) 15.

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

(c) The amounts recognised in profit or loss in
relation to leases are as follows:

HE(#E)
FEBEREBEAGE)

(c) HEENERPHINSEMAT:

2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FEr
Interest on lease liabilities HEERENHE 4,436 2,899
Depreciation charge of right-of-use TREEENTEEHR
assets 3,980 2,784
Expenses relating to short-term leases ERfSHATRE B @B (&
(included in administrative expenses)  1&E/THEA) — 2,760
Total amount recognised in profit or RIERERNRSE
loss 8,416 8,443

(d) The total cash outflow for leases is disclosed in
note 32(b) to the financial statements.

The Group as a lessor

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group
leased its investment properties consisting of certain
residential and commercial properties in the PRC under
operating lease arrangements with leases negotiated
for terms ranging from 1 to 15 years (2020: 1 to 20
years). Rental income recognised by the Group during
the year ended 31 December 2021 was approximately
HK$87,376,000 (2020: HK$89,128,000), details of
which are included in note 5 to the financial statements.

Annual Report 2021
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 & Bt #& 3R & Mi 5%

For the year ended 31 December 2021
Bt E202146 12831 AILF/E

15. Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessor (Continued)

At the end of each reporting period, the Group had the
following undiscounted lease payments receivable in
future periods under non-cancellable operating leases
with its tenants:

15. #HE (&)

FEBERHBEAGE)

RBEHR - AEERBEEEBESZH
] JBUSH A TH A0 2 R SR AT B OR RA 3R
HEMFDOT

2021 2020

HK$°000 HK$°000

FET FET

Within one year —FR 80,172 66,892
After one year but within two years —FEMENRN 47,813 39,437
After two years but within three years MWFE=FRK 20,181 29,807
After three years but within four years =F&MHF R 13,374 14,980
After four years but within five years MFERAFA 8,765 11,750
After five years RFELAE 39,258 42,994
209,563 205,860

Silver Grant International Holdings Group Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4 4 Bt ¥ R & M 5F

For the year ended 31 December 2021

B FE2021F 12531 HIFF/Z
16. Other Intangible Assets 16. HttEEEE
Licenses
[
HK$’'000
FET
31 December 2021 2021%F12H31H
Cost at 1 January 2021, net of accumulated 202141 A1 BHEKZ - Rt %5
amortisation =
Acquisition of a subsidiary that is not a W IEREBRIMME AR (M :E31)
business (note 37) 5,621
Amortisation provided during the year F N —
Impairment during the year FNRIE (2,807)
At 31 December 2021 R2021F12H31H 2,814
At 31 December 2021: M2021%12A31H :
Cost B AR 2,814
Accumulated amortisation Z T -
Net carrying amount FREFE 2,814
Intangible assets related to the licenses for the HIR M S BRI RABENEREER
provision of financial services were arising from the B U — R IR B H R 2 & (P
acquisition of a subsidiary that is not a business (note iE31) - R |AREY - MR ARH
31). The licenses have no finite period over which BAREE T ERERATRRESRE
the Group can use to generate net cash flows. The R o N R IR TR AT R A ORI
directors consider the licenses as having indefinite ERA - Bt E RS RR S H ] ER
useful lives as they are expected to contribute to ERFEH - RS T - WX
net cash inflows indefinitely. The licenses will not be NREEMBERFIBEBEYE  BEE
amortised and are carried at cost less any subsequent HERFHERTRER -

accumulated impairment losses until their useful lives
are determined to be finite.

Annual Report 2021 T —FFR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 & Bt #& 3R & Mi 5%

For the year ended 31 December 2021

B F20214612 531 HiFFEE
17. Interests in Associates

17. REBEEQTNER

2021 2020

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FET

Share of net assets PEFEE 335,507 85,569
Amount due from an associate JEUN — KRB & N AR 570,106 589,783
Impairment BB (9,416) (4,794)
560,690 584,989

As at 31 December 2021, the amount due from an
associate was unsecured, non-trade in nature, non-
interest bearing and expected to be repaid beyond one
year.

As at 31 December 2020, the amount due from an
associate was unsecured, non-trade in nature, bearing
interest at 4% per annum and repayable within one
year.

An impairment analysis was performed at each
reporting date by considering the probability of
default of the amount due from an associate. As at
31 December 2021, the probability of default applied
was 4.9% (2020: 1.1%) and the loss given default
was estimated to be 31.2% (2020: 25.4%). As at 31
December 2020, none of the financial assets included
in the above balances were overdue and all balances
were categorised within Stage 1 for the assessment
of ECLs. As at 31 December 2021, all balances
were overdue and categorised under Stage 2 for the
assessment of ECLs.

Silver Grant International Holdings Group Limited

MR2021F12A31H * B —RBE A
AIRAEER  ERXFHE  TEHERE
HiR—FRER -

R2020F12A31H » Bl — KB E R
RIFRBAEER  EBESHUED - BFF
KA%FT W AR —FRNEE -

REHRER  EERERB—RBEAQ
AIRMBAREEETREIN - B
2021128318 * FIfEA 2 E Q=R
54.9% (2020%F : 1.1%) * fhEHELE
Kk K 531.2% (20204F : 25.4%) o 1A
202012 A31H @ Ll &P A< El
BEGEDH  EGSREERRNG
TEHEEEERNSE R - R20214
12A31H - IBKRBEHE BB HE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4 4 Bt ¥ R & M 5F

For the year ended 31 December 2021

Bt E202146 12831 AILF/E
17. Interests in Associates (Continued) 17. REEE QAR ER(Z)
The following table shows the reconciliation of loss TRIRHER —REE R AR ZEE
allowance for an amount due from an associate: B2 AR
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$°'000
FEx FHET
At the beginning of the year REF ) 4,794 5,993
Impairment loss provided/(reversed) FAHRRERE,CREEIE
during the year $[0)) 4,622 (1,199)
At the end of the year RER 9,416 4,794
Particulars of the associates are as follows: B R RIFFIBT ¢
Percentage of
ownership interest
Particulars of Place of registration attributable to
Name equity held and business the Group Principal activities
REEERL
£ FsRRER BEREEH BERERELELA TEER
Cinda Jianrun Property Registered capital PRC 30% Investment holding
Company Limited*A
FEREMEGRAR AR R 30% REER
Guangzhou Ruifeng Registered capital PRC 19.6% Investment holding
Investment Company
Limited#/
BN B E % AR R 19.6% REER
BRAR"
*‘ Registered as a domestic limited liability company under u BEPEERIAMABEANEREER
the PRC law A] °
A The English name of this company represents the best " AR RFMERNE FEXER - %
effort made by management of the Company to directly NAMAXEBIARAIEEES &
translate its Chinese name as it did not register any AENBEEPNEEEZMSE °
official English name.
Annual Report 2021 T —FFR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 & Bt #& 3R & Mi 5%

For the year ended 31 December 2021

Bt E202146 12831 AILF/E
17. Interests in Associates (Continued) 17. REEE QAR ER(Z)
The following table illustrates the aggregate financial TRIIERNETER 2 AN EERE R
information of the Group’s associates that are not Rl BRI ER
individually material:
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FETL
Share of associates’ (loss)/profit for DR E QB FERN(EE),EF
the year (45,380) 3,325
Share of the associates’ total DB E AR AN SRR
comprehensive income (45,380) 8,519
Aggregate carrying amount of AEERBERARZIREZERR
the Group s investments in the wiE
associates 335,507 85,569
18. Interests in Joint Ventures 18. REELXE R
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET
Share of net assets DEFREE 1,873,031 3,033,385
Impairment VERED (304,634) —
1,568,397 3,033,385
Amounts due from joint ventures JEU & & ER 1,812,578 1,033,833
Impairment IR (3,536) (4,354)
1,809,042 1,029,479
Portion classified as current assets BHEAREEE 2D (61,078) (69,528)
Non-current portion SEMENER S 1,747,964 969,951

Silver Grant International Holdings Group Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4 4 Bt ¥ R & M 5F

For the year ended 31 December 2021

Bt E202146 12831 AILF/E
18. Interests in Joint Ventures (Continued)

As at 31 December 2021, except for the amount of
HK$1,506,954,000 (2020: HK$969,951,000) which
was unsecured, non-trade in nature, carrying interest
at fixed rates ranged between 4.35% and 8% (2020:
4.35%) per annum and repayable on 31 December
2022, subject to the financial capability of the joint
venture to repay as scheduled, the amounts due from
joint ventures were unsecured, non-trade in nature,
interest-free and repayable on demand.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, an
impairment loss of HK$304,634,000 (2020: Nil) was
recognised by the Group for the investment in ZHYQ
(as defined below). The recoverable amount of the
Group’s investment in ZHYQ was determined based on
value-in-use calculations using cash flow projections
based on financial budgets covering a five-year period
approved by senior management. The pre-tax discount
rate applied to the cash flow projections was 15.28%.
The cash flow projections beyond the period of
financial budgets were extrapolated using a growth rate
of 2%, which did not exceed the long-term average
growth rate of the industry. Based on the impairment
assessment performed, the recoverable amount was
approximately HK$1,544 million. Key assumptions
on which management has based its cash flow
projections to perform impairment testing includes: (i)
sales growth rates and budgeted gross margins on the
petrochemical business which is based on expected
market development and management experience in
the industry; and (i) pre-tax discount rate which reflects
specific risks relating to the underlying business.

An impairment analysis was performed at each
reporting date by considering the probability of default
of the amounts due from joint ventures. As at 31
December 2021, the probability of default applied
ranged from 0.1% to 2.6% (2020: 0.2% to 1.1%) and
the loss given default was estimated to be 31.2% (2020:
25.4%). As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, none of
the financial assets included in the above balances
were overdue and all balances were categorised within
Stage 1 for the assessment of ECLs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 & Bt #& 3R & Mi 5%

For the year ended 31 December 2021

Bt E202146 12831 AILF/E
18. Interests in Joint Ventures (Continued) 18. REELE R (Z)
The following table shows the reconciliation of loss TRINTHER —REEDERZER
allowance for the amounts due from joint ventures: BiE A%
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$°'000
FEx FHET
At the beginning of the year REF ) 4,354 2,543
Impairment loss (reversed)/provided FRHERE(EE),/
during the year &8 (818) 1,811
At the end of the year REFR 3,536 4,354
Particulars of the joint ventures are as follows: BEPEFBET :
Percentage of
ownership interest
Particulars of equity  Place of registration attributable to the
Name held and business Group Principal activities
rEBEN
% FsRERER BEREENE BEREELELL A TEEK
Zhong Hai You Qi (Tai Zhou)  Registered capital PRC 51%  Production and trading
Petrochemical Company of petroleum and
Limited (“ZHYQ")# petrochemical products
FiEaR(EM) AL AR F KEREERAR
BRAR(HEHR)# B Em
Meizhou City Ji Shan Registered capital PRC 50% Investment in urban
Operation Management renewal projects
Company Limited#A
BINTTERSEEER FE AR AR A WEW T EFIEB
BRAEH#A
t Registered as a domestic limited liability company under “ BIEFBEEEEMAERANBREER
the PRC law Al e
A The English names of these companies represent the A AR RFMERTE HRXEE - %
best effort made by management of the Company to ERAMNENEBIARNBERESR
directly translate their Chinese names as they did not SAZENHERXEBEEMS -

register any official English names.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4 4 Bt ¥ R & M 5F

For the year ended 31 December 2021
Bt E202146 12831 AILF/E

18. Interests in Joint Ventures (Continued)

ZHYQ is considered as a material joint venture of the
Group and is accounted for using equity method.

The following table illustrates the summarised financial
information in respect of ZHYQ adjusted for any

18. R #=(E)

FERRRESAEENEAAED
X RAEREARK-

TRIRE BT mRET AR
2 DS BRNEMNERFELAR

differences in accounting policies and reconciled to the

carrying amount in the financial statements:

BRER A B S SRR PO RO R FEL 8K -

2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Current assets MENEE 6,281,194 5,774,126
Non-current assets EMENE E 10,439,285 10,325,632
Current liabilities mENBE (12,432,324) (6,997,113)
Non-current liabilities ERBEE (663,486) (3,154,832)
Reconciliation to the Group s interest EEAEB S EPEEZE 2
in the joint venture: FEE
Proportion of the Group’s ownership — ZN5 B 2 % G RELL 71 51% 51%
Share of net assets DIRFEE 1,848,581 3,038,385
Impairment VERED (304,634) —
Carrying amount of the investment & REE 1,543,947 3,033,385
Revenue A 23,884,320 15,019,940
Loss for the year FAEE (2,182,182) (836,502)
Other comprehensive loss for the year FRE M2 EE - (48,127)
Total comprehensive loss for the year F A2 EEIB42%58 (2,182,182) (884,629)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 & Bt #& 3R & Mi 5%

For the year ended 31 December 2021

B FE2021F 12531 HIFF/Z
18. Interests in Joint Ventures (Continued)

During the year, following a tax self-review conducted
as required by the relevant tax authority (“Tax
Authority”) in the PRC regarding the sales of certain
petrochemical products by ZHYQ, additional sales tax
and related tax surcharge and late fees for prior years
was charged to profit or loss of ZHYQ during the year
ended 31 December 2021, leading to the substantial
increase in the loss of ZHYQ for the year. The final
amounts of sales tax and related tax surcharge and
late fees for prior years payable by ZHYQ are subject
to the final review of the Tax Authority.

The following table illustrates the aggregate financial
information of the Group’s joint ventures that are not
individually material:

18. R #=(E)

FRN - REP R A BTG (B
BORER  BPESHRBEENETA
TERETRBAL®ER  BEFEMNE
SNEBE R R ARRA M I OB e B RE
F2021F12A31HIEFE ARG HR
BB - 51 ERRAFREIE
RIRE M - FIEHREHBNBETFER
HNE B B AR R DN RO € M R AR
SRUBBHBANREEZA%E -

TRIRAEBEER M E L TERNE
BEENMBERER :

2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$’000
TET TAET

Share of the joint ventures’ profit for {54 44 1> % & (A% 7

the year = -
Share of the joint ventures’ total BHAELCEEIA KGR

comprehensive income = —
Aggregate carrying amount of the REBREALELEZREZ

Group’s investments in the joint BREERRE

ventures 24,450 —

Silver Grant International Holdings Group Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4 4 Bt ¥ R & M 5F

For the year ended 31 December 2021

Bt E202146 12831 AILF/E

19. Financial Assets at Fair Value Through Profit 19. UAAREBEFEBEHSEHTABREN

or Loss cRMEE
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Listed equity investment, at fair value  _EHRAKRE @ IRARE 169,992 4,127
Unlisted equity securities IE EIRAFE H 70,078 64,529
Unlisted funds JEFTES 461,754 583,441
Non-performing assets portfolio TREEHRE 415,804 223,109
Others H A, 2,780 2,780
1,120,368 877,986
Current portion mENE D (952,679) (875,206)
Non-current portion JER BB 167,689 2,780

The above equity investments at 31 December 2021
and 2020 were classified as financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss as they were held for
trading.

The above unlisted funds and non-performing assets
portfolio at 31 December 2021 and 2020 were
mandatorily classified as financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss as their contractual cash flows
were not solely payments of principal and interest.
Details of the fair value hierarchy of the financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss are set out in note 37
to the financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 & Bt #& 3R & Mi 5%

For the year ended 31 December 2021
Bt E202146 12831 AILF/E

20. Loan Receivables

20. EWERN

2021 2020

HK$’000 HK$'000

FETT FET

Loan receivables, unsecured JEUWE TN - I IF 2,251,769 1,454,305
Impairment VERIE] (12,042) (15,004)
2,239,727 1,439,301

Current portion TRENER (2,239,727) (1,207,369)
Non-current portion EmBE D - 231,982

As at 31 December 2021, loan receivables guaranteed
by Taizhou Xin Bin Jiang Development Limited, a non-
controlling shareholder of a subsidiary of the Company,
of an amount of approximately HK$163,020,000 (2020:
HK$163,020,000) was unsecured, carrying interest
at fixed rate of 4.75% (2020: 4.75%) per annum and
repayable on demand (2020: repayable in December
2021) and was categorised under Stage 2 (2020: Stage
1) for the assessment of ECLs.

As at 31 December 2021, loan receivables outstanding
from independent third parties of an aggregate
amount of approximately HK$1,622,249,000 (2020:
HK$386,401,000) were unsecured, carrying interest at
fixed rates of 15% to 20% per annum (2020: fixed rates
of 12% to 15% per annum) and have maturity period
of 4 months to 1 year (2020: 6 months to 2 years) and
these balances were categorised under Stage 1 for the
assessment of ECLs.

Silver Grant International Holdings Group Limited

MR2021FE12A318 © BAR & — B
B AR IR REMITEIAEER
FRRERZERE K 4163,020,000
77T (20204F : 163,020,000/8 7T ) A
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M2021F12HA310 ' EIWBIE=FH
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For the year ended 31 December 2021

B FE2021F 12531 HIFF/Z
20. Loan Receivables (Continued) 20. BWER(E)
As at 31 December 2021, loan receivables outstanding M2021F12A831H - BRBLE=F
from independent third parties of an aggregate RIE BB E K45 49466,500,0007% 7T
amount of approximately HK$466,500,000 (2020: (20204F : 904,884,000) AE K - &
HK$904,884,000) were unsecured, carrying interest BEEFFE15%HE - BRIREEBAN T
at fixed rates of 15% per annum and were overdue 218 B =618 A (20204 : 1£6f@ A ) -
for payment ranging from 2 to 6 months (2020: 1 to 6 ZERTEBANGTEREEBENSE
months) and these balances were categorised under ZFEER o
Stage 2 for the assessment of ECLs.
As at 31 December 2019, loan receivables outstanding MR2019F 128318 » BB E =
from an independent third party of an amount of REZENEREEHS53,013,000/8 T4
approximately HK$53,013,000 were unsecured, carrying MK 2P ARRITHELNES)
interest at floating rate by reference to the interest rate FEETE - R E R B E2020F12 A
of the People’s Bank of China. The balance was written 31 A IEFEMESEEAKE -
off as uncollectible during the year ended 31 December
2020.
The following table shows the reconciliation of loss TRINRREREFI2EABREES
allowance that has been recognised for 12-month ECL BERAZEERE 2 HE
for loan receivables:
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$°'000
FET FAET
At the beginning of the year REF ) 15,004 23,172
Impairment loss reversed during the FRREBERR
year (2,962) (6,964)
Amount written off as uncollectible Hi 58 A FE A UL B B FIR - (1,204)
At the end of the year RER 12,042 15,004

An impairment analysis was performed at each
reporting date by considering the probability of default
of loan receivables. As at 31 December 2021, the
probability of default applied ranged from 0.1% to 4.8%
(2020: 0.5% to 2.0%) and the loss given default was
estimated to be 31.2% (2020: 25.4%).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 & Bt #& 3R & Mi 5%

For the year ended 31 December 2021
Bt E202146 12831 AILF/E

21.

Trade Receivables

The following is an ageing analysis of trade receivables
presented based on the invoice dates at the end of the
reporting period, which approximated on the respective
revenue recognition dates:

F& Wi B =R

THRZER B REREZ RIKARHER
FEMAERR B AR A0 2 R AR KN ¥R 5
HIR Z BRER D AT -

2021 2020

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FET

Within 1 month 1{EA R 4,377 7,317

The Group’s trade receivables represent receivables
arising from the rental income from tenants. The
credit period is generally one month to two months.
The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its
outstanding receivables and overdue balances are
reviewed regularly by management.

Since the Group’s trade receivables were related to a
number of diversified customers as at 31 December
2021 and 2020, there was no significant concentration
of credit risk. The Group does not hold any collateral
or other credit enhancements over its trade receivable
balances. Trade receivables are non-interest-bearing.

The Group applies the simplified approach to provide
for ECL prescribed by HKFRS 9, which permits the
use of the lifetime expected loss provision for all trade
receivables. Based on evaluation on ECL rate and
gross carrying amount, the directors of the Company
are of the opinion that the financial impact of ECL in
respect of these balances is considered immaterial. As
at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the loss allowance for
trade receivables was assessed to be minimal.

Silver Grant International Holdings Group Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4 4 Bt ¥ R & M 5F

For the year ended 31 December 2021
Bt E202146 12831 AILF/E

22. Deposits, Prepayments and Other Receivables

BE AARREMERRK

2021 2020

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FEIT

Loan interest receivables JEWE A B 245,152 86,648
Prepayments TEfT K 257 13,059
Deposits and other receivables e K H AL FEUGR 468,666 320,760
714,075 420,467

The financial assets included in the above balances
relate to receivables for which there was no recent
history of default and past due amounts. The ECL
is estimated by applying a loss rate approach with
reference to the historical loss record of the Group. The
loss rate is adjusted to reflect the current conditions
and forecasts of future economic conditions, as
appropriate. As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the
directors of the Company are of the opinion that the
loss allowance was assessed to be minimal.
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23. Pledged Bank Deposits and Cash and Bank

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 & Bt #& 3R & Mi 5%

For the year ended 31 December 2021
Bt E202146 12831 AILF/E

23. EHBRTERRBEERBRTELR

Balances
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Pledged bank deposits BEHRRITHER 24,450 23,753
Cash and bank balances B RIRTT 116,755 769,767
141,205 793,520

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank
balances of the Group denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”)
amounted to approximately HK$80,800,000 (2020:
HK$733,865,000). The RMB is not freely convertible
into other currencies. However, under Mainland
China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of
Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted
to exchange RMB for other currencies through banks
authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, pledged bank
deposits represented deposits pledged to banks to
secure banking facilities granted to a joint venture of
the Group.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based
on daily bank deposit rates. The bank balances and
pledged deposits are deposited with creditworthy
banks with no recent history of default.

Silver Grant International Holdings Group Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4 4 Bt ¥ R & M 5F

For the year ended 31 December 2021
Bt E202146 12831 AILF/E

24. Accrued Charges, Rental Deposits and Other 24, EFER - HBRERHEMENLRK

Payables
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Purchase of land use rights L HES - b {5 A 4 46,088 44,775
Accrued charges FEFTE R 146,553 111,385
Rental deposits HsRE 18,410 16,859
Other payables R NN 146,272 114,141
Financial guarantee contracts MBEREH 47,793 —
405,116 287,160

The payable for the purchase of land use rights in the
PRC as at 31 December 2021 and 2020 is due to an
independent third party and is secured by certain of
the Group’s investment properties of approximately
HK$82,152,000 (2020: HK$69,240,000). The amount
bears interest at a fixed interest rate of 4.68% per
annum for both years and is repayable on demand.
As at 31 December 2021, the relevant interest
payable included in the above was approximately
HK$47,559,000 (2020: HK$46,203,000).

The financial guarantee contracts represent guarantees
given in connection with the loans of a joint venture.
The Group does not hold any collateral or other credit
enhancements over the guarantees.
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24. Accrued Charges, Rental Deposits and Other

Payables (Continued)

The financial guarantee contracts are measured at the
higher of the ECL allowance and the amount initially
recognised less the cumulative amount of income
recognised. The ECL allowance is measured by
estimating the cash shortfalls, which are based on the
expected payments to reimburse the holders (i.e., the
banks) for a credit loss that it incurs less any amounts
that the Group expects to receive from the debtor (i.e.,
the joint venture). During the year ended 31 December
2021, no ECL allowance was provided as a result of
the loans of the joint venture (2020: Nil).

The credit exposure of the financial guarantee contracts
is classified as Stage 1. During the year, there were no
transfers between stages (2020: Nil).

Except for the above, the accrued charges, rental
deposits and other payables are unsecured, non-
interest-bearing and repayable on demand.

Silver Grant International Holdings Group Limited

24,

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 & Bt #& 3R & Mi 5%

For the year ended 31 December 2021
Bt E202146 12831 AILF/E
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4 4 Bt ¥ R & M 5F

For the year ended 31 December 2021
E22021F 12831 HILFE

25.

Interest-Bearing Bank and Other Borrowings

25. FHEBRITREMEE

2021 2020
Effective Effective
interest rate Maturity L EHIN  interest rate Maturity HK$'000
-1 il 2HA FEx ERF= pilkil= FET
Current 1)
Bank loans — secured ~ $B47EFH - HHEA 5% 2022 14,670 5.635% 2021 41,568
Other loans — secured ~ EftEZ - A 3.05% to 11% 2022 491,981 12% 2021 142,874
Other loans — unsecured Eft &3 - EiT R 5.35% 2022 34,386 5.35% 2021 33,406
Senior note — secured  EA2HE - I - 2022 - 7.5% 2021 151,461
541,037 369,309
Non-current E):
Bank loans — secured 75 - AEA 5% 2023 to 2024 163,203 5.635% 2022 to 2026 546,318
Other loans — secured ~ Hi &5 - A#HIF  3.05% to 11% 2023 to 2026 3,030,425 9% 10 12% 2022 to 2023 1,024,794
3,193,628 1,671,112
3,734,665 1,940,421
T —FFR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 & Bt #& 3R & Mi 5%

For the year ended 31 December 2021

Bt E202146 12831 AILF/E
25. Interest-Bearing Bank and Other Borrowings 25. FTEBITREMEE(ZE)
(Continued)
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Analysed into: 2R =
Bank loans repayable: JEEEIRITER
Within one year or on demand —ERNHIHREKR 14,670 41,568
In the second year EF 18,337 47,506
In the third to fifth years, inclusive E=FFRF
(BREREMF) 144,866 320,665
Over five years HE% - 178,147
177,873 587,886
Other loans and senior note JEEEEMER
repayable: REREE
Within one year —FR 526,367 327,741
In the second year F_F 66,770 229,069
In the third to fifth years, inclusive EZEFERF
(BIEERME) 2,963,655 795,725
3,556,792 1,352,535
3,734,665 1,940,421
Notes: Bt -
(@) As at 31 December 2021, certain of the Group’s (@) 2021128318 AEEE T &
borrowings were secured or guaranteed by: B TYA TR A ERAR R AER -

()  pledges over the Group’s investment properties Hn =~ =% fkmEm R E R
with an aggregate carrying amount of 2,650,502,0007%8 7T(2020%F :
HK$2,650,502,000 (2020: HK$2,542,850,000) 2,542,850,000/8 7T ) IR & 1)
(note 13); and FE2ER(ME13): &

(i)  pledges over the Group’s leasehold land and (i)  AEEIREAES198,500,000
buildings with an aggregate carrying amount of 7 7£(2020%F : 198,800,000/
HK$198,500,000 (2020: HK$198,800,000) (note TLMMEE T RBT 2 EF
14); (FFeE14):

(o) As at 31 December 2021, other than certain bank (b) M2021F12A31H  BRAEEAER

borrowings with aggregate carrying amount of
HK$5,645,000 (2020: HK$294,058,000) denominated
in United States dollars, all bank and other borrowings
were denominated in RMB as at the end of the reporting
period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4 4 Bt ¥ R & M 5F

For the year ended 31 December 2021

B FE2021F 12531 HIFF/Z
25. Interest-Bearing Bank and Other Borrowings

(Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(©

On 8 December 2020, the Company as the issuer, Mr.
Chu Hing Tsung, a then non-executive director and the
chairman of the board of directors of the Company,
as the guarantor, CNCB (Hong Kong) Investment
Limited (“Investor”) as the investor and CNCB (Hong
Kong) Capital Limited as the arranger, entered into a
subscription agreement, pursuant to which the Company
had conditionally agreed to issue to the Investor, and
the Investor had conditionally agreed to subscribe for,
a senior secured guaranteed note (“Senior Note”) in the
aggregate principal amount of US$19,800,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$154,440,000) maturing on the date
falling one year from the issue date of the Senior Note
(“Issue Date”). Interest shall accrue on the Senior Note
from (and including) the Issue Date until (and including)
the date on which the Senior Note is redeemed in
accordance with the terms and conditions of the Senior
Note at the rate of 7.5% per annum on the outstanding
principal amount of the Senior Note, payable quarterly in
arrears. If an event of default occurs and is continuing,
the interest rate for the period from (and including)
the date of occurrence of such event of default until
(and including) the date on which such event of default
ceases to continue, shall be adjusted to a rate of 15%
per annum. On 8 December 2020, the Company issued
the Senior Note in an aggregate principal amount of
US$19,800,000 (equivalent to HK$154,440,000) to the
Investor. The net proceeds were used for the general
working capital of the Group. The Senior Note was
secured by a personal guarantee executed by Mr. Chu
Hing Tsung, and mortgages executed by the Group
over certain properties owned by the Group with an
aggregate carrying amount of HK$288,800,000 as at 31
December 2020. The Senior Note was fully redeemed
during the year ended 31 December 2021.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 & Bt #& 3R & Mi 5%

For the year ended 31 December 2021
Bt E202146 12831 AILF/E

26. Convertible Bonds 26. TR ES

On 3 July 2019 (the “CB lIssue Date”), pursuant
to a placing agreement and certain subscription
agreements dated 20 May 2019 entered into between
the placing agent and certain connected persons of
the Company, respectively, the Company issued the
convertible bonds with an aggregate principal amount
of HK$1,150,000,000 (the “Convertible Bonds”), among
which convertible bonds with a principal amount of
HK$200,000,000 were placed to the placing agent
and convertible bonds with the remaining amount of
HK$950,000,000 were subscribed by the connected
persons of the Company (including Mr. Gao Jian Min,
a company owned by the elder sister of Mr. Hui Xiao
Bing and a company controlled by the spouse of Mr.
Liu Tianni). Mr. Chu Hing Tsung, the chairman of the
board of directors and a then non-executive director
of the Company, has provided personal guarantees in
favour of the relevant subscribers.

The Convertible Bonds are unsecured and carry interest
at 7% per annum on the outstanding principal amount.
Interest is payable semi-annually. The maturity period
of the Convertible Bonds is 36 months from the date of
issue, which will fall due on 3 July 2022.

The Convertible Bonds are convertible at the option of
the bondholders into ordinary shares of the Company at
initial conversion price of HK$2.33 per conversion share
(subject to adjustments pursuant to the terms and
conditions of the Convertible Bonds) and the bonds
shall be redeemable at the option of the Company
at any time from the Issue Date up to the close of
business on date which is five trading days prior to the
maturity date of the Convertible Bonds at an amount
being the principal amount of the Convertible Bonds
plus aggregate internal rate of return on the relevant
amount of the Convertible Bonds at 12% per annum
thereon (having included the interest paid) calculated
from the CB Issue Date to (and including) the early
redemption date.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021

B 2202112831 HIFFE
26. Convertible Bonds (Continued) 26. ATBRRESR(E)

Upon the maturity, the Company shall redeem from the
bondholders all of the Convertible Bonds at an amount
equivalent to 116.5% of the principal amount of the
outstanding Convertible Bonds.

The Convertible Bonds are split into liability and
derivative financial instruments in relation to the early
redemption option and the conversion option. The
fair value of the derivative financial instruments was
determined as of the date of issue and at 31 December
2021 and 2020 by reference to valuations performed
by an independent firm of professionally qualified
valuers, Asset Appraisal Limited (“Asset Appraisal”), as
further detailed in note 27 to the consolidated financial
statements. The residual amount was assigned as
liability component and was measured at amortised
cost subsequent to the initial recognition.

During the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020,
there was no conversion of the Convertible Bonds. The
Convertible Bonds with an aggregate principal amount
of HK$1,150,000,000 were outstanding as at 31
December 2021 (2020: HK$1,150,000,000).

Annual Report 2021
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Bt E202146 12831 AILF/E

26. Convertible Bonds (Continued)

The Convertible Bonds have been split into the liability
component and derivative financial instruments as

follows:

26. TERREHE)

AR

BB ESSSAESI RITESRT

HK$’000

FHET

Liability component at 1 January 2020 R2020F1 A1 2 BE3H 1,170,351

Interest expense MEFAX 141,955

Interest paid BT HE (79,843)
Liability component at 31 December 2020 and 202012 A31H &

1 January 2021 2021 F1A1B 2 BEHS 1,232,463
Interest expense FEMZ 149,532
Interest paid EfTAE (80,501)
Liability component at 31 December 2021 R2021F12 831 H 2 & &K 1,301,494

27. Derivative Financial Instruments 27. PFTEERMIE
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FEITL
Derivative financial instruments THESRITA 22,280 37,483

Silver Grant International Holdings Group Limited
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
Bt E202146 12831 AILF/E

27. Derivative Financial Instruments (Continued)

As detailed in note 26 to the financial statements, the
early redemption option and the conversion option
of the Convertible Bonds are classified as derivative
financial instruments measured at fair value through
profit or loss. During the year ended 31 December
2021, the loss on fair value change of HK$15,203,000
(2020: gain on fair value change of HK$39,630,000)
was charged to profit or loss. As at 31 December 2021
and 2020, the fair value was determined by Asset
Appraisal based on the Binomial Tree Pricing Model.
The key inputs into the model for the valuation are as

27.

TEEMTAE)

N BA 75 R R BT sE26 Rt - AT MR AR (S
FHRFEREERELEREERW
PEAEBARAABEFTEBHEZE T AR
mIMESRB T A - RE 220214
12A31BLEFEE RAEZEHEIE
15,203,0005 7T (20204 : A (A &
I #:39,630,000/%8 7T ) E At Az © 1
20214 K2020%F12A31H * AR EMH
PaELETEREARARRE 8
BAEEEET - HERENEZGHA
HIEMT -

follows:
| 2021 2020
Risk-free rate 42 [ B ) == 0.9% 0.3%
Dividend yield % B & 0% 0%
Volatility B 34.2% 30.5%
Annual Report 2021 T —FFR
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
Bt E202146 12831 AILF/E

28. Deferred Tax Liabilities 28. EEBIEAME
The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities BEFEANREREEERABZEH N
during the reporting years are as follows: N
Revaluation
Accelerated tax Revaluation of financial
depreciation of properties assets Tax losses Total
MERBRE NEERE  SREEEf HEER o
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT AT FAT TAT TAT
At 1 January 2020 2020614 1R (55) (258,749) - 1,808 (251,996)
Credited to profit or loss FRPMBEMR (2
during the year (note 10)  10) - 4,331 - - 4,331
Credited to other FREARMEZEER
comprehensive loss for the
year - 9,644 - - 9,644
At 31 December 2020 and 1 202012318 &
January 2021 202151418 (55) (239,774) - 1,808 (238,021)
Charged to profit or loss FRMBRBEAR10)
during the year (note 10) - (6,321) (5,126) - (11,447)
Charged to other FREARMZ
comprehensive income for
the year - (261) - - (261)
Exchange realignment [ A% - 1,187 = = 1,187
At 31 December 2021 12021F12 4318 (55) (245,169) (5,126) 1,808 (248,542)

The Group had tax losses arising in Hong Kong of
approximately HK$930,166,000 as at 31 December
2021 (2020: HK$836,749,000) that are available
indefinitely for offsetting against future taxable
profits of the companies in which the losses arose.
The Group also had tax losses arising in Mainland
China of approximately HK$307,004,000 (2020:
HK$116,173,000) that will expire in one to five years
for offsetting against future taxable profits. Deferred tax
assets have not been recognised in respect of these
losses as it is not considered probable that taxable
profits will be available against which the tax losses
can be utilised.

Silver Grant International Holdings Group Limited

R2021F12A318 » AE B B R B
& B 2 T I8 5 18 #7930,166,0007% 7T
(20204F : 836,749,000/ 70) @ Al &
PR BA A {E 38 SH 8 S 5 18 A A 2 R R FE#R
BmA o REBENBREPE A 2B
TH &5 18 £9307,004,0007% 7T (20204 :
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
Bt E202146 12831 AILF/E

28. Deferred Tax Liabilities (Continued) 28. EEMBEE(E)

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a
10% withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to
foreign investors from the foreign investment enterprises
established in Mainland China. The requirement is
effective from 1 January 2008 and applies to earnings
after 31 December 2007. A lower withholding tax
rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty between
Mainland China and the jurisdiction of the foreign
investors. For the Group, the applicable rate is 5%.
The Group is therefore liable for withholding taxes on
dividends distributed by those subsidiaries established
in Mainland China in respect of earnings generated
from 1 January 2008.

At 31 December 2021 and 2020, no deferred tax
was recognised for withholding taxes that would be
payable on the unremitted earnings that were subject
to withholding taxes of the Group’s subsidiaries
established in Mainland China. In the opinion of the
directors of the Company, it is not probable that
these subsidiaries will distribute such earnings in
the foreseeable future. The aggregate amount of
temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries in Mainland China for which deferred tax
liabilities were not recognised totalled approximately
HK$2,671,917,000 as at 31 December 2021 (2020:
HK$2,778,975,000).

29. Share Capital

29.

RIEFEMERERE - RABEAHK
42%l&§ﬁ%m%l&§%*mz

BB EUR10%TBINF - BB T B
20084F1 A1H AR + I 72007
F12A81B 2B 2 BF o i+ B At
m%l&éﬁﬁgﬂ%%EZﬁﬁﬁ%
40 - BIEATBEMR XA EERE o BiA
%lﬁavﬂ%m~%w~lﬁv$

B 78 5t 5% 00 R B A b R 2 A B B A
ﬂﬁ@mwiﬂ%ﬁt%%i%ﬂ%
k2 B’ B AN TEINRS -

R20214F %2020 12 A318 * #EH
REBE R T HA K2 B A B RIE
HABMBHHR 2 RNERFNZ N 28
MNBEREMRLERIE - XQAREER
B ZEWNBARTKAIRERAIER
RIRD KB BERN - 12021412 431
B SRFEANHEARZEEER
ZEREEAE(HER L ERTAER
EFRTA B E)# A2,671,917,000/ 7T
(20204 : 2,778,975,000/87T) °

IR

Number of Nominal
shares value
RO E FHE
‘000 HK$'000
Fig FET
Issued and fully paid: BETREHERA
At 1 January 2020, 31 December 7202051 A1H « 20204
2020, 1 January 2021 and 31 12A31H  2021F1 1B X
December 2021 2021512 A31H 2,304,850 3,626,781
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
Bt E202146 12831 AILF/E

30. Reserves

31.

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the

B % R MR

30. f#iH

AEENAEERBEFENFHBRE
BEHTERNPHERRIGAEEEH

movements therein for the current and prior years are *
presented in the consolidated statement of changes in FE5 .
equity of the financial statements.
Acquisition of a Subsidiary that is Not a Business 31. WE—XAUFBEBNWKHE QA
The net assets acquired by the Group during the year REEAEEYRBAFEENT
are as follows:
Fair value
DA
HK$'000
FET
Net assets acquired: EWEEEE -
Right-of-use assets EREEE 143
Other intangible assets HitnEmpEE 5,621
Other receivables H e Wk 406
Cash and bank balances Eﬁi&ﬁi{ﬁ el 412
Accruals and other payables FERT R R E A AT 3R (29)
Lease liabilities %HE@ (145)
6,412
Satisfied by cash LATR & B 1 6,412

No transaction costs were incurred by the Group for
this acquisition.

R 6% (B 30 8 L TR R EE AR (R R K
7K o

An analysis of the cash flows in respect of the WEMBARMBESRESMET ¢
acquisition of a subsidiary is as follows:
HK$’000
FET
Cash consideration RERE (6,412)
Deposit paid as at 31 December 2020 MR2020F12 A31 B X T HifE 2,406
Cash and bank balances acquired BUEIR S RIRTTE 412
Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents SFARBE RS R RENRE NIREEE
included in cash flows used in investing R R 5
activities (3,594)

Silver Grant International Holdings Group Limited
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For the year ended 31 December 2021

Bt E202146 12831 AILF/E
31. Acquisition of a Subsidiary that is Not a Business

(Continued)

On 20 December 2019, the Group entered into a sale
and purchase agreement with an independent third
party in respect of the acquisition of the entire issued
share capital of Jinluo Capital Management Limited
(“Jinluo”) at a total consideration of HK$6,000,000. The
transaction was completed on 1 July 2021.

Pursuant to the relevant sale and purchase agreement,
the cash consideration was adjusted to HK$6,412,000
based on the net asset value of Jinluo as at 1 July
2021.

The above acquisition has been accounted for by the
Group as an acquisition of assets as the entity acquired
by the Group does not constitute a business.

Annual Report 2021
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B FE2021F 12531 HIFF/Z
32. Notes to the Consolidated Statement of Cash 32. ZEHERERMTE
Flows
(a) Changes in liabilities arising from financing (a) RIEXBFELEZEEED
activities
Lease Convertible
Borrowings liabilities bonds
BE HEEE ARRES
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
FAET FAET FHET
At 1 January 2020 7202041 A1H 934,932 — 1,170,351
Changes from financing cash B&IR & EE# 8
flows 956,350 (11,685) =
New lease g — 57,155 =
Interest expense of AR ES
convertible bonds Z A B = — 141,955
Interest paid classified as SERKERERE
operating cash flows ZENFE — — (79,843)
Accretion of interest FRRER BT BEE I
recognised during the year — 2,899 —
Exchange realignment PE X A #E 49,139 163 —
At 31 December 2020 and 72020412 A31H
1 January 2021 }2021%F1H1H 1,940,421 48,532 1,232,463
Changes from financing cash B&ER & i EE
flows 1,788,300 — —
Interest expense of AR ESR 25 B
convertible bonds Sodun] - - 149,532
Interest paid classified as DIEAKERERE
operating cash flows ZERFLE - — (80,501)
Accretion of interest FRIER ZFI B3 0
recognised during the year - 4,436 -
Acquisition of a subsidiary W BE — RSB B A 7 — 145 —
Exchange realignment PE 5 5,944 1,339 -
At 31 December 2021 2021412 A31H 3,734,665 54,452 1,301,494

Silver Grant International Holdings Group Limited
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B F2021412H31 HiFFEE
32. Notes to the Consolidated Statement of Cash

33.

34.

Flows (Continued)
(b) Total cash outflow for leases

The total cash outflow for leases included in the
statement of cash flows is as follows:

32. MERERMEBRMWEE(E)

(b) HEERESRHAHE

AAREREXRZEERER
EIT

2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FAET

Within operating activities RIEEEEFPESE 4,436 2,760
Within financing activities KRB EEBPEE - 11,685
4,436 14,445

Pledge of Assets
Details of the Group’s assets pledged for the Group’s

borrowings are included in notes 23 and 25(a) to the
financial statements.

Commitments

The Group had the following capital commitments at
the end of the reporting period:

33. EEHEMH
MAEBEBCERZEEFBENE
sRR M 3E23 M i 5E25(a) ©

34. KiE

REBRBEMRE AT ERALE :

2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET

Contracted, but not provided for: DEEEW KRR
Non-performing assets portfolio TREEHE - 149,644
Unlisted equity securities HELEMRAZES 183,374 178,147
183,374 327,791
Annual Report 2021 T —FFR
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For the year ended 31 December 2021

EFE20214F12H31 HIFFE
35. Related Party Transactions 35. BEBARS
(a) In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere (a) BREUBREREMBLOMAIRS

in the financial statements, the Group had the
following transactions with related parties during

S REERF AR ETT
MRS -

the year:
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FEr
Interest income from an associate —REEE R ELZFBUWA - 22,497
Interest income from a joint venture —REELEZFBWA 55,560 76,371
Interest expense to non-controlling Bt A A1 EFEAR AR R
shareholders of subsidiaries 2B 3,499 1,766
Interest expense to a substantial FERRZFELZH
shareholder 58,512 55,548
Rental payment to a substantial YN—ZEERRHAS
shareholder = 2,720

Management fee to an entity controlled RBP4 —RITE
by close family member of Mr. Chu THIERERE
Hing Tsung

1,779 —

The above transactions were conducted in
accordance with the terms of the underlying
agreements. In the opinion of the directors, the
related party transactions were conducted in the
ordinary course of business of the Group.

(b) Compensation of key management personnel (b)
of the Group

In the opinion of the directors, the directors
and the chief executive officer of the Company
represented the key management personnel of
the Group and details of the compensation of the
key management personnel are set out in note 8
to the consolidated financial statements.

240 Silver Grant International Holdings Group Limited

bt 32 5 5 IR B AR R 1 2 1R K
BT -BEEZRR BRI
RAKRERRRGBEPHET -

FEETEEERASME
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For the year ended 31 December 2021

BtZE2021F12A31HILFE
36. Financial Instruments by Category 36. ZERE s Z2ERMIA

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of
financial instruments as at the end of the reporting K
period are as follows:

Financial assets SREE

2021 20214

Financial assets at FVTPL
AUAABHERREH

STABRNERERE
Designated Financial
as such Mandatorily assets
upon initial designated  at amortised
recognition as such cost
R
RH% BAGTEH
BRRIETE BEEE SREE @5t
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET FET FHT
Amount due from joint ventures JEUA EMER - - 1,809,042 1,809,042
Financial assets at fair value AR/ (EEEEEE
through profit or loss Pt A\ Bmz 2R
BE 242,810 877,558 - 1,120,368
Loan receivables JEWER - - 2,239,727 2,239,727
Trade receivables FEUER R = = 4,377 4,317
Financial assets included in FAES - BERR
deposits, prepayments and EElZz &
other receivables BE - - 713,818 713,818
Amount due from an associate  E—REL AR - - 560,690 560,690
Pledged bank deposits BERETER - — 24,450 24,450
Cash and bank balances B RFTER - - 116,755 116,755
242,810 877,558 5,468,859 6,589,227
Annual Report 2021 —E-—FFR




242

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 & Bt #& 3R & Mi 5%

For the year ended 31 December 2021

B 2202141231 HIFFE

36. Financial Instruments by Category (Continued) 36. REHESZEMIA(E)
Financial assets (Continued) cRMEEE)
2020 20204

Financial assets at FVTPL
BAAREIEALE

TABENSREE
Designated Financial
as such Mandatorily assets
upon initial designated at amortised
recognition as such cost Total
R
iibi2 AT EH)
HRRETE REIETE SREE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET FHET
Amount due from joint ventures JEMA Z R ER - - 1,029,479 1,029,479
Financial assets at fair value AR (EEEEE
through profit or loss ZETABEL
EREE 71,436 806,550 = 877,986
Loan receivables FEUE - - 1,439,301 1,439,301
Trade receivables FEUEER - - 7,317 7,317
Financial assets included in FARS  BRERR
deposits, prepayments and HihEW R 257
other receivables BE - - 407,408 407,408
Amount due from an associate  JEW—REEE 1N A - - 584,989 584,989
Pledged bank deposits BHETER — — 23,753 23,753
Cash and bank balances Be MR - - 769,767 769,767
71,436 806,550 4,262,014 5,140,000
Financial liabilities E R
Other than the derivative financial instruments as FRéRE MBS RAME27 T RBAITES
disclosed in note 27 to the consolidated financial AT A5 - ARER20214F 20204
statements, all financial liabilities of the Group as at 31 12AMEMMAESREED BILHEH
December 2021 and 2020 were financial liabilities at RAGTENSRMALE -

amortised cost.

Silver Grant International Holdings Group Limited
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Bt E202146 12831 AILF/E

37. Fair Value and Fair Value Hierarchy of Financial

Instruments

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial
instruments reasonably approximate to fair values.

Management has assessed that the fair values of
trade receivables, financial assets included in deposits,
prepayments and other receivables, amounts due from
joint ventures, loan receivables, pledged bank deposits,
cash and bank balances, financial liabilities included in
accrued charges, rental deposits and other payables
and the current portion of borrowings approximate to
their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term
maturities of these instruments.

The Group’s finance department headed by the
directors of the Company is responsible for determining
the policies and procedures for the fair value
measurement of financial instruments. The finance
department reports directly to the directors and the
audit committee of the Company. At each reporting
date, the finance department of the Group analyses the
movements in the values of financial instruments and
determines the major inputs applied in the valuation.
The valuation is reviewed and approved by the directors
of the Company. The valuation process and results are
discussed with the audit committee twice a year for
interim and annual financial reporting.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are
included at the amount at which the instruments could
be exchanged in a current transaction between willing
parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale.

Annual Report 2021
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Bt E202146 12831 AILF/E
37. Fair Value and Fair Value Hierarchy of Financial

Instruments (Continued)

The following methods and assumptions were used to
estimate the fair values:

The fair values of non-current portion of amount due
from an associate, loan receivables and borrowings
have been calculated by discounting the expected
future cash flows using rates currently available for
instruments with similar terms, credit risk and remaining
maturities. The fair value of the liability component
of the convertible bonds is estimated by discounting
the expected future cash flows using an equivalent
market interest rate for a similar convertible bond with
consideration of the Group’s own non-performance
risk. The changes in fair value as a result of the
Group’s own non-performance risk for borrowings
as at 31 December 2021 and 2020 were assessed
to be insignificant. In the opinion of the directors of
the Company, since their carrying amounts are not
significantly different from their respective fair values, no
disclosure of fair values of these financial instruments is
made.

The fair values of the listed equity investments are
based on their quoted market prices. The fair values
of certain club debentures have been valued based on
historical transaction price from the relevant institutions,
which are classified as Level 2. The fair values of
unlisted securities and unlisted funds are based on
adjusted net assets approach by adjusting the book
value of assets and liabilities of investees to their fair
values, or estimated by using a discounted cash flow
valuation model based on the contractual disposal
price of an unlisted security.

The fair value of the non-performing asset portfolio
is estimated by discounting the expected future
cash flows using rates for instruments with similar
terms, credit risk and the aggregate of the values of
the underlying collateral secured to the respective
outstanding receivables owned by the creditors. The
Group’s own non-performance risk for non-performing
asset portfolio as at 31 December 2021 and 2020 was
assessed to be insignificant.

Silver Grant International Holdings Group Limited
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B ZE2021F 12431 HIFF/E

37. Fair Value and Fair Value Hierarchy of Financial

B R MR

37. EMITAZARERDAESS

Instruments (Continued)

The directors of the Company believe that the
estimated fair values resulting from the valuation
technique, which are recorded in the consolidated
statement of financial position, and the related changes
in fair values, which are recorded in profit or loss, are
reasonable, and that they were the most appropriate
values at the end of the reporting period.

Below is a summary of significant unobservable inputs
to the valuation of unlisted equity securities, unlisted

(&)

RARESZRR  AAERMAGLEZ
B AREGIARETBMRAER)RA
REREEYGTABRR)EEE - B
RBMERREEEZEE -

UTAEIELEMRAZES  JELMESK
TREEHGFENEARTITERE A

funds and non-performing asset portfolio:

Valuation techniques

fhiER %

SEME

Significant
unobservable inputs

EXTTRRAARE

Unlisted equity securities and
unlisted funds

FEMBARZRFLES

Non-performing assets portfolio

PREERA

Adjusted net asset approach

BRBMFEEE

Discounted cash flow
approach

S
=i
HEIHJ

NRAL

Book value of assets and 532 648
liabilities of the investees
adjusted to their fair value
(HKS million)
BRENR AERBENEE
EEE N ET-S )

Aggregate of the valuation of the 565 223
individual underlying collateral
secured to the respective
outstanding receivables
owned by the creditors (HK$
million)
HEEAMERNERAEE
e (il ElalLEl
BERmatELE(BEET)

A 1% increase/decrease in the fair values of assets and
liabilities of the investees would result in an increase/
a decrease in the fair value of the unlisted equity
securities of HK$5,320,000 (2020: HK$6,480,000).

A 1% increase/decrease in the collateral for the
respective non-performing assets would result in
an increase/a decrease in the fair value of the non-
performing assets portfolio of HK$5,650,000 (2020:
HK$2,230,000).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 & Bt #& 3R & Mi 5%

For the year ended 31 December 2021

B 22021F 1231 HILFE

37. Fair Value and Fair Value Hierarchy of Financial 37. TWMIAZAABERAABER
Instruments (Continued) (4 )
Fair value hierarchy AREER
The following tables illustrate the fair value TRETAEESHIAEZAAENE
measurement hierarchy of the Group’s financial E
instruments:

Fair value measurement using

FEATHIEEZARETE
Quoted
prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
WERm 5 BATEE BERFUBE
ZR{E BARE BARE
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
HK$’000 TART (E14R) (%24%) (%3#%) Fh
Assets measured at fair value — F2021F12431H
as at 31 December 2021: BAREGEZEE -
Derivative financial instruments  $14 4@ T E - - 22,280 22,280
Financial assets at fair value BAREFEREES
through profit or loss SABREZEREE 169,992 2,780 947,596 1,120,368
169,992 2,780 969,876 1,142,648
Assets measured at fair value — R2020%12531H
as at 31 December 2020: BAREHEZEE -
Derivative financial instruments  f14 4@ T & - - 37,483 37,483
Financial assets at fair value BAREGERHEE)
through profit or loss FAERCZEREE 4,127 2,780 871,079 877,986
4,127 2,780 908,562 915,469

During the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020,
there were no transfers of fair value measurements

between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into or

out of Level 3 for both financial assets and financial

liabilities.

Silver Grant International Holdings Group Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4 4 Bt ¥ R & M 5F

For the year ended 31 December 2021

Bt E202146 12831 AILF/E

37. Fair Value and Fair Value Hierarchy of Financial 37. TWMIAZAABERAABER
Instruments (Continued) (4 )
Fair value hierarchy (Continued) DAREER(E)
The movements in fair value measurements in Level 3 FR - EIWAZAAEFERLEWT:

during the years are as follows:

Financial Financial
assets liabilities
TRIEE AR
HK$°000 HK$°’000
At 1 January 2020 20201 A1H 803,309 2,147
Additions of financial assets at fair RERE-EHRANBER
value through profit or loss measured H& Bt ABR S REE
at fair value in Level 3 55,183 —
Disposal of financial assets at fair value HERFE=BHRANETER
through profit or loss measured at BB ABENEmEE
fair value in Level 3 (32,640) —
Total gain/(loss) recognised in profit or RiBzsHER 2 Wzs (B ERE
loss 30,077 (2,147)
Exchange realignment JEN 52,633 —
At 31 December 2020 and 1 January  F2020%12 831 H
2021 202151 A1 R 908,562 -
Additions of financial assets at fair RBERF=BHRANENER
value through profit or loss measured H& Bt ABRZ S REE
at fair value in Level 3 335,862 -
Disposal of financial assets at fair value H&ERE=EBHAETEAR
through profit or loss measured at HEFHTABENEREE
fair value in Level 3 (154,853) -
Total loss recognised in profit or loss — RiBmER 2 EEAARE (145,929) -
Exchange realignment E N R 26,234 -
At 31 December 2021 20214124318 969,876 -
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38. Financial Risk Management Objectives and

Policies

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise
borrowings, amounts due from an associate and
joint ventures, pledged bank deposits and bank
balances and cash. The main purpose of these
financial instruments is to raise finance for the Group’s
operations. The Group has various other financial
assets and liabilities such as trade receivables and
trade and bills payables, which arise directly from its
operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial
instruments are interest rate risk, foreign currency
risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The directors of the
Company review and agree policies for managing each
of these risks and they are summarised below.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to risk for changes in market
interest rates relates primarily to the Group’s
borrowings set out in note 25 to the consolidated
financial statements. The Group does not use derivative
financial instruments to hedge interest rate risk. The
Group manages its interest cost using a mix of fixed
and variable rate borrowings.

At 31 December 2021, if the interest rate of borrowings
had increased/decreased by 1% and all other variables
held constant, the loss before taxation of the Group,
through the impact on floating rate borrowings,
would have increased/decreased by approximately
HK$19,123,000 (2020: HK$5,879,000).

Silver Grant International Holdings Group Limited

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 & Bt #& 3R & Mi 5%

For the year ended 31 December 2021
Bt E202146 12831 AILF/E

38. cREAREEEEREE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4 4 Bt ¥ R & M 5F

For the year ended 31 December 2021
Bt E202146 12831 AILF/E

38. cRIEREEEERBK(E)

38. Financial Risk Management Objectives and

Policies (Continued)
Foreign currency risk

The major financial assets and liabilities of the Group
are denominated in the functional currency of the
respective group entities. Other than a loan receivable
which is denominated in United States dollars, the
directors of the Company consider that the Group’s
exposure to foreign currency exchange risk is
insignificant as the majority of the Group’s transactions
are denominated in the functional currency of each
individual group entity.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group
did not use any financial instruments for hedging
purposes (2020: Nil).

Credit risk

The Group only trades with recognised and creditworthy
third parties. It is the Group’s policy that all customers
who wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit
verification procedures. In addition, receivable balances
are monitored on an ongoing basis.

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets,
which comprise loans receivable, amounts due from
joint ventures and an associate, pledged bank deposits
and cash and bank balance, arises from default of the
counterparty, with a maximum exposure equal to the
carrying amounts of these instruments.

For the Group’s trade receivables, since the Group only
trades with recognised and creditworthy third parties,
there is no requirement for collateral. Concentration
of credit risk is managed by counterparty. There is no
significant concentration of credit risk for the Group’s
trade receivables.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 & Bt #& 3R & Mi 5%

For the year ended 31 December 2021
B 22021F 1231 HILFE

38. Financial Risk Management Objectives and 38. 2RIEAKREEBERKE(Z)
Policies (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued) EERB(E)

Maximum exposure and year-end staging BERBRFEEBEDI

The tables below show the credit quality and the TRETERTEEEEIRNEER
maximum exposure to credit risk based on the Group’s ZkEREERR(ZEROHERSE
credit policy, which is mainly based on past due L BRIEE A A5 EBHE R L REINK
information unless other information is available without R4 ) AR 20214 Kk20204F
undue cost or effort, and year-end staging classification 12A3EMFEERER S - IREH
as at 31 December 2021 and 2020. The amounts REMEERABERVBEREGNE
represented gross carrying amounts for financial Rz 8RR -

assets and the exposure to credit risk for the financial
guarantee contracts.

As at 31 December 2021 A2021F12H831H
12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
12f8 B
EER#E 2HRBEEFE
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 3 approach
HK$'000 THER B-R& EZRE B A%
Trade receivables FEURSR - - - 4,317 4,311
Loan receivables ERER
— Normal* - 1,622,249 - - - 1,622,249
— Doubtful* - AR - 629,520 - - 629,520

Financial assets included in 5 A% BAZEH
deposits, prepayments and  fiElFZ SREAE
other receivables

— Normal* - 713,818 - - - 713,818
Amount due from an associate [EYI—FEEE A Al

— Doubtful* - Al - 570,106 - - 570,106
Amount due from joint ventures FEYA LR ¥R

— Normal* - 1,812,578 - - - 1,812,578
Pledged bank deposits BRBIER

— Not yet past due - HABH 24,450 - - - 24,450
Cash and bank balances B4ARPTER

— Not yet past due - HWAREE 116,755 - - - 116,755

4,289,850 1,199,626 - 4,377 5,493,853
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4 4 Bt ¥ R & M 5F

For the year ended 31 December 2021
Bt E202146 12831 AILF/E

38. Financial Risk Management Objectives and
Policies (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

Maximum exposure and year-end staging (Continued)

38. cRIEREEEERBK(E)

FERBR(E)

REBBR FEERD T (E)

12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
12{8 AT HS
FEBR 2HRHEERE
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
HK$'000 T F-B& FRE F=RE Blrz it
Trade receivables FEdRR ST - = = 7,317 7,317
Loan receivables M E
— Normal* -~ 549,421 = = = 549,421
— Doubtful* - g - 904,884 - - 904,884
Financial assets included in ~ sTARE  BRHREE
deposits, prepayments and e EREE
other receivables
— Normal* - i 407,408 - - - 407,408
Amount due from an associate ER—KBE AR
— Normal* -k 589,783 - — - 589,783
Amount due from a joint BR-—FagtEn
venture
— Normal* - — 1,033,833 - - - 1,033,833
Pledged bank deposits BRI
— Not yet past due - AABH 23,753 - - - 23,753
Cash and bank balances Be RS
— Not yet past due - HABH 769,767 - — - 769,767
3,373,965 904,884 - 7,317 4,286,166
* The credit quality of loan receivables, financial assets MERER  stAKRS  BNRERE

included in deposits, prepayments and other receivables
and amounts due from an associate and joint ventures
is considered to be “normal” when they are not past
due and there is no information indicating that the
financial assets had a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition. Otherwise, the credit quality of
the financial assets is considered to be “doubtful”.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 & Bt #& 3R & Mi 5%

For the year ended 31 December 2021
B 22021F 1231 HILFE

38. Financial Risk Management Objectives and 38. 2RIEAKREEBERKE(Z)
Policies (Continued)

Liquidity risk REBESER

The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between REBZBEABNBRFAEE @ #
continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of RESIFEMEBZMIRE - 1IN B
borrowings. In addition, banking facilities have been put HBHIRITRLE - B TERZF -

in place for contingency purposes.

The table below summarises the maturity profile of TRBMBIEENRUEBAREEES
the Group’s financial liabilities based on contractual BEE BB -

undiscounted payments.

As at 31 December 2021 M2021%F12831H

In the
Within one third to
year or In the fifth years, Beyond

on demand second year inclusive five years
R—ERZ RE=ZFRE
HK$°000 FET REX RE-F (BEEEMF) REFNUE

Accrued charges, rental [EirER - AkEe

deposits and other REMERZ

payables 405,116 - - - 405,116
Convertible bonds aRES 1,380,000 - - - 1,380,000
Borrowings EE 885,257 399,567 3,740,870 - 5,025,694
Lease liabilities HERE 5214 5,214 16,269 44,130 70,827
Financial quarantee contracts BH&HERAH 3,841,990 - - - 3,841,990

6,517,577 404,781 3,757,139 44,130 10,723,627
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4 4 Bt ¥ R & M 5F

For the year ended 31 December 2021

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital
management are to safeguard the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern and to maintain healthy
capital ratios in order to support its business and
maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic
conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying
assets. To maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the dividend payment to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue
new shares. The Group is not subject to any externally
imposed capital requirements. No changes were made
in the objectives, policies or processes for managing
capital during the years ended 31 December 2021 and
2020.
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B FE2021F 12531 HIFF/Z
38. Financial Risk Management Objectives and 38. 2RIEAKREEBERKE(Z)
Policies (Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued) FEBESRAKE)
As at 31 December 2020 M2020F12A31H
In the
Within one third to
year or In the fifth years, Beyond
on demand second year inclusive five years Total
R—FER% RE=ZFRE
HK$'000 THL REX REZF (EEEERF) FHENE o
Accrued charges, rental T ER - HEHEe
deposits and other REMERT
payables 276,267 - - - 276,267
Convertible bonds HBRES 80,500 1,339,750 - - 1,420,250
Borrowings EA 518,401 391,709 1,251,423 183,194 2,344,727
Lease liabilities HEaRE = 5,214 15,956 49,657 70,827
Financial guarantee contracts B FERA4) 3,630,618 - - - 3,630,618
4,505,786 1,736,673 1,267,379 232,851 7,742,689
Capital management EXER

AEEEREATEE EEARASERE
WFEREWERREEARLE - X
SHEB M ABRRAERKEE -

AEEEBHEERNEE THEREBLCER
B RABEEZRBFBEDA
Bo BEBLAREANGER  AEEA
ARMBERN ZIRE - BREZEAE
WA BITHRG c AEEHAEZEM
INEBREMZ ERERFTHER - REBE
20214 [22020F12A31 B It FE - &
BEARZBZ BERREFHE TS
gjj o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 & Bt #& 3R & Mi 5%

For the year ended 31 December 2021
Bt E202146 12831 AILF/E

38. Financial Risk Management Objectives and 38. 2RIEAKREEBERKE(Z)

Policies (Continued)
Capital management (Continued)

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which
is total borrowings over equity attributable to owners
of the Company. Total borrowings included borrowings
and convertible bonds. The gearing ratios as at the end
of the reporting periods were as follows:

EXEE(E)

AEERAEEABLREREAN - §
RALL R Ty AE B MBRRR AR R R HEA A
EIEERBEL - ERAEBRER R
BERES -  RREHER  AEBZE
ERBELERMT :

2021 2020

HK$’000 HK$°000

FET FAET

Short-term borrowings CHARE 541,037 369,309

Long-term borrowings REEE 3,193,628 1,671,112

Convertible bonds ARRES 1,301,494 1,232,463

Total borrowings BERE 5,036,159 3,172,884
Equity attributable to owners of the RAREB AR

Company 5,231,344 6,559,754

Gearing ratio BEEABLE 96% 48%

Silver Grant International Holdings Group Limited
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
Bt E202146 12831 AILF/E

39. Statement of Financial

Position of the 39. AR EBEAMR K

Company
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#ET FET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Investment properties wEYHE 120,142 113,611
Property, plant and equipment Y - WE LA 39,238 34,594
Unlisted investments in subsidiaries WENIEETHEB A A 675,433 675,433
Amounts due from subsidiaries e D NEIEN 3,940,359 3,861,001
Amount due from an associate JEU — KB R A)ER 10,410 —
Financial assets at fair value through A AEFTE BHEE BT AR
profit or loss = EREE 118,078 2,780
Total non-current assets IEMBNEERE 4,903,660 4,687,419
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Deposits, prepayments and other e - BRI EMERGK
receivables 72,503 24,672
Amounts due from subsidiaries G RIEENEIEAN 182,503 326,458
Amount due from an associate JEUN — KRB & N AR - 10,410
Financial assets at fair value through ~ A RARETE B E& Bt A8
profit or loss mEE R EE 4,965 11,870
Loan receivables JEUE X 476,339 494,980
Cash and bank balances Be RIRITRE 57,845 57,583
Derivative financial instruments TESMITE 22,280 37,483
Total current assets mMENEERE 816,435 963,456
CURRENT LIABILITIES RBAE
Accrued charges, rental deposits and ~ EFTE A - Kme REME
other payables (E 62,254 73,664
Amounts due to subsidiaries JEASH BT BB A BIFX 154,630 145,811
Other borrowings HEMEE 176,700 151,461
Convertible bonds CIE &L 1,301,494 —
Total current liabilities mEBEERE 1,695,078 370,936
—FF R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 & Bt #& 3R & Mi 5%

For the year ended 31 December 2021
Bt E202146 12831 AILF/E

39. Statement of Financial

Company (Continued)

Position of the

39. KD BIMBEARREKE)

2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$ 000
F#ET FET
NET CURRENT (LIABILITIES)/ FRE(EE)BE
ASSETS (878,643) 592,520
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT EEABRARBARSE
LIABILITIES 4,025,017 5,279,939
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FnBERE
Deferred tax liabilities RIETHIERFE 8,863 8,863
Convertible bonds AR ES = 1,232,463
Total non-current liabilities FERBAELERE 8,863 1,241,326
Net assets HEE 4,016,154 4,038,613
EQUITY &N
Equity attributable to owners of the 72 F#EH A EG#EZE
Company
Share capital ik 3,626,781 3,626,781
Reserves s 389,373 411,832
Total equity BABE 4,016,154 4,038,613
Wang Ping Luo Zhihai
¥ EES
Director % Director %

Silver Grant International Holdings Group Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4 4 Bt ¥ R & M 5F

For the year ended 31 December 2021
Bt E202146 12831 AILF/E

39. Statement of Financial
Company (Continued)

Position of the

39. ARARYPBMRRRER(E)

Note: Hiet -
A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows: ARTREEBRT
Asset
revaluation Retained
reserve profits Total
EESMREE REBEF &5t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
At 1 January 2020 #2020%F1A1H 91,146 286,876 378,022
Profit for the year F % T — 32,124 32,124
Other comprehensive income for the — FREA 2 mE Uk

year 1,686 — 1,686
Total comprehensive income for the FREAEKZEEE

year 1,686 32,124 33,810
At 31 December 2020 and 1 January 2020412 H31H#

2021 2021F1A1H 92,832 319,000 411,832
Loss for the year FREE - (29,256) (29,256)
Other comprehensive income for the G RHE M2 E Uz

year 6,797 - 6,797
Total comprehensive income for the FREEBEEE

year 6,797 (29,256) (22,459)
At 31 December 2021 202112 A31H 99,629 289,744 389,373

40. Approval of the Financial Statements

The financial statements were approved and authorised

for issue by the board of directors on 21 April 2022.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY B} #& #f &

For the year ended 31 December 2021

EFE20214F12H31 HIFFE
Year ended 31 December
BZ12A1ALEE
2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
(Restated) (Restated)
(i E5) (fE5)
HK$ Million — HK$ Million — HKS$ Million — HK$ Million e &N
BEET BEET BEET BEET BEAET
(Note)
(f13t)
Results ¥
Revenue WA 929.2 105.6 107.6 89.1 87.4
Profit/(loss) for the year AREEBAREEA
attributable to owners of the smHl/ (BE)
Company 260.2 (49.4) 2.5 (317.6)  (1,452.6)
Year ended 31 December
BZ12831ALEE
2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
(Restated)
C=27)
HK$ Million — HKS Milion — HK$ Million — HK$ Million Nl &X TN}
BEETL BE#T BEETL BEET BEET
(Note)
(Hz)
Assets and liabilities BEREE
Investment properties and REMERDE  BEX
property, plant and equipment B 6,502.1 6,306.0 2,800.2 2,875.2 3,001.7
Land use rights T fh 192.0 178.4 = = =
Goodwill e 39.5 39.5 = = -
Other intangible assets HihEFEE = - — — 28
Structured finance securities EEESRES 7.0 - - - -
Right-of-use assets EREEE - - — 54.2 51.8
Interests in associates BennER 1,334.6 1,335.1 77.1 85.6 335.5
Interests in a joint venture —REEEER - - 3,128.9 3,033.4 1,568.4
Financial assets at fair value NARETEAEEH
though profit or loss TABENERERE
— non-current — IEnE — 228.8 2.8 2.8 167.6
Available-for-sale investments AEHERE 300.7 = = =
Amount due from an associate ~ JEW—FREEL A B
— non-current — JEnE — - - — 560.7
Amount due from a joint venture BN —FREERER
— non-current — ERH — - 1,165.0 969.9 1,748.0
Loan receivables — non-current  EWET — ERE 223.0 2775 160.9 231.9 -
Net current assets FREEE 111.9 691.2 2,285.0 3,221.1 1,776.3
8,710.8 9,056.5 9,619.9 10,4741 9,212.8
Share capital (LT 3,626.8 3,626.8 3,626.8 3,626.8 3,626.8
Reserves =4 3,476.6 3,122.0 2,995.4 2,933.0 1,604.6
Equity attributable to owners of AR EHEH AFE(EIRA
the Company 7,103.4 6,748.8 6,622.2 6,559.8 5,231.4
Non-controlling interests Flaudd)pas 385.1 854.4 902.1 824.2 486.9
Non-current liabilities EoE)=Vr 1,222.3 1,453.3 2,095.3 3,090.1 3,494.6

Silver Grant International Holdings Group Limited
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
Bt E202146 12831 AILF/E

Note: In Year 2018, the Group has applied HKFRS 15, HKFRS 9
and other amendments to HKFRSs (see note 2 of the notes to
the consolidated financial statements section for the summary
of the corresponding financial impact). Accordingly, certain
comparative information for the years ended 31 December,
2016 and 2017 may not be comparable to the years ended 31
December, 2018 and 2019 as such comparative information
was prepared under HKAS 18, HKAS 11 and HKAS 39.
Accounting policies resulting from application of HKFRS 15
and HKFRS 9 are disclosed in the “Significant Accounting
Judgements and Estimates” Section.
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SUMMARY OF INVESTMENT PROPERTIES REY ¥ E

For the year ended 31 December 2021
Bt E202146 12831 AILF/E

The following is a list of the Group’s investment properties at
31 December 2021:

THAKREBKR2021F12 A31 HHIREWE
EE

Investment properties in the PRC NRHPEZREYE
Location Lease term Purpose Gross area
ih B AR A& EEmE
Sq. ft.
FH IR
1. Basement 1, Basement 2, Level O and Level 1 to 3 of Medium Commercial 700,427
East Gate Plaza, 19 Dongzhong Street, Dongcheng term lease [EES
District, Beijing, The PRC R Hf
B Uk R R AT 195 RIR B G E1E -
WE2E - KERIEZIE
2. Level 4 to 31 of South Apartment Tower (including Long lease Residential 31,171
401, 402, 403, 405, 406, 407, 408, 501, 502, 503, K Hf x=
505, 506, 507, 508, 30/F and 31/F), East Gate Plaza,
39 Dongzhong Street, Dongcheng District, Beijing,
The PRC
B L R T R R R R T30S IR R S R A B g
E4E31E (B1E401, 402, 403, 405, 406, 407, 408,
501, 502, 503, 505, 506, 507, 508, 30#& &% 311&)
&) Level 4 to 31, North Apartment Tower, East Gate Long lease Residential 339,993
Plaza, 19 Dongzhong Street, Dongcheng District, £ A F=
Beijing, The PRC
PRI R TR E R 195 IR E SR AEE
ERESCH
4. Portion of Level 2-5, 6 and 8 of Hua Po Lou, No. 28 Medium term Commercial 10,540
Dong Zhong Jie Jia, Dongcheng District, Beijing, The lease [GHE3
PRC (Note) AR
AR B b TR T SR [ SR R AT FR 28R EE R 1B 52 5 - 6
K8EEH (Ki:t)
Note: The legal titles of the properties have not been passed to the Biat - WEMEZEER2021F12A31BHAB
Group at 31 December 2021. FTALHE -
Investment properties in the Hong Kong NREBZBRENE
Location Lease term Purpose Gross area
ih 2h FAAHABR Jizkes EEEE
Sq. ft.
PR
Flat B, 9 Floor, 6A Bowen Road, Hong Kong Long lease Residential 3,007
BBBEEECA F 9IEBE REA F=

Silver Grant International Holdings Group Limited

REFEZEREERER QA



SItVER GRANT INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS
GRroup LIMITED
FEEREREEER AT

(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

(REBEMRL2ERAF)
& 13 X 5% Stock code: 171

Suite 4901, 49th Floor

Office Tower, Convention Plaza
1 Harbour Road, Wanchai
Hong Kong
BEEEBEEBEISE
BERESNHAKE
49184901 %
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